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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this annual report constitute forward-looking statements. To the extent that statements in this annual
report are not recitations of historical fact, such statements constitute forward-looking statements, which, by definition, involve
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such statements. In
particular, statements under Business (including, but not limited to, Competition, Regulatory, Intellectual Property and Legal
Proceedings), Material Contracts and Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
contain forward-looking statements, including statements regarding our future projected contractual commitments, our
expectations with respect to our growth prospects and our strategic initiatives over the next few years, our expectations regarding
our percentage of revenue represented by our property, equipment and intangible asset additions in 2013, our business, product,
acquisition, disposition and finance strategies, our capital expenditures, subscriber growth and retention rates, competitive,
regulatory and economic factors, the maturity of our markets, anticipated cost increases, liquidity, credit risks, foreign currency
risks and target leverage levels. In some cases, you can identify these statements by terminology such as “aim,” ‘““anticipate,”
“believe,” “continue,” “could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” ““project,” “should,” and
“will” and similar words used in this annual report.
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By their nature, forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncertainties. Many of these
assumptions, risks and uncertainties are beyond our control. Accordingly, actual results may differ materially from those expressed
or implied by the forward-looking statements. Such forward-looking statements are based on numerous assumptions regarding
our present and future business strategies and the environment in which we operate. Where, in any forward-looking statement,
we express an expectation or belief as to future results or events, such expectation or belief is expressed in good faith and believed
to have a reasonable basis, but there can be no assurance that the expectation or belief will result or be achieved or accomplished.

The following include some but not all of the factors that could cause actual results or events to differ materially from anticipated
results or events:
* economic and business conditions and industry trends in the markets in which we operate;

» the competitive environment in the broadband communications and programming industries in Germany, including
competitor responses to our products and services;

» fluctuations in currency exchange rates and interest rates;

* instability in global financial markets, including sovereign debt issues in the European Union (EU) and related fiscal
reforms;

»  consumer disposable income and spending levels, including the availability and amount of individual consumer debt;
» changes in consumer television viewing preferences and habits;

« consumer acceptance of our existing service offerings, including our digital video, broadband internet, telephony and
mobile service offerings, and of new technology, programming alternatives and other products and services that we may
offer in the future;

*  our ability to manage rapid technological changes;

*  our ability to renew on equivalent terms existing contracts with housing associations and Professional Operators (as
defined in this annual report), especially in light of the conditions imposed on us as a result of the LGI/KBW Transaction
(as defined in this annual report);

*  our ability to maintain or increase the number of subscriptions to our digital video, broadband internet, telephony and
mobile service offerings and our average revenue per household;

*  our ability to provide satisfactory customer service, including support for new and evolving products and services;
*  our ability to maintain or increase rates to our subscribers or to pass through increased costs to our subscribers;

»  the impact of our future financial performance, or market conditions generally, on the availability, terms and deployment
of capital;

» changes in, or failure or inability to comply with, government regulations in the markets in which we operate and adverse
outcomes from regulatory proceedings;

+ government intervention that impairs our competitive position, including any intervention that would impact our
contractual relationships with housing associations and Professional Operators or would open our broadband distribution
networks to competitors;



»  our ability to obtain regulatory approval and satisfy other conditions necessary to close acquisitions, and the impact of
conditions imposed by competition and other regulatory authorities in connection with acquisitions, including the impact
of the conditions imposed in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction on our operations;

» changes in laws or treaties relating to taxation, or the interpretation thereof, in the markets in which we operate;

» changes in laws and government regulations that may impact the availability and cost of credit and the derivative
instruments that hedge certain of our financial risks;

» the ability of suppliers and vendors to timely deliver quality products, equipment, software and services;

» the availability of attractive programming for our digital video services at reasonable costs;

*  uncertainties inherent in the development and integration of new business lines and business strategies;

*  our ability to adequately forecast and plan future network requirements;

» the availability of capital for the acquisition and/or development of telecommunications networks and services;

» our ability to successfully integrate and realize anticipated efficiencies from the businesses we or Liberty Global (as
defined in this annual report) acquire, including the Kabel BW Group (as defined in this annual report);

»  problems we may discover post-closing with the operations, including the internal controls and financial reporting process,
of businesses we acquire;

*  our ability to maintain or increase our revenue from channel carriage arrangements;
» the outcome of any pending or threatened litigation;

» the loss of key employees and the availability of qualified personnel;

» changes in the nature of key strategic relationships with partners;

» changes in the nature of key relationships with Deutsche Telekom (as defined in this annual report) and certain of its
affiliates for the access and operation of a significant portion of our network;

*  our ability to successfully interact with labor councils and unions; and

»  events that are outside of our control, such as political unrest in international markets, terrorist attacks, malicious human
acts, natural disasters, pandemics and other similar events.

The broadband distribution services industries are changing rapidly and, therefore, the forward-looking statements of
expectations, plans and intent in this annual report are subject to a significant degree of risk. These forward-looking statements
and the above-described risks, uncertainties and other factors speak only as of the date of this annual report, and we expressly
disclaim any obligation or undertaking to disseminate any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained herein,
to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto, or any other change in events, conditions or circumstances on which
any such statement is based. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any forward-looking statement.



BUSINESS
In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “our,” “our company,” “us” and “Unitymedia
KabelBW” refer, as the context requires, to Unitymedia KabelBW, or collectively to Unitymedia KabelBW and its subsidiaries.
Unless otherwise indicated, operational and statistical data, including subscriber statistics and product offerings, are as of
December 31, 2012.

Introduction

We are a subsidiary of Liberty Global, Inc. (Liberty Global) that provides digital and analog cable television and broadband
internet and telephony services over our broadband communications network and mobile services as a mobile virtual network
operator (MVNO). We are the second largest cable operator in Germany and the largest cable operator in the German states of
North Rhine-Westphalia and Hesse (collectively, the ““Unitymedia” footprint) and Baden-Wiirttemberg (the “KabelBW” footprint)
in terms of video subscribers. As of December 31, 2012, the three federal states have a population and combined number of
households of 34.7 million and 16.7 million, respectively, and include the major cities of Cologne, Dortmund, Diisseldorf, Essen,
Frankfurt, Karlsruhe, Mannheim, Stuttgart and Wiesbaden.

Liberty Global is a leading international cable company, with operations in 13 countries. Liberty Global connects people to
the digital world and enables them to discover and experience its endless possibilities. Liberty Global’s market-leading television,
broadband internet and telephony services are provided through next-generation networks and innovative technology platforms
that connect 19.8 million customers who subscribe to 34.8 million services as of December 31, 2012.

We classify our customers based on our main subscription-based business activities. The following table shows our operating
statistics as of December 31,2012 and 2011. Unless otherwise indicated, the December 31,2012 and 2011 operating information
set forth in the table below and elsewhere in this section represents the aggregation of both the Unitymedia and KabelBW footprints.

December 31,

2012 2011

Footprint

HOMES PaSSEA 1V ... 12,567,900 12,445,300

Two-Way HOMES PASSEA Z) ... e 12,162,400 12,034,500
Subscribers (RGUs) @

DHGIAL CABIE @ ...t 2,185,900 1,983,800

ANALOZ CADIE ©) ... 4,503,600 4,768,600

TOLAL VAAEO. ... 6,689,500 6,752,400
INtErNEt 10 e 2,219,200 1,799,500
TlePRONY V1D ettt 2,232,000 1,831,700
TOLAl RGUS ..ot 11,140,700 10,383,600

Penetration

Digital Cable as % of Total Video Subs ®) ..o 32.7% 29.4%

Internet as % of Two-way Homes Passed ©..............coooivoivoieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 18.2% 15.0%

Telephony as % of Two-way Homes Passed ¥ ...........cooouiuioioeeeeeeeeeee oo 18.4% 15.2%
Customer relationships ¥

Customer Relationships 1! ..........ve oot 7,049,100 6,932,300

RGUs per Customer RelationShip..........eecvevieierieierieie ettt 1.58 1.50
Customer bundling

303 T (S o P SRURRSRTRN 67.9% 73.3%

DOUDIC-PLAY ....ocvviiieiiiciieieceee ettt ettt ettt et et ebe et e ettt eera e b e enaeereenneereeneas 6.2% 3.6%

B 010 (S o USRS 25.9% 23.1%
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Homes Passed are homes, residential multiple dwelling units or commercial units that can be connected to our network
without materially extending the distribution plant. Our Homes Passed counts are based on census data that can change
based on either revisions to the data or from new census results.

Two-way Homes Passed are Homes Passed by those sections of our network that are technologically capable of providing
two-way services, including video, internet and telephony services, up to the street cabinet, with drops from the street
cabinet to the building generally added, and in-home wiring generally upgraded, on an as-needed, success-based basis.

Revenue Generating Unit (RGU) is separately an Analog Cable Subscriber, Digital Cable Subscriber, Internet Subscriber
or Telephony Subscriber. A home, residential multiple dwelling unit or commercial unit may contain one or more RGUs.
For example, if a residential customer subscribed to our digital cable service, telephony service and broadband internet
service, the customer would constitute three RGUs. Total RGUs is the sum of Analog Cable, Digital Cable, Internet and
Telephony Subscribers. RGUs generally are counted on a unique premises basis such that a given premises does not
count as more than one RGU for any given service. On the other hand, if an individual receives one of our services in
two premises (e.g., a primary home and a vacation home), that individual will count as two RGUs for that service. Each
bundled cable, internet or telephony service is counted as a separate RGU regardless of the nature of any bundling discount
or promotion. Non-paying subscribers are counted as subscribers during their free promotional service period. Some of
these subscribers may choose to disconnect after their free service period. We do not include subscriptions to mobile
services in our externally reported RGU counts. In this regard, our December 31, 2012 RGU count excludes 132,400
postpaid subscriber identification module (SIM) cards in service.

Digital Cable Subscriber is a home, residential multiple dwelling unit or commercial unit that receives our digital cable
service over our broadband network. We count a subscriber with one or more digital converter boxes that receives our
digital cable service in one premises as just one subscriber. A Digital Cable Subscriber is not counted as an Analog Cable
Subscriber. As we migrate customers from analog to digital cable services, we report a decrease in our Analog Cable
Subscribers equal to the increase in our Digital Cable Subscribers. As discussed in further detail in note 5 below, Basic
Digital Cable Subscribers are not included in our Digital Cable Subscriber count.

Analog Cable Subscriber is a home, residential multiple dwelling unit or commercial unit that receives our analog cable
service over our broadband network. The Analog Cable Subscriber count also includes subscribers who may use a
purchased set-top box or other non-verifiable means to receive our basic digital cable channels without subscribing to
any services that would require the payment of recurring monthly fees in addition to the basic analog service fee (“Basic
Digital Cable Subscriber”). Our Basic Digital Cable Subscribers are attributable to the fact that our basic digital cable
channels are not encrypted in our KabelBW footprint. Effective January 1, 2013, our basic digital cable channels are
also unencrypted in our Unitymedia footprint.

Internet Subscriber is a home, residential multiple dwelling unit or commercial unit that receives internet services over
our network. Our Internet Subscribers do not include customers that receive services from dial-up connections. In our
Unitymedia footprint, we offer a 128 Kbps wholesale internet service to housing associations on a bulk basis. As of
December 31, 2012, our Internet Subscribers include approximately 6,500 subscribers within such housing associations
who have requested and received a modem that enables the receipt of this 128 Kbps wholesale internet service.

Telephony Subscriber is a home, residential multiple dwelling unit or commercial unit that receives voice services over
our network. Telephony subscribers exclude mobile telephony subscribers.

Digital cable penetration is calculated by dividing the number of digital cable RGUs by the total number of digital and
analog cable RGUs.

Internet and telephony penetration is calculated by dividing the number of internet and telephony RGUs by the number
of two-way homes passed.

(10) Our business-to-business (B2B) revenue primarily is derived from small or home office (SOHO) subscribers that pay a

premium price to receive enhanced service levels along with internet and telephony services that are the same or similar
to the mass marketed products offered to our residential subscribers. Effective January 1, 2012, we began including the
SOHO subscribers in our RGU and Customer Relationship counts. With the exception of our B2B SOHO subscribers,
we generally do not count customers of B2B services as customers or RGUs for external reporting purposes.

(11) Customer Relationships are the number of customers who receive at least one of our video, internet or telephony services

that we count as RGUs, without regard to which, or to how many services they subscribe. Customer Relationships
generally are counted on a unique premises basis. Accordingly, if an individual receives our services in two premises
(e.g., primary home and vacation home), that individual generally will count as two Customer Relationships. We exclude
mobile customers from Customer Relationships.
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History

Our predecessor company was formed on September 20, 2002, as a German limited liability company (Gesellschaft mit
beschrdnkter Haftung), which we refer to as “Old Unitymedia.” Old Unitymedia’s operations resulted from the acquisition by
iesy Hessen GmbH & Co. KG of ish NRW GmbH in 2005 and the integration of the assets and liabilities of the cable network
business of Tele Columbus which were located in North Rhine-Westphalia and Hesse. The combinations allowed Old Unitymedia
to interconnect the broadband cable networks in North Rhine-Westphalia and Hesse and build the first fully integrated cable
network in Germany. In May 2007, Old Unitymedia introduced a single Unitymedia brand for its products and services and, in
its upgraded network coverage area, began to offer a triple-play product, combining digital cable television services with broadband
internet access and telephony services.

We were formed on October 15, 2009, in contemplation of the issuance of debt financing in connection with our then potential
acquisition of Old Unitymedia. On January 28, 2010, we acquired 100% of Old Unitymedia (the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction)
and on September 16, 2010, we completed the Unitymedia Merger, pursuant to which Old Unitymedia was merged with us and
we were the surviving entity in the merger. With effect from August 8, 2012 we changed our name to Unitymedia KabelBW
GmbH (Unitymedia KabelBW).

On December 15,2011, UPC Germany HoldCo 2 GmbH (UPC Germany HC2), a wholly-owned subsidiary of UPC Germany
Holding B.V. (UPC Germany, Unitymedia KabelBW’s immediate parent company), completed the LGI/KBW Transaction pursuant
to which it acquired all of the outstanding shares of Kabel BW Musketeer GmbH (KBW Musketeer), the indirect parent company
of Kabel BW GmbH (KBW), from Oskar Rakso S.ar.l. The acquisition was completed in order to achieve certain financial,
operational and strategic benefits through the integration of KBW with our company, and, to a lesser extent, with Liberty Global’s
other broadband communications operations in Europe. The German Federal Cartel Office (FCO) conditioned its approval of the
LGI/KBW Transaction upon the agreement of our company and KBW with several conditions primarily concerning certain
agreements and relationships our company and KBW have with housing associations and the encryption of digital free-to-air
television services. For more information regarding these conditions, see “—Regulatory—LGI/KBW Transaction Imposed
Conditions.”

As part of the 2012 Reorganization that was effected through a series of mergers and consolidations, KBW Musketeer and
its immediate subsidiary, Kabel BW Erste Beteiligungs GmbH (Kabel BW), were merged into UPC Germany HC2 and UPC
Germany HC2 was subsequently merged into KBW. As a result of these transactions, which were effective upon registration in
March 2012, UPC Germany HoldCo 1 GmbH (UPC Germany HC1) became the immediate parent company of KBW. In May
2012, the KBW Fold-in was completed, which resulted in the immediate parent company of UPC Germany HC1, UPC Germany
Holdings GmbH (UPC Germany Holdings), becoming a direct subsidiary of Unitymedia Hessen GmbH & Co. KG (Unitymedia
Hessen). As part of our continuing internal reorganization following the LGI/KBW Transaction and the subsequent KBW Fold-
in, on August 24, 2012 Unitymedia Hessen sold its shares in UPC Germany Holdings to a newly formed subsidiary, UPC Germany
NewCo GmbH (UPC Germany NewCo). In addition, each of the following mergers was registered in the commercial register
(Handelregister) between August 29 and August 31, 2012: (i) UPC Germany Holdings was merged into UPC Germany NewCo;
(i) UPC Germany HC1 was merged into KBW; and (iii) Kabel Baden-Wiirttemberg Verwaltungs-GmbH was merged into KBW.

We are registered with the commercial register (Handelsregister) of the local court (Amtsgericht) of Cologne under number
HRB 68501. Our principal business address is Aachener Strasse 746-750, 50933 Cologne, Germany. A copy of this annual report,
our quarterly reports and our other releases are available on Unitymedia KabelBW’s (www.umkbw.de) and Liberty Global’s
(www.lgi.com) websites. None of the information posted on either of these websites is incorporated into this annual report.

Products and Services

We currently provide digital and analog cable television and radio services, including premium digital cable services, to
customers in the three federal states of North Rhine-Westphalia, Hesse and Baden-Wiirttemberg, Germany. In addition, in the
upgraded portion of our network coverage area (which covers 97% of our total network coverage area), we offer our customers
access to triple-play services under the brands “Unitymedia” and “KabelBW” consisting of digital cable video, broadband internet
and telephony. We also offer a quadruple-play that includes mobile services. The upgraded portion of our network provides us
with full bi-directional capability that enables us to provide premium digital cable services, broadband internet service at very
high-speeds and telephony services. Through our partnership with Telefénica Germany GmbH & Co. OHG (Telefonica Germany)
we offer our customers mobile voice and data services. Our goal is to further harmonize the product portfolios in our Unitymedia
and KabelBW footprints in 2013.

We generate revenue principally from relationships with our customers who pay subscription fees for the services provided.
Subscription fees for basic cable video services are typically paid directly by single family homes (or single dwelling units)
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subscribing to the service or, in the case of multi-dwelling units (MDUs), we enter into a bulk contract with the owner or housing
association of the multi-dwelling structure based on the number of units connected. Single family home customers also pay us
directly for the subscription fees associated with our premium digital cable services, as well as the broadband internet, telephony
and mobile services they purchase from us. Generally, the owner of a MDU allows us to sell digital cable (including our premium
digital cable services), broadband internet and telephony services directly to individual tenants. In addition, we are compensated
by public and commercial broadcasters, which typically pay carriage fees for the transmission and distribution of their free-to-
air television and audio signals via our network.

Prior to September 2010, our predecessor company operated a national satellite digital pay-TV platform called “arenaSAT.”
We closed down this service effective September 30, 2010 and it is presented as a discontinued operation in our consolidated
statements of operations and cash flows.

Video Business

We market our video services under the integrated “Unitymedia” brand in our Unitymedia footprint and under the integrated
“Kabel BW” brand in our KabelBW footprint, and offer a full range of video services that include basic, digital and premium
television offerings. Our premium digital cable services include premium subscription channels, high definition (HD) channels,
digital video recorder (DVR) functionality, HD receivers, both including an electronic programming guide, and access to video-
on-demand (VoD). In some circumstances, a subscriber may use a common interface plus (CI+) module in combination with a
smart card to access our encrypted digital services. A CI+ module is a small device that allows customers with a CI+ enabled
television set, who subscribe to, or otherwise have access to, our digital video service, to view such services without a set-top
box. No set-top box, CI+ module or smart card is, however, required to receive basic digital services in our KabelBW footprint
and, beginning in January 2013, in the Unitymedia footprint because our basic digital services are unencrypted in these regions.
Our network passes 12.6 million homes or 75% of all households in North Rhine-Westphalia, Hesse and Baden-Wiirttemberg.

There are 2.2 million RGUs that subscribe to our digital products and 4.5 million RGUs that subscribe to our basic analog
package of television channels. We continue to upgrade our systems to expand our digital service offerings and encourage our
analog subscribers to convert to a digital service, so that customers have access to our premium digital cable services. As of
December 31, 2012, the percentage of our overall video subscribers that subscribed to our digital products was 32.7%, compared
to 29.4% as of December 31, 2011. Prior to January 1, 2013, our basic digital television channels were unencrypted in our
KabelBW footprint and, effective January 1, 2013, are also unencrypted in our Unitymedia footprint. Subscribers with the
necessary equipment and who pay the monthly subscription fee for our analog package are able to watch our basic digital television
channels. As of December 31, 2012, 16.4% of our video base subscribed to premium digital cable services.

Due to the expected impacts of, among other matters: (i) the ongoing negotiations related to the special termination right
granted with respect to certain of our access agreements with our largest housing associations and (ii) the scheduled expiration of
contracts for certain of our residential subscribers and housing associations, our analog cable RGU losses during 2013 and over
the next few years have the potential to be higher than current levels. For information concerning the special termination right,
see “Regulatory — LGI/KBW Transaction Imposed Conditions.”

Basic and Digital Cable Services

In September 2012, we aligned the basic video pricing for our analog and digital cable services in single dwelling units
throughout the Unitymedia and KabelBW footprints. Our basic digital cable product in the Unitymedia footprint, “Digital TV
BASIC,” offers an entry level digital cable product with over 70 digital channels, including the analog simulcast, and over 70
radio channels. Our basic analog package in the Unitymedia footprint consists of up to 34 television channels and up to 33 radio
channels. Digital TV BASIC also provides access to VoD and HD content from public broadcasters. Three public HD channels
are currently included in our Digital TV BASIC product. Our basic cable product in the KabelBW footprint offers over 100 digital
channels (including five HD channels), up to 41 analog channels, over 90 digital radio channels and more than 36 analog radio
channels. We regularly update our basic cable program offerings to reflect changes in viewer interest.
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Premium Digital Cable Services

Unitymedia Footprint. Our premium digital cable services include premium HD channel offerings, VoD, DVR functionality
and premium programming channels that we assemble into packages. During February 2012, we started to offer an HD option
that includes HD free-to-air content (currently 13 channels from private broadcasters including key channels from ProSiebenSat. 1
Media AG (ProSiebenSAT.1) and Mediengruppe RTL Deutschland (RTL) and 3 HD channels from public broadcasters) that our
digital video customers can subscribe to for an additional monthly fee if they have a suitable HD capable device. We also offer
our interactive HD DVR, which customers can either purchase or rent for an additional monthly fee or as part of a triple-play
bundle at a discount. In addition, to further fuel the digital conversion, we offer a HD interactive set-top box without DVR
functionality and a CI+ module and smartcard that allows those video households with an enabled HD television set to watch
digital or HD content without a separate set-top box. Both can be purchased or rented for an additional monthly subscription fee
and a one-time activation fee. Our HD DVR and HD interactive receivers provide access to our VoD offering that we launched
during the second quarter of 2012 and includes over 4,000 titles of on-demand content that can be watched on a per-view basis.

We offer two premium content packages, which can be ordered individually or bundled at discounted rates within our triple-
play offerings. Digital TV HIGHLIGHTS offers 17 film, series, documentary, children and music channels. Digital TV
ALLSTARS contains 54 channels, including the channels offered in Digital TV HIGHLIGHTS. In addition, subscribers to Digital
TV HIGHLIGHTS or Digital TV ALLSTARS can also upgrade to premium HD packages for an additional monthly fee, bringing
the number of HD channels for these subscribers to 25 and 37, respectively. Our video customers may also subscribe to premium
standard definition (SD) and HD content offered by Sky Deutschland AG (Sky Deutschland) through a smart card on our network.
In total, we currently offer 48 HD channels (including 16 Sky Deutschland HD channels) in our Unitymedia footprint, including
free-to-air and premium channels by public and commercial broadcasters. For more details regarding our arrangement with Sky
Deutschland, see “— Material Contracts — Other Significant Supply Agreements — Sky Deutschland.”

We also offer digital foreign language packages under the name “Digital TV INTERNATIONAL.” Digital TV
INTERNATIONAL consists of our individual foreign language programming packages in Arabic, Bosnian, Croatian, Greek,
Italian, Japanese, Polish, Portuguese, Spanish, Russian, Serbian and Turkish (Basic, Premium and Professional) with over 50
channels.

KabelBW Footprint. Our premium digital cable services include HD channel offerings, DVR functionality, VoD, which
currently offers over 2,500 titles, and premium subscription programming that we assemble into packages. In February 2012, we
launched a CI+ module that allows those video households in our KabelBW footprint with an enabled HD television set to watch
premium digital or HD content without a separate set-top box. We rent or sell to our basic cable subscribers HD DVR set-top
boxes, HD interactive set-top boxes and CI+ modules so they can access these premium digital cable services.

During 2012, certain of KabelBW’s premium subscription packages were harmonized with the packages we offer in the
Unitymedia footprint. KabelBW’s Digital TV HIGHLIGHTS offers 14 film, series, documentary, children and music channels.
KabelBW’s Digital TV ALLSTARS contains 53 channels, including the channels offered in Digital TV HIGHLIGHTS. In addition,
subscribers to Digital TV HIGHLIGHTS or Digital TV ALLSTARS can also upgrade to the HD option for an additional monthly
fee, bringing the number of HD channels for these subscribers to 22 and 31, respectively. Our video customers may also subscribe
to premium SD and HD content offered by Sky Deutschland through a smart card on our network. In total, we currently offer 46
HD channels (including 17 Sky Deutschland HD channels) in our KabelBW footprint, including free-to-air and premium channels
by public and commercial broadcasters. For more details regarding our arrangement with Sky Deutschland, see “— Material
Contracts — Other Significant Supply Agreements — Sky Deutschland.”

We also offer foreign language packages under the brand “Digital TV INTERNATIONAL.” DigitalTV INTERNATIONAL
offers channels in 14 languages (Albanian, Arabic, Bosnian, Croatian, English, French, Greek, Italian, Polish, Portuguese, Spanish,
Russian, Serbian and Turkish). Our video subscribers may also subscribe to premium content offered by Sky Deutschland, including
Bundesliga and Champions League soccer, under the brand “CleverFlat Entertainment + Sky” on a bundled basis, together with
a 50 Mbps internet flat rate and fixed-line telephone flat rate for calls within Germany. Sky Deutschland’s premium content is
also offered to our video customers on a standalone basis. Further to the combined bundle with Sky Deutschland, it is also possible
to order “CleverFlat Entertainment + Sky” in combination with either DigitalTV ALLSTARS, DigitalTV HIGHLIGHTS plus
HD-Option or DigitalTV INTERNATIONAL. Similar extended bundled offers with Sky Deutschland are planned for our
Unitymedia footprint in 2013.

Horizon TV. We plan to introduce a next generation set-top box platform, which we refer to as “Horizon TV,” during 2013.
Horizon TV, which was launched by Liberty Global in its Dutch and Swiss operations in September 2012 and January 2013,
respectively, is a family of media products that allows customers to view and share content across the television, computer, tablet
and smartphone. Horizon TV is powered by a user interface that provides customers a seamless intuitive way to access linear,
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time-shifted, on-demand and web-based content on the television. It also features an advanced set-top box that delivers not only
video, but also internet and voice connections along with a wireless network for the home. For our Horizon TV customers, we
also plan to offer applications for various services.

Our Customers. We divide our basic cable subscribers into two specific market segments: residential subscribers in single-
dwelling units (SDUs) and subscribers in MDUs. Each market segment is targeted with tailored marketing, sales and advertising
techniques.

In the SDU market segment, residential subscribers typically enter into standard form contracts with us. We have a direct
customer relationship with our residential subscribers and deliver targeted marketing directly to this market segment.

In the MDU market segment, video subscription fees are paid by housing or condominium associations, administrators,
landlords and other third parties that own or manage the MDUs and third parties (Professional Operators) that operate and
administer the in-building network on behalf of housing associations. Nearly two-thirds of our video RGUs are with MDUs. We
either enter into a signal delivery agreement with a housing association or landlord under which we supply our signal to the
connection point or a concession agreement that allows for exclusive provision of video, broadband internet and telephony services
directly to end customers. In addition, we may also maintain and operate the network required to deliver the signal into the
tenant’s home where we have entered into modernization agreements with housing or condominium associations, administrators,
landlords and others under which we modernize the relevant in-house networks and receive a building cost allowance
(Baukostenzuschuss) in some instances. In return, we have the right to use the respective in-house network and to serve the
respective households with broadband cable services. In all cases, we invoice the housing association for our fees relating to
basic cable services and offer our premium digital cable, broadband internet and telephony services directly to the tenants. Thus,
we create a relationship with such subscribers for all our advanced services beyond the basic cable services, unless we are prohibited
from doing so by the housing association. In order to provide these advanced services to tenants who request them, we typically
add a drop to connect our distribution network to the building and upgrade the in-home wiring, on an as-needed or success-based
basis.

Within our MDU base, we also offer our services to Professional Operators, also sometimes referred to as “level 4 operators.”
Professional Operators procure basic television signals from other providers or us and generally resell them to housing associations.
Professional Operators generally enjoy volume-based discounts built into our standard rate card, which create incentives for these
operators to cluster their subscribers behind individual connection points. Historically, our agreements with Professional Operators
have included additional volume-based rate discounts to our standard rate card. Operator-specific discounts, when combined
with volume-based discounts built into the standard rate card, have traditionally resulted in a substantially lower average revenue
per unit within this customer segment. However, our costs associated with these customers are also lower for a variety of reasons,
particularly because we are not responsible for certain activities such as customer care, which the Professional Operators provide.

Although the majority of our service agreements with housing associations have multi-year terms, in connection with the
LGI/KBW Transaction, we agreed to grant early termination rights on certain agreements that we have with the largest housing
associations and which had a remaining term of more than three years as of December 15, 2011. For additional information
concerning the commitments we made to regulators in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction, see “Matters—LGI/KBW
Transaction Imposed Conditions” below.

The FCO is investigating customary practices regarding the duration of contracts with MDUs for analog television services.
The FCO had previously identified one such contract between our company and a landlord as potentially being subject to amendment
by order. The FCO indicated that the contract term of 10 years may be an infringement of European and German antitrust laws
and that it is inclined to open a test case that could set a precedent for all (or almost all) market participants. If the FCO does issue
an order requiring amendment, it could have application beyond one contract or could have broader application in the industry,
or it could be limited to the single contract.

Cable Service and Subscription Fees. Subscribers in SDUSs to either our analog or basic digital access products are charged
a monthly subscription fee. The pricing under certain multi-user contracts is based on standard rate card or on individual rates
with discount reduction for lump sum contracts. Subscription fees for our basic analog cable television services for customers
with MDUs are based on our standard rate card. The rate card is based on the number of dwelling units connected to each
connection point to the end-customers’ premises. In order to upgrade to any of our premium digital cable services, tenants in
MDUs have the option to enter into a direct contract with us and pay an additional monthly fee for such services. Any such fee
is in addition to the basic analog cable fee that the landlord pays to us and that is passed on to the tenant as part of the monthly
utility bill.
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In addition to the monthly subscription fees, subscribers generally pay an activation fee upon connecting or re-connecting
to our network. This activation fee is sometimes waived for larger MDU customers, for example when a subscriber is reconnecting
to our network, when a customer moves into a previously connected household or as part of periodic marketing promotions. We
also charge one-time activation fees for premium boxes, such as our HD DVR.

Broadband Internet

We provide broadband internet services on a retail and a wholesale basis to 2.2 million RGUs. We have expanded the
availability of our ultra high-speed broadband internet services through the deployment of EuroDOCSIS 3.0 (an international
standard that defines requirements for a data transmission over a cable system) capable equipment to 97% of our homes passed.

We market our broadband internet services through a product portfolio under the brand name “Unitymedia” in the Unitymedia
footprint and under the brand name “Kabel BW” in the KabelBW footprint, with particular focus on our bundled double-play
and triple-play offerings. We currently provide broadband internet services to our customers at a download speed of up to 150
Mbps in our Unitymedia footprint and up to 100 Mbps in our KabelBW footprint, in each case, without any time or data volume
restrictions. Customers can choose between different packages, each of which includes our broadband internet access. Our
current core products in both footprints offer a speed of 50 Mbps. We offer broadband internet services on a standalone basis, a
double-play option that bundles our broadband internet services with telephony access with a flat rate to national landlines, and
a triple-play option that bundles our broadband internet services with telephony access with flat rate national landline and certain
digital video products, including certain premium subscriptions. We provide wholesale internet access services in the Unitymedia
footprint through “Multimedia Anschluss” (MMA). Our MMA offer is a service tailored for housing associations to purchase
our broadband internet services (at download speeds up to 128 Kbps) on a bulk basis in addition to our video offering and enable
their properties with plug-and-play internet access. Tenants in MMA-equipped apartments have the opportunity to upgrade to
our high-speed broadband and flat rate telephony services, as well as premium digital cable services.

Subscribers to any of our internet/telephony packages use our cable modems free of charge (except MMA customers, who
pay a one-time modem fee for a service tailored for housing associations). For households located in the upgraded portion of our
network who do not subscribe to our cable video services, we also market and sell broadband internet and/or telephony services
separately from our video products. In addition to monthly subscription fees, subscribers pay an activation fee as well as an
installation fee upon subscribing to one of these products. In certain cases, these one-time charges are waived for promotional
reasons. Currently, we also offer certain promotional campaigns for new subscribers to our bundled broadband offerings, granting
either certain free months of service (in the Unitymedia footprint) or a one-time credit (in the KabelBW footprint). We may
prolong or extend these promotional services.

We also offer additional services included with our broadband internet bundled packages, including an internet security
package consisting of anti-virus, anti-spyware, firewall, spam protection and a child-proof lock, and other value-added services,
such as a download booster, online storage and web space. We charge the customer a monthly fee for each of these add-on services
after a free trial period.

Telephony

We provide our telephony services to 2.2 million RGUs. In line with our broadband internet portfolio, we offer telephony
services via voice-over-internet-protocol (VoIP) technology on a standalone basis and bundled with broadband internet services
as part of our 2play and 3play product portfolios. The telephony products offered as part of these packages include a flat rate
connection for unlimited calls to landlines in Germany. Telephony subscribers can also add additional options to existing telephony
contracts under which customers, for a fee, can benefit from significant savings on their international and fixed-to-mobile calls.
In addition, we offer an international flat rate that allows subscribers to make landline calls without any time restrictions to 27
(in our Unitymedia footprint) and 75 (in our KabelBW footprint) countries for a monthly subscription fee. We further provide
an incremental option for our telephony subscribers, which includes a premium router with additional functionalities such as
“ISDN” compatibility and a second line for an additional monthly fee and a one-time activation fee.

Our telephony services use VoIP as the method of transporting voice over our cable network. Analog voice information is
digitally encoded and converted into packets, and then sent to their destinations via our own telephony switches. We pay
interconnection fees to other internet and telephony providers when our subscribers connect with another network and receive
similar fees from providers when their users connect with our network through interconnection points.
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Carriage Fees

We charge television broadcasters carriage fees for delivering their free-to-air television channels (as opposed to channels
marketed in premium subscription packages) over our network. We have entered into feed-in agreements with certain large
commercial broadcasters pursuant to which they pay us fees for the distribution of digital and analog signals. In general, carriage
fees are charged on a monthly basis, depending on the number of video subscribers. We also carry the HD free-to-air channels
from the commercial broadcaster groups ProSiebenSAT.1 and RTL on our network as well as certain premium HD content from
national and international commercial broadcasters, and our digital cable customers that have a suitable HD DVR, HD set-top box
or CI+ module can watch the respective content in HD when subscribing to any of these premium HD packages. We invoice the
carriage fees directly to all broadcasters. Certain of the incremental fees for our free-to-air HD content as part of our HD option
received from our subscribers are shared with the commercial broadcasters. Prior to January 1, 2013, we also maintained feed-
in arrangements with the two German public broadcasters (Arbeitsgemeinschaft der Offentlich-Rechtlichen Rundfunkanstalten
der Bundesrepublik Deutschland (ARD) and Zweites Deutsches Fernsehen (ZDF)). During 2012, ARD and ZDF sent us notices
purporting to terminate the feed-in agreements at the end of 2012 and announced that they do not intend to pay any feed-in fees
after January 1, 2013. For more information about a claim we filed against ARD and ZDF, see “-Material Contracts-Other
Significant Supply Agreements-Feed-in Agreements.” Our carriage fee revenue is subject to these purportedly terminated contracts
and to contracts that expire or are otherwise terminable by either party at various dates ranging from 2013 through 2017. The
aggregate amount of our carriage fee revenue represents approximately 6% of our total revenue during the three months ended
December 31, 2012. Furthermore, approximately 20% of our carriage fee revenue during the three months ended December 31,
2012 relates to the ARD and ZDF contracts for which we received termination notices effective December 31, 2012. No assurance
can be given that any of our carriage fee contracts will be renewed or extended on financially equivalent terms, or at all. In addition,
our ability to increase the aggregate carriage fees that we receive for each channel is limited by certain commitments we made to

regulators in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction. For more information regarding our feed-in agreements, see “—~Material
Contracts—Other Significant Supply Agreements—Feed-in Agreements.”

Business Services

Beginning in early 2011, we started offering broadband internet and telephony services for B2B customers, targeting the
SOHO and, to a lesser extent, medium-sized business segments in the market. These products are similar to our broadband
residential offerings, but include 32 Mbps to 128 Mbps high-speed internet connection and fixed-line telephony services in our
Unitymedia footprint and 25 Mbps to 100 Mbps in our KabelBW footprint. Our product offerings to B2B customers are
characterized by additional features, such as static IP addresses, higher upload speeds, more extensive customer service and a
premium pricing structure. In addition, in certain cases we offer individual B2B solutions via direct fiber with ultra-high broadband
speeds of up to 10 Gpbs. In 2013, we introduced mobile data and voice services for B2B customers.

Mobile

We launched mobile telephony services in our KabelBW footprint in November 2010 and in our Unitymedia footprint in
December 2011. In each footprint, the mobile service is provided over the wireless network of mobile phone operator Telefonica
Germany. Mobile services are presently offered in both our footprints as an option to our customers who subscribe to a double-
play or triple-play bundle. These services are also offered, to a lesser extent, on a standalone basis to customers that live in our
network footprint. Each household in our footprint can order up to five SIM cards. In November 2012, the mobile data and voice
services were harmonized in the Unitymedia and KabelBW footprints.

Calls placed by our mobile phone subscribers into our fixed and mobile network are free-of-charge. Out-of-network calls
are billed according to different tariff plans, which include a per minute or monthly charge for certain unlimited calls and, in
certain subscription packages, include limited (or capped) mobile internet surfing with a smart phone and/or flat-rate voice calls
to all German mobile and fixed networks. We also typically charge a one-time activation fee to our customers for each SIM card.
Our mobile phone offerings have been introduced as part of our strategy to offer our customers a full product portfolio from a
single source, with the aim to increase customer loyalty and satisfaction and reduce churn.

Operations
Marketing and Sales

We market and sell our products to customers using a broad range of sales channels, including our own retail stores, third-
party retailers and partner shops, web sales, inbound and outbound telemarketing and direct sales as well as informal “customer-

gets-customer” promotions. The manner in which we target customers depends on the customer segment. We believe consumer
awareness underpins our sales to direct subscribers.
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We have a team of dedicated in-house sales support managers who work exclusively with our key account customers. These
include housing associations, housing administrations, real estate investors and wholesale partners and carriers, who have more
than 300 units under contract. This in-house sales staff develops and cultivates close working relationships with our key account
customers and works with residential sales teams to generate customer sales leads and increase retention of existing customers.
In addition, this in-house sales staff develops and maintains contact with local authorities and construction companies to ensure
that new buildings will be connected to our cable network in North Rhine-Westphalia, Hesse and Baden Wiirttemberg.

We promote our products and services to landlords and residential customers through direct marketing by direct sales agents
working with small and medium enterprises (typically, MDUs with less than 300 units) (SME) and field sales agents working to
sell our products and services to residential customers. The field sales agents are responsible for sales of our basic cable video
service, digital and premium digital video offerings, broadband internet and telephony services, and also manage disconnections
of services. Our direct sales agents are independent contractors who work on commission. Inaddition, we have over 160 exclusive
Unitymedia stores and partner shops in several cities in our Unitymedia footprint and nearly 100 exclusive KabelBW stores and
partner shops in our KabelBW footprint, both including rural areas. In addition, we target residential customers through
partnerships with retail outlets, such as multi-media retailers, electronics and telecommunications stores.

In addition, we have cooperation arrangements in place with certain mega-retailers as well as Mobilcom-debite]l GmbH, a
German telecom reseller belonging to Freenet AG, offering our products in their shops in North Rhine-Westphalia, Hesse and
Baden-Wiirttemberg, increasing our total German retail presence to over 2,000 point of sales. We also develop partnerships with
construction companies and municipalities to assist in promoting our basic cable video services and use our “Info-Mobil,” a
mobile point of contact for tenants in so-called “MMA buildings,” to allow people to test and order our retail products.

Customer Service

The customer service function is responsible for all customer care activities, including handling customer queries and
complaints. In addition, customer service also provides inbound telemarketing and sales support functions for the residential and
SME segments. We operate dedicated customer service centers in Bochum, Heidelberg, Kerpen, Marburg and Villingen-
Schwenningen with over 640 customer service agents, supplemented by outsourced call-center capacity of several hundred full-
time equivalents. We have entered into an agreement to transfer our Marburg customer service center to an external provider as
part of the outsourcing of certain of our call center capacity. For further information see “— Material Contracts — Call Centers
and Customer Services” below. Our customer service agents are skilled in multiple areas, including marketing campaigns and
customer care for a variety of products and technical service. Our customer service organization is structured as a process-oriented
organization with special teams for the various processes, such as order entry, number porting and complaint management.

Our Network

Our network passes 12.6 million homes, or 75% of the households, in the German federal states of North Rhine-Westphalia,
Hesse and Baden-Wiirttemberg. Our network utilizes the hybrid fiber coaxial cable and consists of approximately 215,000
kilometers of coaxial cable and approximately 6,000 kilometers of fiber cable. Average annual network availability of our network
and product platforms is high, at over 99.9% for both 2012 and 2011.

The original infrastructure, which was a single direction broadcast network, was based on the homogeneous topology
developed by the predecessor Deutsche Telekom AG (Deutsche Telekom) and its predecessor’s companies. Of our homes passed,
97% are served by a two-way upgraded network with full bi-directional capability, based on EuroDOCSIS 3.0 technology, over
a 862 MHz band. This enables us to provide advanced bi-directional cable services such as broadband internet at very high
speeds, telephony and ultimately VoD, and the distribution of digital and analog signals, including HD channels.

Deutsche Telekom and its predecessors originally constructed both our cable television network and Deutsche Telekom’s
current fixed-line telephony network. Certain parts of the infrastructure (including cable ducts, towers, fiber optic transmission
systems, and equipment locations) are shared by both the Deutsche Telekom telephony network and our cable television network.
We lease these assets from Deutsche Telekom. In general, the network is comprised of fiber and coaxial cable that is either buried
in the ground (86%) or housed in cable ducts (14%). The ducts are typically owned by Deutsche Telekom, and we lease duct
space for our network from Deutsche Telekom under long-term contracts. The distribution plant is powered by over 109,000
amplifiers. With the exception of the ducts, we operate all of the distribution plant and associated electronics. We purchase the
electrical power required to operate the master headend, regular headends, hubs and amplifiers through Deutsche Telekom,
Vattenfall Europe AG (Vattenfall) and MVV Energie AG. Purchasing the power from Deutsche Telekom is necessary because,
in many cases, the same power source supplies Deutsche Telekom’s telephone plant and our cable plant. During 2012, certain
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energy supplies for outdoor amplifiers served by Deutsche Telekom were moved to Vattenfall. For a description of our agreements
with Deutsche Telekom, see “—~Material Contracts—Material Supply Contracts.”

Competition

The markets for video, broadband internet and telephony services are highly competitive and rapidly evolving. Specifically,
the media and communications market in Germany is progressively characterized by convergence as customers are increasingly
looking to receive their media and communications services from one provider at attractive prices. In response, service providers
are providing video, broadband internet, telephony services and increasingly mobile services bundled as triple-play or quadruple-
play offerings. Consequently, we have faced, and will continue to face, increased competition across all of our product and service
offerings. While we have continued to make progress in growing our customer base by increasing penetration of our video base
with premium and advanced services, the competition we face in our markets, as well as a decline in the economic environment,
could adversely impact our ability to increase or, in certain cases, maintain our revenue, RGUs, cash flow and liquidity. We
currently are unable to predict the extent of any of these potential adverse effects.

We are focused on continuing to convert analog cable subscribers to digital and on selling such customers our premium
digital cable services, such as premium channels, premium HD channels, DVR and VoD, as well as broadband internet and
telephony services, which generate significantly higher recurring revenue than our basic cable video services. We believe that
the provision of premium and advanced services, either on a standalone basis or together in our product bundles, is a key driver
of revenue growth and strengthens customer loyalty. Through our partnership with Telefonica Germany we also offer mobile
services.

Video Business Market

The German television market is the largest in Europe, with approximately 38.0 million television homes as of June 30,2012,
and a combined cable, satellite and terrestrial penetration rate of approximately 94% based on approximately 40.4 million
households. (Source: German Digitization Report and Federal Statistical Office of Germany, 2012). Similar to other European
markets, television consumer behavior in Germany is starting to put more emphasis on digital, innovative, high definition and
interactive television services such as VoD requiring high bandwidth and bi-directional distribution platforms. Although digital
TV penetration is currently still low, cable as a distribution platform is well positioned to benefit from the growth opportunities
arising from these new services given its network characteristics. Only a few distribution platforms are able to provide interactivity,
for example the distribution of VoD.

The German broadcasting market is characterized by a relatively large availability of free television channels. The free
television offering is dominated by two broadcasting groups including public broadcaster groups and major commercial
broadcasters. Both public and commercial broadcasters in Germany currently pay carriage fees to cable operators for the
transmission and distribution of analog and digital television and radio signals via their network. However, as discussed above
under “—Products and Services—Carriage Fees,” during 2012, public broadcasters have sought to terminate existing carriage
fee arrangements and indicated that they expect that their signals will continue to be distributed beyond 2012 over cable operators’
networks based on existing must carry regulations. The German premium television market is less developed than other European
premium television markets. Sky Deutschland has historically been the major pay television operator in the German market with
acomprehensive premium content offering. Sky Deutschland distributes its pay television offerings through both cable and satellite
platforms on the basis of carriage and transponder lease agreements, but does not operate its own distribution network.

We are the second largest cable television provider in Germany based on the number of video cable subscribers, with operations
in the three federal states of North Rhine-Westphalia, Hesse and Baden-Wiirttemberg. Our video cable service competes directly
with a wide range of providers, including:

» traditional over-the-air broadcast television services;

» direct-to-home satellite (DTH) providers;

»  digital terrestrial video broadcast (DVB-T), which comprises the digital broadcasting of television signals over terrestrial
antennas and other earthbound circuits;

»  other fixed-line telecommunications carriers and broadband providers, including Deutsche Telekom, the incumbent
telephony operator, which primarily use digital subscriber line (DSL) technologies to provide Internet Protocol television
(IPTV) and VoD; and

«  over-the-top video content providers that deliver TV signals as a video stream on top of third parties’ broadband internet
access services.
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According to the German Digitization Report, as of June 30, 2012: 48% of German television homes used cable as their
primary means for receiving television signals; satellite was used by 46% of German television homes; terrestrial transmission
systems were used in 13% of German television homes; and IPTV was used in 4% of German television homes. The total
percentage exceeds 100 because some homes use more than one distribution platform. DVB-T is often used as a platform for a
second television set.

Satellite. We face significant competition from free-to-air satellite distribution for our basic cable video services. Anincrease
in the market share of satellite distribution, particularly free-to-air satellite, may have a negative impact on our video subscriber
base and related basic cable fees in the future. Certain digital premium and pay-TV providers, such as Sky Deutschland, have
made use of their own satellite platforms and introduced DVRs to provide additional functionality for those subscribers who
receive their digital pay programming through satellite, thereby making satellite more attractive to potential customers. In addition,
we compete with providers of digital video programming that currently utilize our network to reach their own subscribers. For
example, we have an agreement with Sky Deutschland that gives our customers the opportunity to subscribe to premium content
offered by Sky Deutschland through a smart card on our network. These providers may decide to develop or use alternative
distribution platforms, such as free-to-air satellite, adversely affecting our ability to generate carriage fees and subscriber revenue,
and potentially reducing the appeal of cable television.

The second most popular form of television reception in Germany after cable is DTH. Satellite operators such as Sky
Deutschland, SES S.A. Astra (SES Astra) and Eutelsat Communications S.A. (Eutelsat), provide television users with over 300
digital free- and pay-TV channels targeted at the German market and several hundred international television programs, depending
on the location of the satellite transponder. To receive programming distributed via satellite, viewers need a satellite dish and a
set-top box. Viewers also require a smart card for premium cable television services distributed via satellite. Except for the
premium HD+ service by SES Astra, satellite providers do not have any relationship with end customers in Germany and,
consequently, do not receive any subscription or other fees from them. If applicable, satellite customers are charged premium
subscription fees directly by the providers of such programs. Eutelsat, with its KabelKiosk pay-TV service, and Sky Deutschland,
with its premium subscription packages, also offer premium subscription packages to Professional Operators for wholesale
distribution as an alternative to our premium digital channels. In August 2011, Deutsche Telekom began bundling its DSL-based
broadband internet and fixed-line telephony services with a satellite-based video solution, targeting households in rural areas that
already have a satellite dish installed or are planning to install a satellite dish and where very high bit rate digital subscriber lines
(VDSL) or fiber-based bandwidth wireline capacity is not available with its existing network to broadcast linear content via IPTV.
This target market would expand Deutsche Telekom’s reach for its TV products to approximately 82% of all households in
Germany. Satellite may be heavily promoted in the future by Sky Deutschland or Deutsche Telekom, other content providers or
satellite operators by offering more attractive content, in particular premium and HD content.

Satellite’s main strengths compared to cable include: lower costs over time for consumers, given that the initial cost of
purchasing a satellite dish is offset by the absence of recurring subscription fees; satellite’s almost universal coverage across
Germany, including remote and rural areas where a cable connection is not available; and a broader offering of international
channels. We compete with satellite providers by offering customers an easily delivered triple-play bundle of services and
advanced services including VoD capability as our network is well suited for bi-directional high-speed data transfer. In addition,
satellite requires a large up-front commitment by the customer and there are limitations on satellite reception due to location or
external conditions, such as adverse weather conditions. In certain circumstances, restrictions set by zoning laws and contractual
arrangements with property owners prohibit the installation of a satellite dish. Applicable regulations, however, may change in
the future, and, as a result, competition with satellite providers may increase further.

Terrestrial (DVB-T). Another television delivery medium is DVB-T, which is available primarily in metropolitan areas.
Currently, the number of television channels that are transmitted via DVB-T in most areas in our footprint is limited to up to 24
(12 channels in Baden-Wiirttemberg). Similar to satellite, DVB-T does not allow for the provision of enhanced bi-directional
functionalities given the lack of a return path. A switch to DVB-T 2 technology, however, could increase the transmission capacity
and could increase the number of SD channels and allow HD offerings as well. The terrestrial transmission infrastructure is
owned and operated by Media Broadcast GmbH, and public broadcasters such as ARD and ZDF. According to a DVB-T
Uberallfernsehen 2010 press release, DVB-T can be received by more than 90% of all television households in Germany via
antenna. RTL has announced that it intends to cease its DVB-T distribution in Germany by the end of 2014. In order to receive
DVB-T, a consumer needs an antenna and a receiver, but the consumer is not required to pay any subscription fees. Demand for
digital terrestrial television may increase in the future as it becomes more widely available and the price of the receiving equipment
decreases.

Video and Television Distribution Over the Internet (IPTV). As a consequence of improvements in internet access and data
transmission technologies, in particular the upgrade of DSL to VDSL or fiber-to-the-home (FTTH), the internet is increasingly
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being used as a platform for the distribution of IPTV and VoD services. Deutsche Telekom introduced its IPTV offering for the
first time in 2006 and today is the leading provider of IPTV in Germany and also offers a VoD service. Deutsche Telekom has
reported 2.0 million video subscribers as of December 31, 2012, and has announced plans to target a total of 5 million customers
with its IPTV services by 2015. Vodafone D2 GmbH (Vodafone) is the second largest IPTV provider in Germany reporting
150,000 subscribers as of December 31, 2012 according to a press interview, followed by Telefonica Germany, with 57,000
reported subscribers as of December 31, 2012. Each of Deutsche Telekom, Vodafone and Telefonica Germany currently offers
IPTV services to their customers with broadband speeds of at least 3-6 Mbps. In order to provide IPTV services at a comparable
technical quality to cable, satellite and terrestrial TV offerings, Deutsche Telekom reports that it has rolled out VDSL across more
than 50 towns and cities throughout Germany and is rolling out or plans to roll-out FTTH in 29 smaller cities. We believe this
will allow Deutsche Telekom to offer IPTV services (including HD channels) to 48% of the homes passed by our network. This
penetration compares to the 36% VDSL coverage in Germany that Deutsche Telekom reported as of September 30, 2012. We
believe that Deutsche Telekom will focus more on IPTV in the next few years and we expect that it may double its VDSL footprint
by the end of 2015. We also believe that Deutsche Telekom could distribute IPTV to another estimated 25% of our homes passed
via asymmetric digital subscriber line 2+ (ADSL2+), but with significant technical limitations. In the future, we may also face
competition for video from over-the-top (OTT) content providers. These providers deliver television signals as video stream on
top of third parties’ broadband internet access services (including our network). OTT players (such as Sky Deutschland’s Sky
Anytime, ProSiebenSAT.1 group’s maxdome, Apple Inc.’s Apple TV and Amazon’s LOVEFIiLM International) are competitive,
especially for on-demand services. These services may become more popular, in particular among Germany’s younger
demographic.

Cable. Cabletelevision is the most commonly used transmission medium for television services in Germany, with a penetration
rate of approximately 48% of households as of June 2012 (Source: German Digitization Report, 2012). Approximately 70% of
German households are passed by cable networks as of December 31, 2012. Cable network services are characterized by easy-
to-use technology, efficient installation of customer equipment and reliability of a protected signal delivered directly to the home.
Unlike in the case of services provided via satellite platforms, cable television subscribers have the additional benefit of customer
services provided ensuring a point of contact with the cable service provider.

We face competition for housing association contracts from housing associations, municipal carriers, telecommunication
operators and Professional Operators. Professional Operators typically enter into long-term contracts with housing associations
and may have greater flexibility in their pricing strategies, which limits our opportunities to win new contracts or prolong existing
contracts with these housing associations and may hinder our efforts to effectively market our services to housing associations.
In 2011, Deutsche Telekom announced that it was seeking to provide video and broadband services to MDUs, and Deutsche
Telekom announced in December 2011 that it had entered into a contract with a large housing association. Deutsche Telekom
stated that under this contract it plans to connect 171,000 units throughout Germany to its fiber-based network and provide tenants
in these buildings with a full triple-play offering. It is expected that the initial units will be connected in the first quarter of 2013,
including certain of our video subscribers. In addition, in August 2012 Deutsche Telekom agreed with a Professional Operator
to provide its services to approximately 33,000 units in Hannover and surroundings (not in our footprint) beginning in April 2013.
We expect to experience more competition in the MDU market segment from Deutsche Telekom and alternative providers. In
addition, certain of the conditions our company agreed to in connection with the completion of the LGI/KBW Transaction will
increase competition with respect to the MDU market segment. See “—Regulatory—LGI/KBW Transaction Imposed Conditions.”

To strengthen our competitive position, we have enhanced our digital service with DVR functionality and HD services and
we offer CI+ modules as an alternative to set-top boxes when used with a smart card. In 2012, we increased the number of HD
channels available to up to 46 channels and realigned pricing for our bundled options. In addition, we expanded our VoD services
(including catch-up television). Mobile voice and data service is also available. The bundle options allow subscribers to select
various combinations of services to meet their needs. Promotional discounts are typically available to new subscribers. Also,
we plan to launch Horizon TV during 2013.

Broadband Internet Market

Germany is the largest internet market in Europe with an estimated 27.7 million fixed-line broadband internet subscribers as
of September 2012; compared to 23.5 million in France and 21.7 million in the UK (Source: Analysys Mason). Access lines with
speeds higher than 1 Mbps are generally classified as broadband internet. High speed access lines with speeds higher than 16
Mbps are growing rapidly from an estimated 0.5 million in 2007 to an estimated 2.6 million in 2011 (Source: Dialog Consult/
VATM, 2011). Cable is, in our view, well positioned to benefit from this speed migration (and additional future speed migrations)
as it allows customers to receive broadband internet with over 100 Mbps download speeds. The main broadband access line
technologies in Germany are DSL (including VDSL and ADSL2+) and cable.
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The broadband internet services business in Germany is highly competitive. We compete with companies that provide low-
speed and low-cost (or potentially even free) internet services over traditional telephone lines. For broadband internet access,
DSL is currently the dominant technology and the major DSL service provider in Germany is Deutsche Telekom with 12.4 million
broadband internet subscribers as of December 31, 2012. We estimate that Deutsche Telekom is able to offer its high-speed
product with up to 50 Mbps internet speed to 48% of the homes passed by our network, but is expected to increase this level over
time, in particular with respect to its VDSL footprint. On December 21, 2012, Deutsche Telekom filed an application with the
Federal Network Agency aiming to obtain a release from general access regulation to the unbundled local loop in order to introduce
vectoring technology to increase its broadband speeds to up to 100 Mbps for download and 40 Mbps for upload. In the event that
Deutsche Telekom is successful and is able to introduce vectoring technology, the competitiveness of Deutsche Telekom and
other competitors using this vectoring technology (via bit stream access agreements) will increase. Other major competitors in
the broadband internet market are resellers of Deutsche Telekom’s services, including United Internet AG, and alternative network
operators such as Vodafone and Telefénica Germany that lease the unbundled local loop from Deutsche Telekom or use other
forms to access Deutsche Telekom’s network. In addition, we face competition from local operators and city carriers, such as
NetCologne Gesellschaft mbH, (NetCologne) in regional clusters. Additional internet access technologies comprise FTTH and
fiber-to-the-building (FTTB) that are usually deployed in densely populated areas. NetCologne, for example, is rolling out FTTB
in the city of Cologne and Deutsche Telekom, as well as other local operators, in conjunction with municipal utility companies,
are increasingly rolling out fiber-based technologies in our markets.

Inaddition, mobile broadband services have been launched by mobile network operators such as Deutsche Telekom, Vodafone,
Royal KPN NV’s E-Plus Service GmbH & Co. KG (E-Plus) and Telefénica Germany. This market segment has experienced
strong growth. Although mobile broadband services generally offer speeds and capacities slower than cable and DSL/VDSL
operators, such network capabilities were enhanced by long-term evolution (LTE) network rollouts in 2012 which are expected
to continue during 2013 and beyond. Alternative technologies for internet access may develop and become competitive
alternatives, as well. Vodafone, for example, seems to focus more on LTE-based product offerings than fixed-line triple-play
offerings. Accordingly, we will continue to face additional competition and new technologies may force us to increase capital
expenditures to upgrade our system and provide additional products and services.

We believe we operate a network with superior technology, and that we can offer customers maximum upload and download
speeds at varying tiers of service tailored to the customer’s needs throughout our footprint. As a result of implementing
EuroDOCSIS 3.0, our network has the ability to deliver broadband speeds of 100 Mbps and beyond, which is at least twice the
speed of VDSL. In addition, our large video customer base provides a strong basis to up-sell our broadband internet service. We
also compete by selling value added services such as internet security packages and online back-up solutions.

Telephony Market

Fixed-line Phone. Deutsche Telekom dominates the fixed-line phone market with 22.4 million subscribers as of December
31,2012. Asaresult of deregulation, however, the market share of Deutsche Telekom has been decreasing both in terms of phone
lines and minutes sold since 1998.

The fixed-line phone market is increasingly under pressure from resellers, alternative carriers, declining mobile phone charges
and alternative access technologies such as VoIP services offered via DSL or other broadband internet connections such as cable
and other service providers such as Skype. The German market for phone services is typically price sensitive. We expect
competition, including price competition, from traditional and non-traditional fixed-line and mobile phone providers to continue.
In recent years, fixed-line phone calls have been transformed into a commodity and have become increasingly dependent on a
quality broadband offering, as phone is increasingly bundled with broadband internet services. Fixed-line telephony has
experienced significant price erosion over the last few years, with operators increasingly offering flat-rate products. We seek to
compete based on the speed of our network connections, pricing and product innovation. We also offer varying plans to meet
customer needs and various bundled service options with our digital video and broadband internet services.

Cable operators in Germany offer voice services generally as a flat rate product for domestic fixed-line calls with additional
charges for international and mobile calls. Voice services are offered both on a standalone basis and as part of a triple-play product
offering. The key factors differentiating the telephony offering of cable companies are its pricing and the fact that it is typically
integrated into product bundles. Furthermore, the bundling of services is an appealing value proposition for the customer, while
at the same time providing attractive economics to the cable operator. The basic cable TV subscriber base of German cable
operators is typically under penetrated with respect to broadband internet and VoIP offerings. This relative under-penetration of
German cable customers offers significant growth opportunities. In addition, telephony and internet products via cable can be
offered on an unbundled basis in order to target additional customers that do not also want to receive video services via cable or
do not need an internet connection.
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Mobile. There are four network operators in the German market: Deutsche Telekom, Vodafone, E-Plus and Telefonica
Germany. Each of these operators has its own mobile access network. Over recent years the mobile operators utilized their
networks by allowing MVNOs to sell their own branded mobile products. The German market has one of Europe’s most advanced
mobile service provider sectors, with Freenet AG’s mobilcom-debitel currently being the largest service provider. Discounters
and large retailers have also entered the market in cooperation with mobile operators and offer mobile voice and data services
under their own brands. The German market for mobile services is still growing, but price levels are decreasing and we expect
increasing competition, including price erosion.

Business Customers

In 2011, we began to actively offer specific products to meet the broadband internet and fixed-line phone needs of SOHO
and medium-sized enterprises. In our view, our main competitors in this business area include Deutsche Telekom, Vodafone, BT
(Germany) GmbH & Co. OHG, Verizon Deutschland GmbH, Colt Telecom GmbH, Telefénica Germany, QSC AG, Versatel AG
and NetCologne. In addition to our residential offerings, these product offerings include premium customer care hotline services
and several value-added services such as higher upload speeds and static internet protocol services.

Intellectual Property

The German Act on Copyright and Related Rights (Gesetz iiber Urheberrecht und verwandte Schutzrechte) generally requires
that the operators of cable networks pay royalties for the retransmission of certain radio and television programs. Claims for
these royalties can be asserted exclusively by the German copyright collecting societies (Verwertungsgesellschaften) and not by
the authors of such protected intellectual property themselves. Broadcasters have the choice, however, to assert their rights
individually or via a copyright collecting society. The Gesellschaft fiir musikalische Auffithrungs und mechanische
Vervielféltigungsrechte (GEMA), one of the German copyright collecting societies, has been mandated by most of the relevant
German copyright collecting societies to collect these royalties from the cable network operators. In addition, VG Media GmbH
(VG Media) was mandated by some German commercial broadcasters to assert their royalty claims based on their cable
retransmission rights. The amount of the royalties due is not provided for under the German Act on Copyright and Related Rights,
and GEMA and VG Media have in the past each asserted royalty amounts that we disputed.

We have agreements with GEMA (and other collecting societies and public broadcasters) and VG Media regarding the
payment of royalties for retransmission of television and radio programs. We entered into the agreement with GEMA in April
2009, and such agreement has a year-to-year term, subject to termination by either party at the end of such year. Under the
agreement, we pay GEMA an annual fee equal to 3.3% of our basic cable service revenue (as defined in the agreement with
GEMA and generally includes the revenue we generate from the delivery of free-to-air TV programs to video subscribers, but
excludes revenue we receive for premium or advanced services, or activation or equipment fees), subject to certain minimum
commitments. Our agreements with VG Media and RTL require us to pay an annual fee equal to 1.0% in the aggregate (0.64%
for VG Media and 0.36% for RTL) of our basic cable service revenue (as defined in the agreements with VG Media and RTL and
similar to the definition in the GEMA agreement), subject to minimum annual commitments. The VG Media agreement expires
in 2014 and the RTL agreement expires in 2015.

In addition, GEMA may demand fees under the German Act on Copyright and Related Rights regarding the distribution of
our premium subscription service. In December 2009, GEMA brought a claim against us in the Munich arbitration court of the
German Office for Patents and Trademarks for an indeterminate amount of fees relating to the distribution of our premium
channels. At this time, we are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation or estimate our potential liability. Under nearly all
of our current agreements with our suppliers of premium channels, we are indemnified for any payments we make to GEMA with
respect to such distribution.

We also pay a license fee to the applicable content providers for the premium channels we distribute. The license fee is
generally paid based on the number of subscribers to whom we make such programming available.
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Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may become involved in legal proceedings arising out of our operations in the normal course of
business. We believe the ultimate resolution of any of these existing contingencies would not likely have a material adverse effect
on our business, results of operations or financial condition. The outcome of legal proceedings, however, can be extremely
difficult to predict with certainty, and we can offer no assurances in this regard.

FCO Warning. On February 23, 2012, we received a warning letter from the FCO regarding a contract we had with the
housing association GAG, Cologne, based on a complaint made in 2010 by one of our competitors, NetCologne, alleging predatory
pricing by us. While not addressing the allegations of predatory pricing, the FCO indicated that the contract term of 10 years may
be an infringement of European and German antitrust laws and that the FCO is inclined to open a test case that could set a precedent
for all market participants. We disagree with the FCO’s assessment in this respect and will defend our interests vigorously, but
we can give no assurances that we will be successful in this regard. An adverse ruling with respect to this proceeding or a potential
test case could have a significant impact on our ability to secure long-term revenues, and could have a material adverse effect on
our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Deutsche Telekom Litigation. On December 28, 2012, we filed a lawsuit against Telekom Deutschland GmbH, an operating
subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom, in which we assert that we pay excessive prices for the co-use of Deutsche Telekom’s cable ducts
in our footprint. The Federal Network Agency approved rates for the co-use of certain ducts of Telekom Deutschland GmbH in
March 2011. Based in part on these approved rates, we are seeking a reduction of the annual lease fee (approximately €76 million
for 2012) by approximately two-thirds and the return of similarly calculated overpayments from 2009 through the ultimate
settlement date, plus accrued interest. The resolution of this matter may take several years and no assurance can be given that our
claims will be successful.

Rovi Corporation. In December 2009, Kabel BW received a cease and desist letter from Rovi Corporation (Rovi), a United
States company, claiming that the electronic program guide (EPG) Kabel BW provides to its customers infringes on patents held
by Gemstar TV Guide International, Inc., an affiliate of Rovi. Rovi demanded that Kabel BW disable the EPGs and claimed that
NDS Technologies France SAS, Kabel BW’s supplier of conditional access cards, is not permitted to provide a sublicense for
Rovi’s alleged rights. In November 2010, Rovi submitted a presentation to Kabel BW that asserted that Rovi holds a number of
patents registered in Europe with respect to certain functions of the EPG. On December 18, 2012, Rovi and UPC Broadband
Holding B.V., an affiliate of Kabel BW, entered into an amendment agreement to settle all potential claims of Rovi against Kabel
BW and to regulate our future license arrangements with Rovi.

Cartel Proceedings regarding Impermissible Pricing. On February 3, 2011, the Ministry of Economy of Baden-Wiirttemberg,
as competent anti-trust authority, initiated a proceeding to investigate an allegation of discrimination and predatory pricing that
had been made against our company by a Professional Operator in our KabelBW footprint. In connection with this proceeding,
we were ordered to disclose to the Ministry of Economy certain information regarding our standard signal delivery rates and the
rebates, benefits and refunds we offer to our housing association customers in our KabelBW footprint. While we believe these
allegations to be false and intend to defend our company and our business practices vigorously, we can provide no assurances
regarding the findings of the Ministry of Economy. If they find certain of these pricing mechanisms unlawful, we may, under
certain circumstances, be found liable for fines and damages or we may have to offer to enter into commitments that are capable
of dispelling the anticompetitive concerns raised against us.

DVR Set-Top Boxes. Pursuant to agreements we have with the suppliers of our DVR set-top boxes, we are responsible for
the payment of the copyright fees for such set-top boxes owed under German copyright law to a subsection of the collecting society
GEMA called ZPU. The tariffs applicable are subject to ongoing litigation between an association of set-top box manufacturers
and ZPU. We are unable to predict the outcome of this litigation or estimate our potential liability. Given the increasing number
of set-top boxes we deploy with DVR functionality, there is a risk that we may have to pay a considerably higher amount of these
copyright fees than the amount accrued.
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The agreements described below are of material importance to us or one of our operating subsidiaries as of December 31,
2012. Agreements entered into in the ordinary course of business are not described. For a description of our material financing
agreements, see ““Description of Indebtedness.” The summary of each agreement set forth below is a summary of the material
terms of such agreement as in effect as of the date of this annual report.

Material Supply Contracts

Unitymedia's Agreements with Deutsche Telekom. The various services offered by Deutsche Telekom are defined under so-
called “Term Sheets” that are based on two master service agreements (MSAs), one with our subsidiary Unitymedia Hessen and
one with our subsidiary Unitymedia NRW GmbH (Unitymedia NRW). The Term Sheets govern the co-use of cable ducts, the use
of cable protection tubes, the offer of co-use of further cable ducts, the use of fiber optic transmission systems, the lease of space
for broadband cable technology and the purchase of energy for broadband equipment. Except for the Term Sheets on the offer
for co-use of further cable ducts, which have already expired, the terms of the Term Sheets are generally indefinite, but the Term
Sheets are subject to certain termination rights and, according to German law, lease agreements are subject to a mandatory statutory
termination right of either party after a term of 30 years. Furthermore, under the MSAs and most of the Term Sheets Deutsche
Telekom is generally not entitled to terminate the services provided under the Term Sheets on co-use of cable ducts (not including
the offer of co-use of further cable ducts), cable protection tubes, fiber optic transmission systems or lease of space for broadband
cable technology. There are limited exceptions related to situations in which Deutsche Telekom discontinues the use of assets
previously used for the provision of the respective services, intends to transfer the assets to a third party or intends to abandon
leased space in its function as space used for technical purposes.

The charges for the individual services are set out in the Term Sheets. The MSAs include price adjustment clauses related to
a change of Deutsche Telekom’s costs. Under the MSA with Unitymedia NRW, price increases may not exceed the increase of
the German cost of living index and a decrease may not fall below the prices as of October 1, 2002 set out in the individual Term
Sheets. We have also entered into various other license, rental and operating lease agreements with Deutsche Telekom, all of
which are expensed as services are provided. In accordance with EU-IFRS, we treat these leases as operating rather than finance
leases.

The Kabel BW Group's Agreements with Deutsche Telekom. In July 2003, Kabel BW entered into a framework service
agreement with Deutsche Telekom and certain of its affiliates for the lease of cable duct space for a portion of Kabel BW’s cable
network as well as for fiber optic transmission capacity, tower and facility space and for other services. In addition, Kabel BW
purchases a portion of the electricity required for the operation of its network through Deutsche Telekom under such agreement.
The various services and assets provided by Deutsche Telekom are specified under so-called “Term Sheets” that are part of the
framework service agreement. The framework service agreement is a long-term contractual arrangement and has strict guidelines
regarding Deutsche Telekom’s ability to modify prices. The assets that are shared between Kabel BW’s network and that of
Deutsche Telekom include underground cable ducts used to house Deutsche Telekom’s phone network and our cable television
network, facilities which house Deutsche Telekom’s phone switches and our cable television headends, fiber optic systems used
to transmit both phone and cable television signals and electricity supplied to shared facilities. The term of the framework service
agreement is unlimited, and Deutsche Telekom is generally not entitled to terminate the services provided under the Term Sheets
on co-use of cable ducts (not including the offer of co-use of further cable ducts), cable protection tubes, fiber optic transmission
systems or lease of space for broadband cable technology, except under certain circumstances. Deutsche Telekom may terminate
the other services according to the applicable Term Sheets under certain circumstances. For example, if Deutsche Telekom decides
to discontinue using cable ducts carrying Kabel BW’s cables without replacing the ducts, it may terminate Kabel BW’s rights to
use such facilities. In addition, according to German law, lease agreements are subject to an ordinary termination right of either
party after a term of 30 years.

Furthermore, Kabel BW entered into an agreement with Deutsche Telekom for the lease of 862 MHz broadband cable systems
in June 2008 and several amendment agreements thereto. The agreements have a term until June 2018 and may be terminated by

Deutsche Telekom only for good cause (wichtiger Grund).

Forinformation on a legal action that we commenced against Deutsche Telekom in December 2012 regarding these agreements,
see “—Legal Proceedings.”
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Other Significant Supply Agreements

Sky Deutschland. On April 10, 2012, we entered into a new agreement with Sky Deutschland concerning the feed-in and
marketing of Sky Deutschland’s services, including its premium packages, VoD and pay-per-view services (““Sky Anytime”). This
new distribution agreement replaced the previous agreements our company had with Sky Deutschland. The agreement has a term
until December 31, 2015. We agreed to market Sky Deutschland’s packages on a standalone basis or in bundled offers together
with our services, based on a shared customer relationship. We have also agreed that we can market Sky Deutschland’s premium
packages such as the Bundesliga (German premier soccer league) in a bundle with our pay-TV packages. We and Sky Deutschland
have agreed that each party will maintain a direct contractual relationship with new customers receiving Sky Deutschland’s
programming in combination with our services. We are responsible for customer service, billing and collections for all triple-play
and related services and cover bad debt risk. Sky Deutschland must assign all claims against “bad payers” to us. As compensation
for our services rendered to Sky Deutschland (including feed-in and distribution), we receive both fixed service fees per subscriber
and a share of the revenue Sky Deutschland receives from the customers. In September 2012, we started to bundle Sky Deutschland’s
premium content with our own pay-TV packages and actively offer those bundles to existing and new subscribers in our Unitymedia
footprint.

Feed-in Agreements. We have entered into numerous feed-in agreements with public and commercial broadcasters for the
analog and/or digital nonpay and pay carriage of their signals. The most important feed-in agreements are with RTL and
ProSiebenSat.1, and, prior to December 31, 2012, the public broadcasters (ARD and ZDF). The feed-in agreements with the
commercial broadcasters have terms ranging from 2013 to 2017 and include distribution of HD channels and, to a certain extent,
cooperation arrangements with respect to premium channels and VoD services. Revenue from feed-in agreements accounted for
approximately 6% of our revenue during the three months ended December 31, 2012. During 2012, ARD and ZDF sent our
company notices purporting to terminate the feed-in agreements at the end of 2012. ARD and ZDF also announced that they do
not intend to pay any feed-in fees after January 1, 2013 and that they expect that their signals will continue to be distributed over
our networks based on existing must carry regulations, which apply to the majority of their TV and radio channels. We have
rejected the termination notices and are seeking to negotiate with ARD and ZDF to find an amicable solution. In December 2012,
we filed a claim against ARD and ZDF and intend to vigorously defend our existing business model regarding the feed-in of
content and related use of capacity in our network. In addition, some private broadcasters are seeking to change the distribution
model to eliminate the payment of carriage fees and instead require that cable operators pay license fees to broadcasters.

Bulk Agreements. Nearly two-thirds of our basic cable video RGUs reside in MDUs that are subject to bulk agreements with
landlords, housing associations or with Professional Operators, and the top 20 bulk agreements accounted for approximately 6%
of our total revenue (including estimated amounts billed directly by our company to the building occupants for premium digital
cable, broadband internet and telephony services) during the three months ended December 31, 2012. For these customers, our
contractual relationship is with a landlord, local housing association or Professional Operator, many of which own or represent
multiple buildings that house a large number of customers. In some cases, the bulk agreements allow us to sell digital video
(including our premium digital cable services), broadband internet and telephony services directly to individual tenants. Our bulk
agreements are, to a significant extent, medium and long-term contracts, although certain of these agreements are scheduled to
expire as early as 2013. In addition, in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction, we agreed to grant early termination rights
on certain agreements that our company has with the largest housing associations and which have a remaining term of more than
three years. For additional information concerning the commitments our company made to regulators in connection with the LGI/
KBW Transaction, see “Regulatory — LGI/KBW Transaction Imposed Conditions.” In addition, housing associations may
terminate such agreements prematurely if, for example, the agreements are deemed to violate antitrust laws or laws governing
general terms and conditions. There can be no assurance that we will be able to retain any of these customers or renew the contracts
on commercially favorable terms, if at all.

Intercompany Agreements with Liberty Global

We have various related-party transactions with certain of our and Liberty Global’s affiliates and with other Liberty Global
subsidiaries, including UPC Holding B.V. (UPC Holding). These related-party transactions are reflected in operating expenses,
allocated stock-based compensation expense, fees and allocations, net, interest expense, interest income and other income
(expense), net in the Unitymedia KabelBW Consolidated Financial Statements. For additional information, see note 16 to our
consolidated financial statements included in Part II of this report.
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Operating Expenses

Related-party operating expenses represent certain charges from other Liberty Global subsidiaries, including charges that
originate with UPC Holding, to our company primarily for (i) technology-related costs based on the global contract of another
Liberty Global subsidiary for encryption services and (ii) certain backbone costs. We recorded related-party operating expenses
of €12.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Allocated Stock-Based Compensation

Liberty Global allocates stock-based compensation to us associated with the Liberty Global stock incentive awards held by
certain employees of our subsidiaries. We recorded allocated stock-based compensation of €1.1 million during the year ended
December 31, 2012.

Fees and Allocations

Related-party fees and allocations represent charges that originate with UPC Holding and include charges for management,
finance, legal, technology, marketing and other services that support our company’s broadband communications operations. The
amounts charged generally are based on our company’s estimated share of the applicable costs (including personnel related and
other costs associated with the services provided) incurred by the other Liberty Global subsidiaries, plus a mark-up. The monthly
amounts charged are based on estimated costs that are reviewed and revised on an annual basis, with any differences between the
revised and estimated amounts recorded in the period identified. We recorded fees and allocations, net, of €53.7 million during
the year ended December 31, 2012.

Inaddition, in December 2012, UPC Operations B.V., asubsidiary of UPC Holding, entered into a sub-license license agreement
with UPC Germany and UPC Germany, in turn, entered into a sub-license agreement with Unitymedia KabelBW for the use the
UPC trademark through April 2,2017. The sub-license agreement between UPC Germany and Unitymedia KabelBW was effective
April 2, 2012 (the date of initial commercial use by Unitymedia KabelBW) and provides for an annual fee for the use of the UPC
trademark equal to 0.5% of Unitymedia KabelBW’s revenue (as defined in the sub-license agreement). A fee of €5.0 million for
the period from April 2, 2012 through December 31, 2012 was recorded during 2012. Sub-license fees are payable quarterly and
are to be loan settled unless otherwise determined by UPC Germany.

Interest Expense

Related-party interest expense relates to: (i) our 2010 Shareholder Loans and 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC Germany and
(ii) our loan with Unitymedia International GmbH (UMI). Accrued interest is transferred to the respective loan balance annually
on January 1 for the 2010 Shareholder Loans and the 2012 Shareholder Loan. For the loan with UMI, accrued interest may be,
at the option of UMI, (a) transferred to the loan balance annually on January 1 or (b) repaid on the last day of each month and on
the date of principal repayments. For additional information, see note 13 to our consolidated financial statements included in Part
II of this annual report. We recorded related-party interest expense of €98.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Share of Associate Gain

Share of associate gain relates to the gain received from the investment in UMI, as discussed below. We recorded share of
associated gain of €3.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Interest Income

Related-party interest income relates to the UPC Germany Loan Receivable, as discussed below. We recorded related-party
interest income of €1.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2012.

Property and Equipment Additions

Related-party property and equipment additions represent our additions of customer premises and network-related equipment
acquired from other Liberty Global subsidiaries, including UPC Holding. We recorded €22.1 million of these property and
equipment additions during the year ended December 31, 2012.
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UPC Germany Loan Receivable

We have a loan receivable with UPC Germany in the amount of €168.7 million. We can require the repayment of all or part
of the amount outstanding pursuant to this loan agreement within five-days of providing notice to UPC Germany. Amounts loaned
to UPC Germany pursuant to this agreement are subject to certain restrictions contained in the instruments governing Unitymedia
KabelBW’s indebtedness. The interest rate on this loan, which is subject to adjustment, was 2.22% as of December 31, 2012.
The net increase in the UPC Germany Loan Receivable during 2012 includes (i) cash loaned of €1,248.8 million, (ii) cash received
of €1,074.7 million, (iii) a €60.1 million non-cash decrease related to the settlement of amounts due under the 2010 Shareholder
Loans, (iv) €1.3 million of accrued interest on the loan receivable and (v) individually insignificant net non-cash decreases of €0.6
million.

Investment in Associate

Investment in associate represents amounts invested in UMI. UMI was formed for the purpose of effecting certain asset
purchase and related leasing transactions involving certain of UPC Holding’s subsidiaries, including certain purchase and leaseback
transactions that were initiated in December 2011. UMI is considered a special purpose entity and is consolidated by UPC Holding.
Although UPC Holding has no equity or voting interest in UMI, all of the revenue of UMI is derived from UPC Holding. As such,
UPC Holding is required by the provisions of EU-IFRS to consolidate UMI. As a result, we use the equity method to account for
our investment in UMI.

Shareholder Loans to UPC Germany
We have various shareholder loans to UPC Germany: (i) the 2010 Shareholder Loans and (ii) the 2012 Shareholder Loan.

2010 Shareholder Loans. The 2010 Shareholder Loans resulted primarily from: (i) transactions that were completed in
connection with the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction and (ii) fees and allocations charged from UPC Holding and other Liberty Global
subsidiaries. All principal and accrued interest (collectively €75.7 million at December 31, 2012) outstanding under these loans
is due and payable on January 1, 2030. The amounts outstanding under these loans bear interest at a weighted-average rate of
8.125% per annum. Accrued interest is transferred to the loan balances annually on January 1. The net increase in the principal
amount of these loans during 2012 includes: (a) cash borrowings of €856.8 million, (b) cash payments of €838.4 million, (c) the
conversion of €92.6 million to equity, (d) a €60.1 million non-cash decrease related to settlements against amounts outstanding
pursuant to the UPC Germany Loan Receivable (as defined and described in note 16), (e) the transfer of €13.9 million in non-
cash accrued interest to the loan balance and (f) a non-cash increase of €11.6 million related to the settlement of related-party
payables.

2012 Shareholder Loan. The 2012 Shareholder Loan resulted from a loan issued to UPC Germany in consideration for all
outstanding shares of UPC Germany Holdings transferred in connection with the KBW Fold-in. All principal and accrued interest
(collectively €1,309.7 million at December 31, 2012) outstanding under this loan is due and payable on December 31, 2025.
Interest accrues on the principal balance at 9.625% per annum, is subject to adjustment annually and will be transferred to the
loan balance on January 1 of each year. Amounts outstanding may be converted to equity at the option of UPC Germany.

Loan Payable to UMI

We have a subordinated loan payable to UMI, an entity that is consolidated by UPC Holding, as further described above. All
principal (€11.4 million at December 31,2012) outstanding under this loan is due and payable on December 31,2025. The principal
amount outstanding under this loan bears interest at an agreed upon rate that is subject to adjustment (10.000% per annum at
December 31, 2012). Accrued interest (€1.0 million at December 31, 2012) may be, at the option of UMI, (i) transferred to the
loan balance annually on January 1 or (ii) repaid on the last day of each month and on the date of principal repayments. The fair
value of this loan is not subject to reasonable estimation due to the related-party nature of the loan.

Third-Party Copyrights
We have certain agreements with GEMA and VG Media regarding the payment of royalties for the retransmission of television

and radio programs protected under the German Act on Copyright and Related Rights. For a description of these arrangements,
see ““‘Business — Intellectual Property.”
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Call Centers and Customer Services

On December 31, 2012, we transferred our Marburg customer service center to an external service provider as part of the
outsourcing of our call center capacity. In conjunction with the transfer, we entered into long-term agreements with this external
service provider to provide certain of our call center and customer service capacity. To a certain extent, we will rely on these
services with respect to customer care following the sale of our Marburg call center.
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REGULATORY

Our business is subject to various regulatory requirements and obligations including the telecommunications and media laws,
general antitrust law, as well as technical and other regulations. Relevant legislation imposes a variety of rules on us and other
market participants. Certain key provisions are set forth below. This description is not intended to be a comprehensive description
of all regulation in this area nor a review of specific obligations which have been imposed on us.

Telecommunications Regulation

The telecommunications business in Germany is subject to the regulatory regime of the German Telecommunications Act
and certain ordinances promulgated under the German Telecommunications Act. The German Telecommunications Act covers
the transport of any signal by telecommunications installations encompassing television signals, internet data transport and voice
telephony, all of which we provide.

The German regulatory framework is predominantly based on the EU regulatory framework. The body of EU law that deals
with communications regulation consists of a variety of legal instruments and policies (collectively referred to as the EU
Communications Regulatory Framework or Regulatory Framework). The key elements of the Regulatory Framework are various
directives that require member states of the EU (Member States), of which Germany is one, to harmonize their laws, as well as
certain regulations that have effect without any national transposition.

The Regulatory Framework primarily seeks to open European markets for communications services. It harmonizes the rules
for the establishment and operation of electronic communications networks, including cable television and traditional telephony
networks, and the offer of electronic communications services, such as telephony, internet and, to some degree, television services.
The Regulatory Framework does not generally address issues of content.

On December 18, 2009, the Official Journal of the EU published revisions to the Regulatory Framework. Implementation
of these revisions were carried out in May 2012. Generally, the changes to the Regulatory Framework are limited. Some changes
are institutional. For example, a new body of European regulators has been created. Also, new powers have been given to national
regulators. For example, the national regulators have rights to mandate access to ducts even on operators without significant
market power. There are also enhanced powers for Member States to impose quality of service requirements on internet service
providers. The revisions also strengthen the rights of the European Commission to participate in national regulatory procedures.
Other issues addressed by the revised Regulatory Framework include shortening the time to change the fixed or mobile telephone
provider to one day while keeping one’s old telephone number. Furthermore, the national telecoms’ authorities will have the
power to set minimum quality levels for network transmission services so as to promote the same quality of service irrespective
of the technology used and to prevent discrimination of services. Also, market definitions of the national regulators have to take
due account of geographic areas within each Member State. In addition, national regulators may order functional separation as
a last-resort remedy, requiring undertakings to place activities related to the wholesale provision of access products in an
independently operated business unit.

The Regulatory Body. The German Federal Network Agency (Bundesnetzagentur), an independent governmental body, is
inter alia responsible for the regulation of the German telecommunications market. The Federal Network Agency has various
powers with respect to the enforcement of telecommunications laws and ordinances. All decisions of the Federal Network Agency
may be challenged before the competent administrative court (Verwaltungsgericht) in Cologne and further appealed at higher
instances.

The Federal Network Agency informed us that the regulatory orders regulating the market for broadcasting transmission
services (former market 18) issued in 2007 and 2009 were repealed. As a consequence, broadcasting transmission services are
currently not subject to supervision by the Federal Network Agency but by the FCO under general competition law. However,
we cannot rule out that the Federal Network Agency restores the sector specific regulation for the market for broadcasting
transmission services by adopting a new market definition and market analysis and imposing new regulatory orders against us in
the future. In such event, the European Commission has the power to veto a finding by the Federal Network Agency of significant
market power (or the absence thereof). With respect to the commercial provision of (narrowband) phone services to end-customers
based on a self-operated fixed-line telecommunications network, we are deemed to have significant market power pursuant to
regulatory orders issued by the Federal Network Agency in 2009 with respect to market 3 (formerly market 9) regarding call
termination on individual public phone networks of alternative network operators provided at a fixed location. Pursuant to the
regulatory practice of the Federal Network Agency, fees we charge in this market were so far subject to ex-post regulation. In
addition, certain transparency and nondiscrimination requirements applied. On July 6,2012, the Federal Network Agency informed
us that they initiated a procedure against us to introduce ex-ante price regulation for the termination of inbound calls, but, on
September 12, 2012, we received written notice from the Federal Network Agency informing us that they will no longer pursue
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a preliminary ex-ante price regulation. We do, however, expect the Federal Network Agency to issue a comprehensive regulatory
order in the middle of 2013, under which our tariffs for call termination on our network will likely become subject to an ex-ante
approval requirement.

Notification Requirements. The German Telecommunications Act provides for an obligation to notify the Federal Network
Agency of the commencement, any modification and the termination of the operation of a public telecommunications network
and of the offering of telecommunications services to the public.

Interconnection and Access Obligations. Every operator of a public telecommunications network, irrespective of its market
position, is obligated upon request to offer interconnection with its network to other network operators. If the parties cannot agree
upon the conditions of such interconnection, the Federal Network Agency can impose on an operator that controls access to end
customers the obligation to provide interconnection and other access obligations upon application by one of the parties.

The regulatory powers of the Federal Network Agency are comprehensive vis-a-vis operators with “Significant Market
Power,” irrespective of their granting access to end customers. Based on a market analysis, the Federal Network Agency may
impose on operators of public telecommunications networks with “Significant Market Power” various obligations to interconnect
and to grant other undertakings access to their telecommunications networks for the provision of telecommunications services.

Regulation of Fees. Under the German Telecommunications Act, the fees for telecommunications access services offered
by providers can be subject to pricing regulation if significant market power has been determined or if the operator controls access
to end-users. The German Telecommunications Act distinguishes between fees that require prior regulatory approval (ex ante)
and those that are subject to an ex post review. The way in which fees are regulated is dependent on the possession of significant
market power as well as on the imposition of access obligations.

Allocation of Frequencies. In addition to the notification requirement mentioned above, in principle, a frequency allocation
by the Federal Network Agency used to be required for the use of frequencies in our cable network. Due to a change of the
German frequency allocation framework, the use of frequencies in our cable network is no longer subject to the German
Telecommunications Act and therefore does not require a frequency allocation by the Federal Network Agency. This is also
clarified by the recent amendment of the German Telecommunications Act. Even though no frequency allocation is required for
the operation of our cable network, its operation is subject to the German Electromagnetic Compatibility Act (Gesetz tiber die
elektromagnetische Vertrdglichkeit von Betriebsmitteln) and a complementary ordinance (Sicherheitsfunk-Schutzverordnung).

Rights of Way. Operators of public telecommunications networks that wish to use public streets, squares, bridges and public
waters for the laying and operating of telecommunications lines have to apply to the Federal Network Agency in order to obtain
the respective rights of way. In particular, the Federal Network Agency has to determine whether the applicant has demonstrated
sufficient professional expertise, reliability and financial capability to operate telecommunications lines. Both the installation of
new telecommunications lines and the modification of existing telecommunications lines also require the consent of the competent
road construction and maintenance authority. Due to amended provisions of the German Telecommunications Act, the Federal
Network Agency may require us, other operators of public telecommunications networks as well as other owners of ducts and
wirings to share certain in-house infrastructure.

Net neutrality. Inthe amendment to the German Telecommunications Act which entered into force in May 2012, the legislature
refrained from imposing any detailed net neutrality regulation. However, pursuant to a new section of the German
Telecommunications Act, the German government is empowered to release orders to ensure net neutrality in the future after
having consulted with the Bundestag and the Bundesrat.

Media Regulation

Regulation of the media falls within the legislative competence of the German federal states (Bundeslinder). The media
laws of all 16 federal states have been partially harmonized by the State Broadcasting Treaty (Rundfunkstaatsvertrag). The State
Broadcasting Treaty establishes the main framework of the German regulation of broadcast. In particular, it provides for a regime
designed to ensure that a diversity of opinions is secured in the mix of public and commercial radio and television channels and
their respective programming. The regime affects our ability to decide how to use our digital platform and therefore may impact
our business.

Nearly every German state has established its own independent regulatory body, the state media authority
(Landesmedienanstalt), for the regulation of the private broadcasting sector. The state media authorities are primarily responsible
for licensing and supervising of commercial broadcasters and the allocation of transmission capacities for radio and television
channels (must carry regulation as described below). They are also in charge of the regulation of carriage fees, conditional access
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systems, interfaces, electronic program guides/navigators, the bundling of programs and price regulation. Any decision of the
state media authorities can be challenged before the competent administrative courts.

Broadcasters have the right to file a complaint with the relevant state media authority in the event that cable network operators
refuse to carry their signals. The state media authorities are vested with the power to order the transmission of channels upon
receipt of such complaints, provided that the respective broadcaster’s programs enjoy a “must carry” status or that the network
has sufficient excess capacity. Whether or not a broadcaster, in particular one enjoying must carry status, is entitled to claim a
distribution directly from the cable network operator is unclear.

Allocation and Use of Transmission Capacities. The State Broadcasting Treaty sets forth the rules for the allocation and use
of digital transmission capacities and digital playout facilities for television channels. The allocation and use of analog cable
transmission capacities for both radio and television channels is governed by the laws of the respective states. The allocation
and use of digital transmission capacities for digital television and radio channels are, however, primarily governed by the must
carry rules of the State Broadcasting Treaty.

Regulations regarding the analog cable transmission of radio and television channels vary from state to state and cable network
operators are generally not free to allocate analog channels in their networks. Rather, the state media authorities make allocation
decisions regarding the programs that will be transmitted over the cable networks, in order to ensure a diversity of opinions in
the mix of channels and programming. In the analog range, the specific allocation of channels varies from state to state and rules
relating to the allocation of radio channels are usually less strict than those relating to television channels. The media law in the
states of North Rhine-Westphalia and Hesse require us to carry 25 and 30 analog television channels, respectively, and also limits
the possibility to convert these analog television channels into digital television channels.

In the digital range, the must carry obligations currently apply for the distribution of certain digital channels (up to a maximum
of one third of our digital bandwidth dedicated to broadcasting services). Practically speaking, one third of digital capacity is
must carry, one third is allocated to ensure diversity and one third is for the cable operator’s own choice.

Use of Conditional Access Systems. The operation of conditional access systems for television services is governed by both
the State Broadcasting Treaty and the German Telecommunications Act. The provisions in the State Broadcasting Treaty on
conditional access have been implemented by a specific bylaw on open access to digital services and on platform regulation
(Satzung iiber die Zugangsfreiheit zu digitalen Diensten und zur Plattformregulierung), which has been adopted by the state
media authorities. They provide general rules for the use of conditional access systems, interfaces, electronic program guides/
navigators and the bundling of programs, whereas the German Telecommunications Act contains specific provisions for conditional
access systems. Under these regulations, we must generally grant a diverse program offering and must not unfairly obstruct or
discriminate against broadcasters and other content providers. Sky Deutschland made a claim against us alleging discriminatory
treatment as to the provision of bandwidth and conditional access services. The Federal Network Agency, however, rejected Sky
Deutschland’s claim with respect to the bandwidth usage and it has not yet considered Sky Deutschland’s claim on conditional
access service.

Antitrust regulation

In addition to the regulation by the Federal Network Agency under the German Telecommunications Act, the FCO has powers
under the German Act against Restraints of Competition (Gesetz gegen Wettbewerbsbeschrinkungen) that prohibits the abuse of
amarket-dominant position as well as the distortion of competition through agreements or collusive behavior by market participants.
Similar powers are vested with the European Commission.

If the FCO or the European Commission determine that a company has a dominant position in a relevant market or distorts
competition through agreements or collusive behavior, the competent authority is entitled to prohibit such practices and to impose
various punitive measures, including fines or disgorgement of profits generated by such behavior. In addition, third parties may
initiate civil proceedings against companies that willfully or negligently violate provisions of the German Act against Restraints
of Competition to obtain compensation for damages suffered, provided that these provisions were intended to protect the interests
of such third parties.
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LGI/KBW Transaction Imposed Conditions

The LGI/KBW Transaction was subject to the approval of the FCO in Germany, which approval was received in December
2011, upon final agreement of certain commitments we made to address the competition concerns of the FCO, as outlined below:

*  We committed to the distribution of basic digital television channels (as opposed to channels marketed in premium
subscription packages) on our entire network in unencrypted form commencing January 1, 2013. This commitment
generally covers free-to-air television channels in SD and HD and is consistent with the practice that had been adopted
by KBW prior to the LGI/KBW Transaction. If, however, free-to-air television broadcasters request their HD content
to be distributed in an encrypted HD package, the encryption of free-to-air HD channels is still possible. In addition,
we made a commitment that, through December 31, 2016, the annual carriage fees we receive for each such free-to-air
television channel distributed in digital or simulcast in digital and analog would not exceed a specified annual amount,
determined by applying our applicable rate card systems as of January 1, 2012;

»  Effective January 1, 2012, we waived exclusivity rights in access agreements with housing associations with respect to
the usage of infrastructures other than our in-building distribution networks to provide television, broadband internet or
telephony services within the building;

»  Effective January 1, 2012, upon expiration of the minimum term of an access agreement with a housing association, we
will transfer the ownership rights to the in-building distribution network to the building owner or other party granting
access. In addition, we waived the rights to remove in-building distribution networks; and

*  Aspecial early termination right was granted with respect to certain of our existing access agreements (the Remedy HA
Agreements) with the largest housing associations that cover more than 800 dwelling units and which had a remaining
term of more than three years as of December 15, 2011. The total number of dwelling units covered by the Remedy HA
Agreements was approximately 340,000 as of December 15, 2011. The special termination right may be exercised on
or before September 30 of each calendar year up to the expiration of the current contract term, with termination effective
as of January 1 or July 1 of the following year. If the special termination right is exercised, compensation will be paid
to partially reimburse our company for unamortized investments in modernizing the in-building network based on an
agreed formula. To the extent we are successful in obtaining renewals of the Remedy HA Agreements, we expect that
these renewed contracts will contain pricing and other provisions that are somewhat less favorable to our company than
those in previous agreements. At December 31, 2012, approximately 40% of the dwelling units covered by the Remedy
HA Agreements remain subject to the special termination right.

In January 2012, two of our competitors, including the incumbent telecommunications operator, each filed an appeal against
the FCO regarding its decision to approve the LGI/KBW Transaction. We believe that the FCO’s decision will ultimately be
upheld and we currently intend to support the FCO in defending the decision. In addition, we do not expect that the filing of
these appeals will have any impact on the ongoing integration and development of our operations. The ultimate resolution of
this matter is expected to take up to four years, including the appeals process.

The FCO is investigating customary practices regarding the duration of contracts with MDUs for analog television services,
including with respect to one such contract that the FCO had previously identified between our company and a landlord as potentially
being subject to amendment by order. The FCO indicated that the contract term of 10 years may be an infringement of European
and German antitrust laws and that it is inclined to open a test case that could set a precedent for all (or almost all) market
participants. We cannot predict the outcome of these FCO proceedings, however, any FCO decision that would limit the duration
of our contracts with MDUs could have a material adverse impact on the financial condition and results of operations of our
company.
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DESCRIPTION OF INDEBTEDNESS

Set forth below is a summary of our outstanding indebtedness as of December 31, 2012, and of the material terms of the
agreements and arrangements governing such indebtedness as of such date. For information concerning a financing transaction
completed subsequent to December 31, 2012, see note 19 to our consolidated financial statements included in Part II of this report.
The capitalized terms used but not defined below have been defined in the notes to our consolidated financial statements included
in Part II of this annual report.

Introduction

Unitymedia KabelBW Notes and KBW Notes

Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange, Special Optional Redemptions, and KBW Fold-in. In March 2011, certain members of the
Kabel BW Group issued the KBW Notes, the net proceeds from which were primarily used to repay the Kabel BW Group’s then
existing debt and to settle the interest rate swap contracts associated with the bank loans (the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing).
The KBW Notes consisted of (i) UPC Germany HC1’s €680.0 million principal amount of 9.5% senior notes due 2021 (the KBW
Senior Notes) and (ii) KBW’s (a) €800.0 million principal amount of 7.5% senior secured notes due 2019 (the KBW Euro Senior
Secured Notes), (b) $500.0 million (€378.9 million) principal amount of 7.5% senior secured notes due 2019 (the KBW Dollar
Senior Secured Notes and together with the KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes, the KBW Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes) and
(c) €420.0 million principal amount of senior secured floating rate notes due 2018 (the KBW Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes
and together with the KBW Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes, the KBW Senior Secured Notes).

In May 2012, we completed (i) the exchange (the Unitymedia Kabe]lBW Exchange) of (a) 90.9% of the outstanding principal
amount of the KBW Senior Notes for an equal amount of UM Senior Exchange Notes (as defined and described below) and (b)
92.5% of the outstanding principal amount of the KBW Senior Secured Notes for an equal amount of UM Senior Secured Exchange
Notes (as defined and described below), (ii) the redemption (the Special Optional Redemptions) of the remaining KBW Notes
that were not exchanged pursuant to the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange and (iii) the KBW Fold-in. The redemption price with
respect to the Special Optional Redemptions was 101% of the applicable principal amount thereof, and such redemptions were
initially funded with borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility and the New Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility, each as defined and described below. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss of
€1.1 million representing the difference between the carrying value and redemption price of the debt redeemed pursuant to the
Special Optional Redemptions and portions of the notional amounts of the derivative instruments that were originally entered into
by the Kabel BW Group in connection with the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing were transferred to Unitymedia Hessen and
the remaining notional amounts were canceled.

The details of (i) the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange and (ii) the Special Optional Redemptions are as follows:

OQutstanding principal Principal amount Principal amount
amount prior to the exchanged pursuant to the redeemed pursuant to the
Unitymedia KabelBW Unitymedia KabelBW Special Optional
Exchange Exchange Redemptions
Borrowing Euro Borrowing Euro Borrowing Euro
KBW Notes currency equivalent(a) currency equivalent(a) currency equivalent (a)

in millions

KBW Senior Notes (b) .....cccceerveerreennnnn. € 680.0 € 680.0 € 618.0 € 618.0 € 620 € 62.0

KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes (¢)...... € 800.0 800.0 € 735.1 735.1 € 64.9 64.9

KBW Dollar Senior Secured Notes (d)... $  500.0 3820 $§ 4593 3509 $ 40.7 31.1
KBW Senior Secured Floating Rate

NOES (€)revevevereerererereeeeeererereserereseeenas € 4200 4200 € 3959 3959 € 241 24.1

€ 22820 €  2,099.9 € 182.1

(a)  Translations are calculated as of the May 4, 2012 transaction date.

(b)  The KBW Senior Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 9.5% senior notes issued
by Unitymedia KabelBW due March 15, 2021 (the UM Senior Exchange Notes). Interest is payable semi-annually on
March 15 and September 15.
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(¢)  The KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 7.5% senior
secured notes issued by Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW (together, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers) due
March 15, 2019 (the UM Euro Senior Secured Exchange Notes). Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and
September 15.

(d)  The KBW Dollar Senior Secured Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 7.5% senior
secured notes issued by the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers due March 15,2019 (the UM Dollar Senior Secured Exchange
Notes and, together with the UM Euro Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange
Notes). Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15.

(e) The KBW Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of
senior secured floating rate notes issued by the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers due March 15, 2018 (the UM Senior
Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes and, together with the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes, the UM
Senior Secured Exchange Notes). The UM Senior Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes bear interest at a rate of EURIBOR
plus 4.25% and interest is payable quarterly on March 15, June 15, September 15 and December 15. We refer to the UM
Senior Exchange Notes and the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes collectively as the “UM Exchange Notes.”

September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. On September 19, 2012, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €650.0
million principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due September 15, 2022 (the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes).
The net proceeds from the issuance of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to redeem in full the UM Senior
Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes at a redemption price of 101%, with the remaining €241.8 million available for general
corporate purposes. During the third quarter of 2012, we recognized losses on debt extinguishment of €8.6 million representing
the difference between the carrying value and redemption price of the debt redeemed.

December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. On December 14, 2012, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued $1.0 billion
(€757.7 million) principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due January 15, 2023 (the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior
Secured Notes) and €500.0 million principal amount of 5.75% senior secured notes due January 15, 2023 (the December 2012
UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, and together with the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes, the December 2012 UM
Senior Secured Notes), each at par. The net proceeds from the issuance of the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes were
used to purchase and redeem (i) all of the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes (as defined and described below) and (ii) €524.0
million of the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes (as defined and described below). During the fourth quarter of 2012, we
recognized losses on debt extinguishment of €133.7 million including a loss of (a) €95.9 million representing the difference between
the principal amount and redemption price of the debt redeemed and (b) €37.8 million associated with the write-off of deferred
financing costs and an unamortized discount.

2009 UM Notes and the Unitymedia Debt Pushdown. In November 2009, Unitymedia KabelBW issued (i) €1,430.0 million
principal amount of 8.125% senior secured notes (the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes) at an issue price of 97.844%, (ii)
$845.0 million (€640.3 million) principal amount of 8.125% senior secured notes (the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes and
together with the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, the 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes) at an issue price of 97.844% and
(ii1) €665.0 million principal amount of 9.625% senior notes (the 2009 UM Senior Notes and together with the 2009 UM Senior
Secured Notes, the 2009 UM Notes) at an issue price of 97.652%. Interest payments for the 2009 UM Notes are made semi-
annually on June 1 and December 1. The net proceeds from the sale of the 2009 UM Notes (€2,541.0 million at the transaction
date in 2009) were placed into two escrow accounts. On January 28, 2010, we used €849.2 million of cash from the escrow
accounts to fund a portion of the Old Unitymedia Purchase Price (see note 5 to our consolidated financial statements included in
Part II of this annual report). On March 2, 2010, (a) the remaining balances in the escrow accounts were released in connection
with the repayment of Old Unitymedia’s then-existing indebtedness (the Old Indebtedness), (b) the obligations under the 2009
UM Euro Senior Secured Notes and the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes were assumed by Unitymedia Hessen and
Unitymedia NRW and (c) the obligations under the 2009 UM Senior Notes were assumed by Old Unitymedia (collectively, the
Unitymedia Debt Pushdown). Additionally, Old Unitymedia’s existing undrawn €130.0 million revolving credit facility was
canceled. Accrued interest on the Old Indebtedness of €12.8 million in the aggregate was also paid. Old Unitymedia used
approximately €198.0 million of its existing cash to repay a portion of the Old Indebtedness. The remainder was repaid by utilizing
the escrow cash from the 2009 UM Notes debt offering. Old Unitymedia was merged into Unitymedia KabelBW in September
2010.

We refer to the 2009 UM Notes, the UM Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December
2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, collectively as the “Unitymedia KabelBW Notes.”

The 2009 UM Senior Notes and the UM Senior Exchange Notes are senior obligations of Unitymedia KabelBW that rank
equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of Unitymedia KabelBW and are senior to all existing and future subordinated
debt of Unitymedia KabelBW. The 2009 UM Senior Notes and the UM Senior Exchange Notes are secured by a first-ranking
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pledge over the shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and junior-priority share pledges and other asset security of certain subsidiaries
of Unitymedia KabelBW.

The 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes
and the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes are (i) senior obligations of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers that rank
equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of each UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer and are senior to all existing and
future subordinated debt of each of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and (ii) are secured by a first-ranking pledge over the
shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and certain other share and/or asset security of Unitymedia
KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries.

The Unitymedia KabelBW Notes contain customary incurrence-based covenants. For example, the ability to raise certain
additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of Liberty Global is subject to a Consolidated Leverage
Ratio test, as defined in the applicable indenture. The Unitymedia KabelBW Notes provide that any failure to pay principal prior
to expiration of any applicable grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other indebtedness of €25.0 million or more in
the aggregate of Unitymedia KabelBW or a UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer or any of the Restricted Subsidiaries (as defined in
the applicable indenture) is an event of default under the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the 2009 UM Senior Notes are non-callable until December 1, 2014, the UM
Senior Exchange Notes are non-callable until March 15,2016, the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes are non-callable
until March 15, 2015, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until September 15, 2017 and the December
2012 UM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2018.

At any time prior to December 1, 2014 in the case of the 2009 UM Senior Notes, March 15, 2016, in the case of the UM
Senior Exchange Notes, March 15, 2015, in the case of the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes, September 15,2017,
in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and January 15, 2018, in the case of the December 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes, Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the
UM Senior Exchange Notes, the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes
or the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes (as applicable) by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value
ofall remaining scheduled interest payments to the redemption date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture)
as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the Unitymedia
KabelBW Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid
interest and Additional Amounts (as defined in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed
during the twelve-month period commencing on December 1, in the case of the 2009 UM Senior Notes and the 2009 UM Senior
Secured Notes, March 15, in the case of the UM Senior Exchange Notes and the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes,
September 15, in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, or January 15, in the case of the December 2012 UM
Senior Secured Notes of the years set forth below:

Redemption Price

UM Senior December December
2009 2009 Secured September 2012 2012
UM UM Senior UM Senior Fixed Rate 2012 UM Dollar UM Euro
Senior Secured Exchange Exchange UM Senior Senior Senior
Year Notes Notes Notes Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes
2013 e N.A. 104.063% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2014 .o 104.813% 102.031% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2015 . 103.208% 100.000% N.A. 103.750% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2016 ..o 101.604% 100.000% 104.750% 101.875% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2017 e 100.000% 100.000% 103.167% 100.000% 102.750% N.A. N.A.
10 ] S 100.000% N.A. 101.583% 100.000% 101.833% 102.750% 102.875%
2019 oo 100.000% N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.917% 101.833% 101.917%
2020 ... N.A. N.A. 100.000% N.A. 100.000% 100.917% 100.958%
2021 and thereafter.... N.A. N.A. 100.000% N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%
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In addition, at any time prior to September 15, 2015 in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes or January
15, 2016 in the case of the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers may redeem up to
40% of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes or the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes (at redemption prices of
105.500% in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes
and 105.750% in the case of the December 2012 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes) with the net proceeds from one or more specified
equity offerings.

KBW and its immediate parent (collectively, the New UM Guarantors) have granted, in addition to guarantees provided by
Unitymedia KabelBW and/or certain of its subsidiaries, as applicable, of the 2009 UM Senior Notes and the 2009 UM Senior
Secured Notes, a senior guarantee of the 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes and a senior subordinated guarantee of the 2009 UM
Senior Notes. The New UM Guarantors have also granted a senior subordinated guarantee of the UM Senior Exchange Notes
and a senior guarantee of the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December
2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. In addition, the New UM Guarantors have provided certain share and asset security in favor of
the 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and
the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes.

Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem all of the Unitymedia KabelBW
Notes at prices equal to their respective principal amounts, plus accrued and unpaid interest, upon the occurrence of certain changes
in tax law. If Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) or certain of Unitymedia KabelBW’s
subsidiaries sell certain assets or experience specific changes in control, Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes
Issuers (as applicable) must offer to repurchase the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities

On May 1, 2012, Unitymedia Hessen entered into a €312.5 million secured revolving credit facility agreement with certain
lenders (the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility). On August 28,2012, the New Unitymedia Kabe]IBW Revolving
Credit Facility was increased to €337.5 million. The interest rate for the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility is
EURIBOR plus a margin of 3.25%. Borrowings under the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility mature on June
30, 2017. The New Unitymedia KabeIBW Revolving Credit Facility provides for an annual commitment fee of 1.25% on the
unused portion. Also, on May 1,2012, Unitymedia KabelBW’s existing €80.0 million secured revolving credit facility agreement
with certain lenders (the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility and together with the New Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility, the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities) was amended whereby the maturity date was
extended to June 30, 2017 and the interest rate was reduced to EURIBOR plus a margin of 2.50%. The Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility is senior to (i) the 2009 UM Notes, (ii) the UM Exchange Notes, (iii) the September 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes, (iv) the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and (v) the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit
Facility. The Unitymedia KabeIBW Revolving Credit Facility provides for an annual commitment fee of 1.00% on the unused
portion. In connection with the Special Optional Redemptions (i) the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility was drawn
in full and (ii) borrowings of €105.0 million were drawn against the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility. Such
borrowings were repaid during the second quarter of 2012. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities may be used
for general corporate and working capital purposes.

In addition to customary restrictive covenants and events of default, the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities
require compliance with a Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as defined in the applicable facility. The Unitymedia KabeIBW Revolving
Credit Facilities are secured by a pledge over the shares of the borrower and certain other asset security of certain subsidiaries of
Unitymedia KabelBW.
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MANAGEMENT

The ultimate authority within Unitymedia KabelBW vests with UPC Germany, as our sole shareholder. UPC Germany is, in
turn, indirectly controlled by Liberty Global. All fundamental decisions regarding Unitymedia KabelBW are reserved for the
decision of the sharecholders’ meeting, including, but not limited to, the following:

* instructions to the managing directors;

» appointment and removal of managing directors;

» granting of discharge from liabilities to the managing directors;

*  determination of annual financial statements and distribution of profits;

* measures in connection with monitoring and supervising managing directors;

» amendments of the articles of incorporation;

+ fundamental structural changes (e.g., mergers, a conversion or a splitting of the company); and

» consent to the conclusion of a domination or profit and loss absorption agreement.

Unitymedia KabelBW may expand the authority of the shareholders’ meeting. In accordance with German corporate law,
we are managed by our Managing Directors (Geschdftsfiihrer). Responsibilities for operations are delegated to members of senior
management. After the KBW Fold-in, the Unitymedia KabelBW entities employ more than 2,000 employees. Consequently, the
German Co-Determination Act (Mitbestimmungsgesetz) applies and requires the implementation of a supervisory board for the
German holding company of the Unitymedia KabelBW entities with twelve members, six of which will be shareholder
representatives, while the remaining six members will be employee representatives. This supervisory board will be implemented
through a so called status proceeding (Statusverfahren). The implementation of such a supervisory board will change the corporate
governance of the relevant legal entity, as, for example, the supervisory board would be competent for the appointment and removal
of the managing directors. The implementation process is currently ongoing.

Managing Directors

The Managing Directors are responsible for the day-to-day management of the business. Our Managing Directors and the
Managing Directors of each of our subsidiaries are appointed at a shareholders’ meeting for each company. Such Managing
Directors may also be removed at the applicable shareholders’ meeting. The Managing Directors are obligated to report regularly
to the applicable shareholders’ meeting or partners’ meeting, as the case may be, on the business activities and strategy of the
applicable company, and the shareholders or partners, as the case may be, may request additional reports at any time. The Managing
Directors must obtain prior approval from the shareholders or partners, as the case may be, with respect to certain material matters,
but the shareholders or partners, as the case may be, are generally not entitled to assume management functions or interfere with
the day-to-day management of the business.

As of December 31, 2012, we had five Managing Directors as set forth below. Effective January 31, 2013, Uwe Barmann
resigned as a Managing Director.

Year First
Name Age Position Appointed
LUtZ SCRTIET ..ottt b et te s e ereesbessaessesneas 45  Managing Director 2011
DI, Herbert LeifKeT......ocviiuieiiiiecieeteeeeeeeeie ettt ettt eae e eaeeaeas 59  Managing Director 2005
JENS MULLET ...ttt eb et 41  Managing Director 2010
JON GAITISOM ...ttt ettt et ettt e et e ebe e b e teeaseeseeseeseeseeseenseeneas 37  Managing Director 2010
UWE BAIMMANI ......oiviiiiiiicicciccieeeeseeeee ettt ettt ess et sb e ts e e esaesbeessaseenns 51 Managing Director 2012

e Lutz Schiiler was appointed our Chief Executive Officer in January 2011. Mr. Schiiler has significant experience in the
German telecommunications market, with many years of strategic and operational experience and extensive experience
in marketing, sales and operations across a wide range of products. He has served in several senior management roles
with Telefonica Germany since 1998, lastly leading the integration of Hansenet Telekommunication GmbH as its CEO
in Hamburg, when it was acquired by Telefonica Germany in early 2010. From 2006 to 2010, he was Managing Director,
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Marketing & Sales for Telefonica Germany. Before joining Telefonica Germany in 1998, he worked as product manager
with VIAG Interkom GmbH and T-Mobile. After an apprenticeship in a German bank, Mr. Schiiler studied business
administration at the University of Augsburg and holds a masters degree in business administration.

Dr. Herbert Leifker has been our (or Old Unitymedia’s) Chief Commercial Officer since 2005, following the Tele
Columbus acquisition. With over 20 years’ cable experience in Germany, Dr. Leifker has a deep understanding of the
industry and strong long-term relationships with the housing industry. This has allowed Unitymedia KabelBW to pioneer
new co-operation models such as the ““Multimedia-Anschluss” that have now become standard in the housing industry.
He was previously Managing Director and CEO of Tele Columbus, which he led for 15 years, growing it from a start-
up to Germany’s largest operator of in-home networks. He began his career with an auditing company and in the banking
industry, where he held responsibility as a divisional manager of a savings bank. Dr. Leifker studied Law and Business
Studies in Miinster and Hamburg and holds a doctorate in Law.

Jens Miiller has been our Senior Vice President Finance Operations and Co-CFO since July 2010. He is responsible for
our finance operations, including controlling, billing, collection and procurement. Before his current role as Senior Vice
President Finance Operations and Co-CFO, Mr. Miiller held various senior positions within our finance department as
well as in the predecessor company ish NRW. Prior to joining ish NRW in 2001, Mr. Miiller worked at several companies
in the telecommunications and internet commerce industry. Mr. Miiller studied economics and business administration
at the universities Bochum and Helsinki.

Jon Garrison has been our Senior Vice President Accounting and Co-CFO since August 2010. He is responsible for our
accounting, tax, treasury, investor relations, corporate development and compliance operations. Before his current role
as Senior Vice President Accounting and Co-CFO, Mr. Garrison was Vice President of Technical Accounting for Liberty
Global Europe Holding B.V. In this role, Mr. Garrison was responsible for accounting policy throughout Europe and he
assisted regularly in due diligence, transaction structuring, and financial integration of acquisitions. Prior to joining
Liberty Global in 2005, Mr. Garrison was a public accountant at Deloitte LLP within a variety of industries in the United
States and in England. Mr. Garrison obtained his masters in accountancy at the University of Denver.

Uwe Béirmann was our Chief Technology Officer from July 2012 through January 2013. He was a member of the Kabel
BW Management Board from 2007, where he held the position of Chief Technology Officer from 2003. Previously he
was Service Assurance Manager for Colt Telecom GmbH and Senior Project Manager for Colt Telecom Logistics. He
started his career as Development Engineer for ANT Nachrichtentechnik. Mr. Bérmann studied Electrical and
Telecommunication Engineering at the University of Applied Sciences in Diisseldorf and holds a masters degree in
engineering.

The business address of all the Managing Directors named above is Aachener Str. 746-750, 50933 Cologne, Germany.
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CORPORATE GROUP STRUCTURE AND OTHER

The following diagram sets forth a simplified summary of our corporate structure as of December 31, 2012.

Liberty Global, Ine.

l 100 %

Intermediate Holding
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Unitymedia Hessen
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CGmbH & Co. KG

F Y
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Unitymedia Unitymedia UPC Germany
International NEW New(Co
GmbH? CGmbH GmbH

100 %
100 % l 100 %
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GmbH GmbH GmbE
100 % l
Arena Sport Rechte
& Marketing
GmbH

! Unitymedia Hessen Verwaltung GmbH is the general partner of Unitymedia Hessen GmbH & Co. KG.

I Not consolidated.
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Employees
As of December 31, 2012, Unitymedia KabelBW, including its consolidated subsidiaries, had an aggregate of approximately

2,400 full time equivalent employees. We also use contract and temporary employees, which are not included in this number, for
various projects. We believe that our relations with employees, works councils and unions are good.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Translation)

The following auditor’s report (Bestitigungsvermerk) has been issued in accordance with § 322 German Commercial Code
(Handelsgesetzbuch) in German language on the German version of the consolidated financial statements of Unitymedia KabelBW
GmbH as of and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 and the group management report. The group management report
is not included here. The management discussion & analysis was not subject to the audit.

“Independent Auditor’s Report

We have audited the consolidated financial statements prepared by Unitymedia KabelBW GmbH (until August 8, 2012,
Unitymedia GmbH), Cologne, comprising the consolidated balance sheets, the consolidated statements of operations, the
consolidated statements of changes in shareholder’s equity (deficit), the consolidated statements of cash flows and the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, together with the group management report for the business year from January 1, 2012 to
December 31, 2012. The preparation of the consolidated financial statements and the group management report in accordance
with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a I HGB
(Handelsgesetzbuch “German Commercial Code”) are the responsibility of the parent company’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and on the group management report based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with § 317 HGB and German generally accepted
standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated by the Institut der Wirtschaftspriifer Institute of Public Auditors in
Germany (IDW). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstatements materially affecting the
presentation of the net assets, financial position and results of operations in the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework and in the group management report are detected with reasonable assurance.
Knowledge of the business activities and the economic and legal environment of the Group and expectations as to possible
misstatements are taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal
control system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the consolidated financial statements and the group management
report are examined primarily on a test basis within the framework of the audit. The audit includes assessing the annual financial
statements of those entities included in consolidation, the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, the accounting
and consolidation principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements and group management report. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Our audit has not led to any reservations.

In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consolidated financial statements comply with IFRS, as adopted by the
EU, and the additional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to § 315a I HGB and give a true and fair view of the net
assets, financial position and results of operations of Unitymedia KabelBW GmbH (until August 8, 2012, Unitymedia GmbH) in
accordance with these requirements. The group management report is consistent with the consolidated financial statements and
as a whole provides a suitable view of the Group’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and risks of future development.”

Diisseldorf, March 20, 2013

KPMG AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft

Original German version signed by:
Wallraf Nolgen

Wirtschaftspriifer Wirtschaftspriifer
German Public Auditor ~ German Public Auditor
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eqUIVALENLS ...........cieciirieiiieieii ettt ettt ss e re s e reesaeseeesesseeseeseas
Trade receivables and unbilled revenue, net (NOt€ 9)........ccueeveiivieiiiiieiiciecieeeeeeeee e
Loan receivable - related-party (NOTE 160) .........cceevuiiieriiiieriieierieeiesteee ettt sae e saeeneas
Other CUITent aSSELS (TOTE ) ....c..icvieurierieiiereeeteeteecte et eete et e eteeeeeteeeeete e s e eteeaseeseeseeseeseereeeseeseeaseeseas

TOtAl CUITENE ASSEES.....eeiuveiiieeieeeeeieeeeteeeete e e et e e et e e et eeaeeeeeaaeeeenaeeseseeessaseeeanseeesnneeesnsaeesnsseeesnnes

Property and equipment, NEt (NOTE 8) ......cceevvieieriiiieiiieieitieteeteere ettt te e e sre e e esaesbeesaesaeessesseens
GOOAWIIL (TIOTE 8) .vveitieeiiete ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e te et e eaeebeeteeeseeaaeeteensesbeensesssensenreens
Intangible assets subject to amortization, Net (NOLE 8) ........cccevievvieieriieieiieiere et eeens
Investment in aSSOCIALE (NOTE 160) .....cueivuiiiiiiieieiiiciecie ettt ettt ettt ettt eve e re et e ereeasesaeeaseereens
Other noncurrent assets (N0tes 6, 9 and 10) ..........ccooieiiiieiiiiiieieeeeieeeee et seeens

TOtAl NONCUITENE ASSELS.....cueveeiiveeiiteerireeeetestetestetetetesetesese st etessesessesesseseeseseesessesessesessesessesessesensns

TOLAL ASSELS.....uvvieieeieeeieeee ettt e ettt et e et e e et e et e e e aeeeeeaeeeeeaeeeeteeesaaeesanteeeanteeeenaeeeanaeeeanaeeennnes

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

December 31,

2012 2011 (a)

in millions

202 € 48.1
107.7 74.5
168.7 54.0
13.7 19.7
310.3 196.3
3,480.4 3,460.7
2,841.7 2,843.0
1,100.4 1,254.3
64.3 61.0
86.7 122.7
7,573.5 7,741.7

7,883.8 € 7,938.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - (Continued)

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER’S EQUITY
Current liabilities:

ACCOUNLS PAYADIC.......ecuiiiieiiiiieie ettt ettt et et e et e saeesaesaeesbesaeesbeeseesbeessesseesseseessenseenes € 832 € 67.1
Accrued Habilities (NOTE 11) cviiiiiriiiiericiice ettt ettt v vt eaeeeve e eteeneas 193.9 140.7
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities — related-party (note 16) ........cceevvvieriieieriieienieeiene 44 .4 13.7
Corporate iNCOME taXeS PAYADIC.........cecvvieieirieiieeii ettt ettt ev et et e e ere e eeaeeneas 21.0 26.6
Current provisions (TOT€ 12).......ccieiirieriieieriieiesieeeeste et e st eee e esesreebeeteesseeseessesseessesseessesseessesseas 17.9 23.0
Deferred revenue and advance payments from subscribers and others.............ccocvevieievieieennnen. 100.3 100.7

Current portion of debt and finance lease obligations (note 13):

TRILA-PATLY ottt ettt ettt et et et te et e ebe e v e eteeabeereebeeaeeessesbeeteensesaeenseereens 88.6 69.1
REIAtEA-PATLY ...ttt ettt ettt et et este e b e steesbeereesbeesaesseesaesbeensesaeessenreens 1.1 —
Other current labilities (NOTE 6) ......c..cvevvierieciieiieiie ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt v e eaeeeve e ereeaeeeaeeneas 22.2 21.3
Total current HabIIItIES. ......cccviitieiieiieiecie ettt re b re e s e ereessessnesessnas 572.6 462.2

Noncurrent debt and finance lease obligations (note 13):

TRILA-PATLY oottt ettt ettt ettt et e ettt e eaeeeteeaeeeteeabesteessestsenbeessenbeersereeaseereenes 5,114.3 5,017.7
REIAtEA-PAILY ....c.veeeiiciecie ettt ettt ettt e esae et e s re e beete e b e essesbeessenbeessenbeenaereenes 1,396.7 193.1
Deferred tax 1abilities (NOE 14) .....oouiiiuiieiicieeieeieeeecte ettt ettt e eve e e re et e e teebeeaeeaeereens 459.0 536.8
Noncurrent provisions (NOTE€ 12) ........ccueviicieriiiiieiieierieieeeere et esreeee e eee e eaesteesessaesessseseessanseeses 19.4 17.8
Other noncurrent liabilities (NOE 6) ........cceevuieeiiiieiiiiieiecieeteete ettt ettt et ere e re et e e teeseereeaeereens 15.4 15.1
Total NONCUITENE LHADIIITIES . ......cvviiieiii ittt e s eae e s etaeeeenaeeeennees 7,004.8 5,780.5
TOLAL THADIIITIES ...ttt ettt e e et e e et e st ee e et e e e eaeeeseaneeseraeeesneeesnnas 7,577.4 6,242.7

Commitments and contingencies (note 17)

Shareholder’s equity (note 15):

SRATE CAPILAL ......eeurieeiiiieie sttt ettt e eeste et e s teesbesteesbesssesbeesbesbeessasseessenseessesseensesssessesseas — —
Additional paid-in CAPILAl..........ccoceviiiiiiiiiiiticiecee ettt ettt ettt ens 941.4 2,071.0
Accumulated dEfICIt ........ceeviiiiiiiiieicceeeeeee et sttt b et b e aa e reenes (635.0) (375.7)
Total Shareholder’S EQUILY.......cvivvieiieticiicre ettt ettt ettt ereeeae et ete e e ereersesreenseeseens 306.4 1,695.3
Total liabilities and shareholder’s EqUILY.........c.cccveririeriieciiiieieeeeie ettt eeeens € 78838 € 7,938.0

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010

in millions

REVENUE (MO 3)...uiiieeieiieieieeie ettt ettt ettt ete et e es e e st e e esaebessesseeseeneeneas € 1,801.6 € 1,053.0 € 866.9
Operating costs and expenses:
Operating (other than depreciation and amortization) (OpEx) (note 16) .........cccceeverveennee. 500.8 281.1 251.4
Selling, general and administrative expenses (other than depreciation and amortization)

(including stock-based compensation) (SG&A) (N0t 16)........ccovveeveviieerreieriieieieienne 236.2 144.7 130.4
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net (NOt€ 5)......ceoveererereneererennne 29.7 0.6 26.7
Related-party fees and allocations (NOt€ 16) ........ccueerueriruirieinieieieeeee e 53.7 35.8 23.8

820.4 462.2 432.3

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) ..................... 981.2 590.8 434.6
Depreciation and amoOrtiZation. ........c..e.eeereeuirieieenieieieete ettt ee 638.9 400.9 324.5

Earnings before interest and taxes (EBIT) 342.3 189.9 110.1

Financial and other expense:
Interest expense:

TRIFA-PATLY «.evieetee ettt ettt b ettt b et s et et neeeenes (424.0) (252.2) (257.0)

Related-party (O 16) ....ooueuiriiieiiieieieet et ee (98.1) (99.9) (85.8)
Foreign currency transaction gains (10SSES), Nt .......c.ccereruirieirieririinieireeeeee e 20.1 (21.6) (16.1)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net (note 6)................... 43.1) 25.5 38.8
Losses on debt modification and extinguishment, net (note 13) (143.6) — —
Other income (expense), Nt (NOLE 16) .....cc.eeruiririreiiiieierieeeee e 6.8 (1.2) 1.4

Net financial and other EXPense .........ccoereireirereireeeee e (681.9) (349.4) (318.7)

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes ............coceoereveerecrenereneenees (339.6) (159.5) (208.6)
Income taX DEnefit (NOTE 14)...c.iciiieieiiietieieeteeteeeee ettt ettt ettt a e sbesbesbeeaeesaenas 80.3 18.2 35.5
Loss from continuing operations, Net 0f tAXeS ........cceerveereririeneerieieerecreeeereeeee (259.3) (141.3) (173.1)
Earnings from discontinued operation (NOt€ 5) ........ccveerueirinieinieieeeerieee e — — 1.2
Net loss / comprehensive 10SS (D)......coueereiririeireieieereeee e € (259.3) € (141.3) € (171.9)
Further details of OpEx and SG&A:
Direct costs (programming and copyright, interconnect and other)..........c.cccceverererenenen. € 179.5 € 90.6 € 79.3
Staft-related costs (excluding restructuring charges) .........cccoceeeeeverieenecineneiencineneenees 149.9 99.0 85.4
NEtWOTK OPETAtING COSES ..uvirviriirrieuieieietietieteeteettetetetete e stestesresseeseeseensensensensessessesseeseenes 144.4 87.3 83.6
Sales and marketing costs 101.7 66.7 70.0
Other INAITECT COSES ...vtuvuiriiieiirteiees ettt ettt ettt ettt n et eee e 161.5 82.2 63.5
€ 737.0 € 4258 € 381.8
Further details of impairment, restructuring and other operating items:
Restructuring charges (CTEAILS) .........eoveirerieirieirienieinictrice ettt € 30.8 € 0.2) € 43
Loss (gain) on diSposal Of @SSELS.......ccuevuerverieriirieieieieieiee ettt eeeeteee e ssesae s eneeneas 2.7 0.1 (1.0)
ASSEt TMPAITINCIES ....vvevverreteeteeieeeeetetestestessestesseeseeseeseessessesessessessessasseessessessessessessessesseeses 1.6 0.6 —
Direct acquisition costs and Other ..........cccooueireiiirieineee e — 0.1 234
€ 29.7 € 0.6 € 26.7

(a) As retrospectively revised - see note 5.

(b) There were no items of comprehensive earnings or loss in the current or prior year periods other than the net loss for the period and,
accordingly, no statements of comprehensive earnings or loss are presented.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'’S EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Balance at January 1, 2010........ccoooiiieiirieeeiee e
INEELOSS ..ttt b e et beettebeensesaeennesaeennas
Equity contribution (NOt€ 15).....cccecereriririninininiicnicicieeeeeceeececeee

Balance at December 31, 2010.........cocouviiiiiiiiiieiceee e
INEETOSS () wvieveeeiiieiieete ettt ettt et e b s a e e b e e stbeeaeesaeeereesaneeareas

Conversion of related-party loans and related accrued interest to equity

(NOtES 13 ANA 15) coiiiiiiieieeieeee e s

Contribution of cash in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction

Consideration issued in connection with the KBW Fold-in (note 5)...........

Conversion of related-party loan and related accrued interest to equity

(NOES 13 ANA 15) cuieiiiiieieciieeeee et

Excess of consideration paid over carrying value of property and

equipment transferred from entity under common control (note 15).........
Stock-based compensation (NOte 16)..........ceeeeverieecienieeriieienieeiesie e
Balance at December 31, 2012 .....oiiieiiiieeeee e

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

Total
Additional Accumulated shareholder’s
paid-in capital deficit equity (deficit)
in millions
€ — € (62.5) € (62.5)
— (171.9) (171.9)
17.0 — 17.0
17.0 (234.4) (217.4)
— (141.3) (141.3)
1,100.0 — 1,100.0
892.5 — 892.5
61.0 — 61.0
0.5 — 0.5
2,071.0 (375.7) 1,695.3
— (259.3) (259.3)
(1,230.0) — (1,230.0)
100.4 — 100.4
(1.1) — (1.1)
1.1 — 1.1
€ 9414 € (635.0) € 306.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
INEE LOSS 1ttt ettt ettt b st e et e bbbt e h e ea e a e n et et e ntesbeebeebeeneeneens
Earnings from discontinued operation
Loss from continuing OPETations .........c..cceeeereririeieienienienie s niesieeseertesteteste e sbesaeeaeene

Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing operations to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Stock-based COMPENSALION EXPEIISE.......c.erveurrrerieuirrerierinietinreeetetereeterteresereerenesreseresaeeeenes
Impairment, restructuring and other operating itemS..........coevereerereeierieneneneseeeeeeeenes
Related-party fees and allocations ..........ccceevereriiieienieneneneeeeeeee e
Depreciation and amOrtiZation...........ceeeeeeeeeeeieiesieniestesreeeeeeseesesessessessessessessessessesseens
Amortization of deferred financing costs and non-cash interest accretion.............cc.c.......
Non-cash related-party iNtereSt EXPENSE ........evveruerrieierierierierientieriereeeeresestessessessesseseeeens
Foreign currency transaction 10SSes (Zains), NEt........ccuevueruerierierierieeeieieniesesieereereeneeeenns
Realized and unrealized losses (gains) on derivative instruments, Net.........cccceeerereenene.
Losses on debt modification and extinguishment, Net...........ccoceeeerieirenieeneieeeeeeens
Deferred taX DENefit......c.ccovvieueiririeiiiinccirec et

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of the effects of acquisitions and
QISPOSTEIONS ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt s bt et e bt e st et et e et e sbesbeebeebeennenee

Net cash used by discontinued OPEration ............ceceeeeeierieriinininieieietetetese e
Net cash provided by operating aCtiVities ..........ccceereerierirerieirereere e
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital EXPENAITUIES ...c..evereieiieiieieieiestet ettt et et e testestesee st e st eseessensensesseesesseeseeneeneenes
AQVANCES 1O PATEINL .....eutititieiietieiteitete ettt sttt eat e et et e sbesbeebe e st entententensenbestesbesbesseeseeneans
Cash paid in connection with acquisitions, net of cash acquired.........c..ccccevereninenenennnne.
INVEStMENt IN ASSOCIALE.......c.euiieiiiiiciiieierieee et
Other INVESHING ACHIVILIES .....cveiveuiitiieieiieiieteet ettt
Net cash used by INVEStING ACHVILIES.....ecerieieieierieriietiee et eeee et ste e sre e eseeseeseennes
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayments of third-party debt and finance lease obligations.............cecuevvevvererereneeeennnne
Borrowings of third-party debt.........ccooiriiiiiiiiieieeeee e
Payment of financing costs and debt premiums ..........cccoceovereiireneeneceeeeece e
Net related-party DOTTOWINES . ......couerueuirieiriiieierieieieiete ettt sttt se e ee
Net cash paid related to derivative INSIIUMENTS. ......c.eververieririeieieieiereriesee e seesreeeeeeennens
Contributions from parent
Decrease in cash collateral
Other financing activities ..........ceceeeevevierierenenenenenne
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ..........ccceeererieereeireneire e

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents...........ccccecvevverierienieneneseeieeennnn

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period....
ENd O PEIIOQ.....eeneeiieeeeee ettt

The following amounts are included in net cash provided by operating activities:
Cash paid for interest (excluding payments related to derivative instruments) ....................
Net cash paid for taxes:
CONtINUING OPETALIONS .....evtenrenieierterterterteetteitetetetestesbesbesbeste e st estestensentestesbesbeebeeseeneenean
Discontinued OPETAtION........ccueiiriiriirtirtietieieeiieitetet ettt ettt sbe bbb eae

(a) As retrospectively revised - see note 5.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,

2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions
(259.3) € (141.3) € (171.9)
— — (1.2)
(259.3) (141.3) (173.1)
1.1 0.5 —
29.7 0.6 26.7
53.7 35.8 23.8
638.9 400.9 324.5
12.9 12.1 10.9
98.1 99.9 85.8
(20.1) 21.6 16.1
43.1 (25.5) (38.8)
143.6 —
(77.3) (28.7) (36.2)
(30.2) (33.0) (14.0)
— (2.9) (9.9)
634.2 340.0 215.8
(464.9) (307.4) (243.3)
(174.1) (54.0) —
— (882.7) (1,880.1)
— (61.0) —
1.2 0.3 0.2
(637.8) (1,304.8) (2,123.2)
(2,051.6) (160.7) (1,770.6)
2,139.2 160.0 165.0
(129.3) (27.0)
29.8 1,050.9
(12.3) (66.6)
— 953.5 17.0
— — 2,593.6
(0.1) 1.4 3.8
(24.3) 954.2 1,966.1
(27.9) (10.6) 58.7
48.1 58.7 —
20.2 € 48.1 € 58.7
410.6 € 2323 € 265.3
0.1 € 36 € 12.8
— 4.3
0.1 € 3.6 € 17.1




UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2012

aQ Basis of Presentation

Unitymedia Kabe]lBW GmbH (formerly known as Unitymedia GmbH until August 8, 2012) (Unitymedia KabelBW) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of UPC Germany Holding B.V. (UPC Germany), which in turn is an indirect subsidiary of Liberty Global,
Inc. (Liberty Global). Unitymedia KabelBW was formed by Liberty Global on October 15,2009 and registered with the commercial
register on October 23, 2009 in contemplation of the issuance of debt financing in connection with Unitymedia KabelBW’s then
potential acquisition of the entity (Old Unitymedia) that owned the largest cable operator in the German federal states of North
Rhine-Westphalia and Hesse. In the following text, the terms “Unitymedia KabelBW,” “we,” “our,” “our company,” and “us”
may refer, as the context requires, to Unitymedia KabelBW, or collectively to Unitymedia KabelBW and its subsidiaries.

Unitymedia KabelBW, which operates in the German federal states of North Rhine-Westphalia, Hesse and Baden-Wiirttemberg,
provides video, broadband internet, telephony and mobile services to its customers.

Through a series of transactions that were completed during the second quarter of 2012 in conjunction with the Unitymedia
KabelBW Exchange, as defined and described innote 13, UPC Germany, our immediate parent company, transferred UPC Germany
Holdings GmbH (UPC Germany Holdings), an indirect parent company of Kabel BW GmbH (KBW), then the largest cable operator
in Baden-Wiirttemberg, to Unitymedia Hessen GmbH & Co. KG (Unitymedia Hessen), one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries (the
KBW Fold-in). We have accounted for the KBW Fold-in as a reorganization of entities under common control. Accordingly, we
have recorded the transfer of UPC Germany Holdings and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Kabel BW Group) at carryover basis
and the applicable prior period information has been retrospectively revised to give effect to the resulting change in reporting
entities for all periods in which we and the Kabel BW Group were under the common control of Liberty Global (namely all
periods beginning on or after the December 15, 2011 acquisition of a then indirect parent of KBW by a then indirect subsidiary
of UPC Germany Holdings). For additional information, see note 5. Additionally, in the third quarter of 2012, Unitymedia Hessen
sold its shares of UPC Germany Holdings to UPC Germany NewCo GmbH (UPC Germany NewCo) and UPC Germany Holdings
was merged into UPC Germany NewCo.

In addition to our core business, Unitymedia KabelBW’s arena segment operated a direct-to-home satellite (DTH) digital pay-
TV platform that, as further described in note 5, we closed down effective September 30, 2010. We have presented Unitymedia
KabelBW’s arena segment as a discontinued operation in our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows. As such, all
statements of operations and cash flow amounts presented in the notes to these consolidated financial statements relate only to our
continuing operations, unless otherwise noted.

On September 16,2010, Old Unitymedia merged with Unitymedia KabelBW and Unitymedia KabelBW became the surviving
entity (the Unitymedia Merger). The Unitymedia Merger, along with the new basis of accounting that resulted from Unitymedia
KabelBW’s January 28, 2010 acquisition of 100% of Old Unitymedia (the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction), has been given effect
as of January 28, 2010 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, Old Unitymedia is not included in
our historical consolidated financial statements prior to January 28, 2010. For additional information concerning the LGI/
Unitymedia Transaction, see note 5.

Our annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted
by the European Union (EU-IFRS) and the additional requirements of German Commercial Law pursuant to § 315 a (3) German
Commercial Code (HGB).

The 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured
Notes, the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the 2009 UM Senior Notes and the UM Senior Exchange Notes, each as
defined and described in note 13, are listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and are admitted to trading
on the Euro MTF Market, which is not a regulated market (as defined by Article 1(13) of Directive 93/22/EEC).

Our functional currency is the euro. Unless otherwise indicated, convenience translations into euros are calculated as of
December 31, 2012.

These consolidated financial statements were approved for publication by the Managing Directors on March 20, 2013.
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)

December 31, 2012

?2) Accounting Changes and Recent Pronouncements

First-time Application of Accounting Standards

The application of the following accounting standard did not have any impact on our consolidated financial statements:

Applicable for Date of
Standard/ fiscal years endorsement

Interpretation Title beginning on or after by the EU
International

Accounting

Standard

(IAS) 12

(amendments) Deferred tax: recovery of underlying assets January 1, 2012 December 11, 2012
IFRS 1 Severe hyperinflation and removal of fixed dates for first-

(amendments) time adopters July 1, 2011 December 1 1, 2012
IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 financial instruments: Disclosures -

(amendments) Transfers of Financial Assets July 1, 2011 November 22, 2011

New Accounting Standards, Not Yet Effective

The following accounting standards were either issued by the International Accounting Standards Board or endorsed by the
European Union (EU) but are not yet effective for the reporting period. We have not early adopted these accounting standards.

Applicable for Date of
Standard/ fiscal years endorsement

Interpretation Title beginning on or after by the EU
IAS 1

(amendments) Presentation of items of other comprehensive income July 1, 2012 June 5, 2012
IAS 19

(amendments) Amendments to IAS 19 employee benefits January 1, 2013 June 5, 2012
IAS 27

(amendments)  Separate financial statements January 1, 2014 December 11, 2012
IAS 28

(amendments)  Investments in associates and joint ventures January 1, 2014 December 11, 2012
IAS 32

(amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities January 1, 2014 December 13,2012
IFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

(amendments) Liabilities January 1, 2013 December 13,2012
IFRS 9 /IFRS 7 ) - )

(amendments)  Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures January 1, 2015 Not yet endorsed

Collection of amendments to several standards made in

Improvements to response to six issues addressed during the 2009 - 2011

IFRSs project cycle January 1, 2013 Not yet endorsed
IFRS 9 Financial instruments January 1, 2015 Not yet endorsed
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements January 1, 2014 December 11, 2012
IFRS 10/ IFRS

11/1FRS 12

(amendments) ~ Transition guidance January 1, 2014 Not yet endorsed
IFRS 10/ IFRS

12/ TAS 27

(amendments)  Investment Entities January 1, 2014 Not yet endorsed
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements January 1, 2014 December 11,2012
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities January 1, 2014 December 11, 2012
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement January 1, 2013 December 11,2012

Effective January 1,2013, we intend to adopt the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits, which will require retrospective application
to our 2012 financial statements. The revised IAS 19 requires the recognition of service cost and net interest on the net defined
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)
December 31, 2012

benefit liability in income or loss and the recognition of remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, in particular actuarial
gains and losses, in other comprehensive income or loss. Currently, we recognize actuarial gains and losses deferred under the
corridor approach in profit or loss. The adoption of the revised IAS 19 is not expected to have a material impact on our financial
condition or results of operations.

We have not fully evaluated the impact of applying the other new, but not yet effective accounting standards on our consolidated
financial statements.

A3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with EU-IFRS requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period. Estimates and assumptions are used in accounting for, among other things, the valuation
ofacquisition-related assets and liabilities, allowances for uncollectible accounts, deferred income taxes and the related recognition
of deferred tax assets, loss contingencies, fair value measurements, impairment assessments, capitalization of internal costs
associated with construction and installation activities, useful lives of long-lived assets, and stock-based compensation. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation including the reclassification
within OpEx and SG&A of (i) costs from other indirect costs to sales and marketing costs and (ii) costs from network operating
costs to other indirect costs.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of all voting interest entities where
we exercise a controlling financial interest through the ownership of a direct or indirect controlling voting interest and special
purpose entities over which we exercise control. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. Investments in special purpose entities that we do not control are accounted for using the equity method.

The following subsidiaries of Unitymedia KabelBW are included in our consolidated financial statements at December 31,
2012:

Name of subsidiary (a) Headquarters location Share of equity %
Unitymedia Management GMbH (D) .........c.occoeviiiiiniiiiiiicecececeeeeeeeeene Cologne, Germany 100.0
Unitymedia Hessen Verwaltung GmbH..............cccooirviiniiiiniiiecieieeeeee Cologne, Germany 100.0
Unitymedia HESSEN (C).....coviiiiiiieiiiiieiiieieeiieteete ettt ea et v et ese s enre e Cologne, Germany 100.0
Unitymedia NRW GmbH (Unitymedia NRW) (D)......ccoovreieiiriiiieeieieeiee Cologne, Germany 100.0
Unitymedia Services GMBH (D).........cccoeieiiiiieiiiieiiceceeeeseeee et Cologne, Germany 100.0
iesy Hessen Verwaltungs-GmbH............cocovieiiiiiiiiiceeeceeee e Cologne, Germany 100.0
Arena Sport Rechte und Marketing GmbH...............c.cccoviiviiiiiiiiieeeceeee, Cologne, Germany 100.0
UPC Germany NEWEC0........cccverueeieeiieieniieieeiiesieeeeeeetessessaessessesseessesseensesseensenns Hamburg, Germany 100.0
KBW ettt ettt ettt et b e et a e e ra e s ae b e te e b e eteenbeeraenreens Heidelberg, Germany 100.0

(a) Unitymedia International GmbH (UMI), an entity in which Unitymedia KabelBW owns a 100% equity interest, is excluded
from our list of subsidiaries as UMI is a special purpose entity that is consolidated by UPC Holding B.V. (UPC Holding),
another Liberty Global subsidiary. For additional information regarding our accounting for UMI, see note 16. We will
publish statutory accounts for UMI.

(b) Exempt from publishing statutory accounts pursuant to Sec. 264 (3) HGB.
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UNITYMEDIA KABELBW GMBH
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - (Continued)
December 31, 2012

(c) Exempt from publishing statutory accounts pursuant to Sec. 264b HGB.
Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and demand deposits which have a maturity of three months or less at the
time of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are measured at cost.

Restricted cash includes cash held in escrow and cash pledged as collateral. Restricted cash amounts that are required to be
used to purchase noncurrent assets or repay noncurrent debt are classified as noncurrent assets. All other cash that is restricted to
a specific use is classified as current or noncurrent based on the expected timing of the disbursement.

Trade Receivables

Our trade receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently reported at amortized cost, net of an allowance for
impairment of trade receivables. The allowance for impairment of trade receivables is estimated based upon our assessment of
anticipated loss related to uncollectible accounts receivable. We use a number of factors in determining the allowance, including,
among other things, collection trends, prevailing and anticipated economic conditions, specific customer and historical experience.
The allowance is maintained until either receipt of payment or the likelihood of collection is considered to be remote.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are measured at initial cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property and equipment. The initial cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs (if applicable), costs of
construction including direct materials and labor, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the costs of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which the assets are located. No borrowing costs were capitalized during the periods presented.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each major component of an item of
property and equipment. The distribution systems have estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 35 years. Support equipment and
buildings (including leasehold improvements) have estimated useful lives ranging from 3 to 15 years. Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and may be adjusted based on
management’s expectations of future use.

Property and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
Impairment exists when the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For purposes of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of
assets (cash-generating units). We have determined that our property and equipment is part of a single cash-generating unit for
purpose of impairment testing. Impairment losses are reversed if the reasons for the impairment loss no longer exist or the
impairment loss has decreased.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will be achieved and when the cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of any replaced item is derecognized. All other expenditures for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Gains and losses due to disposals are included in impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net.
Intangible Assets

Our primary intangible assets are goodwill, customer relationships, trade name, subscriber acquisition costs and software.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but instead are tested for impairment at least annually.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis and reviewed
for impairment when circumstances warrant. Each reporting period we evaluate the estimated useful lives of our intangible assets
that are subject to amortization to determine whether events or circumstances warrant revised estimates of useful lives.

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that it may be impaired. We have identified one cash-
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generating unit to which all goodwill is assigned. If the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of fair value less costs to sell or value
in use) of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Customer relationships and trade name are recognized at their fair values in connection with business combinations and are
amortized over lives ranging from 5 to 10 years. Subscriber acquisition costs are recognized as incurred when such costs are
directly attributable to obtaining a new customer contract, are paid to a third party, can be measured reliably and meet the definition
of an intangible asset. Subscriber acquisition costs are amortized over the applicable contractual life, which generally ranges from
1 to 2 years.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are expensed as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with the
production of identifiable and unique software products controlled by us for which it is probable that the expected future economic
benefits attributable to the assets would flow to our company beyond one year are recognized as intangible assets. Capitalized
internal-use software costs include only external direct costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining the
software and payroll and payroll-related costs for employees who are directly associated with and who devote time to the project.
Capitalization of these costs ceases no later than the point at which the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended
purpose. Capitalized internal-use software costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over their applicable expected useful lives,
which range from 3 to 5 years. Where no internal-use intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditures are expensed
as incurred.

Subsequent expenditures related to intangible assets are capitalized only when the expenditures increase the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditures on internally generated
brands, are expensed as incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership to us. Property and equipment acquired by way of a finance lease are initially stated at an amount equal to the lower
of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease. The leased asset is subsequently
depreciated over the shorter of its useful life or the lease term and is subject to impairment assessments as a component of the
applicable cash-generating unit. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
noncurrent debt with the interest element of the lease payment charged to our consolidated statements of operations over the lease
period. All other leases are classified as operating lease payments and recognized in our consolidated statements of operations on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

We have entered into various long-term service level agreements with Deutsche Telekom AG (Deutsche Telekom) and certain
of its affiliates that are significant to our business, in particular for the lease of cable duct space. Generally, the terms per
the agreements are unlimited, yet we have certain termination rights which are entirely at our discretion. According to German
law, lease agreements are subject to a termination right of either party after a term of 30 years. We do not capitalize these cable
ducts as finance leases as a result of management assumptions made regarding the expected usage of the cable ducts at the inception
of the contracts.

Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, current trade and other receivables, other current assets, accounts payable, accrued liabilities,
subscriber advance payments and deposits and other current liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently carried
at amortized cost. Due to their relatively short maturities, the carrying values of these financial instruments approximate their
respective fair value. The carrying amounts of trade receivables with a remaining term of more than one year are included in
noncurrent assets and the carrying amount of these receivables approximates their fair value.

Loans and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses.

For information concerning the fair value of our debt, see note 13.
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Derivative instruments

All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Although we enter into derivative instruments to
manage foreign exchange risk, we do not apply hedge accounting to any of our derivative instruments. Changes to the fair value
of our derivative instruments are recognized in the line item realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net
in our consolidated statements of operations.

Bonds and Bank Liabilities

Bonds and bank liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value of our bond and
bank liabilities is recognized in our consolidated statements of operations over the respective terms of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and/or amount. A provision is recognized when a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event exists, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Foreign Currency Transactions

The euro is our functional currency. Transactions denominated in currencies other than the euro are recorded based on exchange
rates at the time such transactions arise. Changes in exchange rates with respect to monetary items (e.g. cash held in a foreign
currency or assets and liabilities to be received or paid in a fixed or determinable number of foreign currency units) recorded in
our consolidated balance sheet result in transaction gains and losses that are reflected in our consolidated statement of operations
as foreign currency transaction gains (losses), net.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of
our activities. Revenue is presented net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts and after eliminating intercompany sales within
the consolidated group.

We derive revenue from our digital and analog cable television products and services, broadband internet services, telephony
products and services (including subscription and usage fees), mobile services and carriage fees paid by broadcasters.

Revenue is recognized when services have been provided, the costs incurred can be measured reliably, and we are not obliged
to provide any future services. Prepayments are deferred and amortized on a straight-line basis over the service period.

When free or discounted service periods or other customer incentives are offered to customers in relation to a subscription,
we recognize the total amount of billable revenue that we expect to receive from customers in equal monthly installments over
the term of the contract provided that we have the enforceable and contractual right to deliver products to the customer after the
promotional period. If free months are given without a contract at the beginning of a subscription period, we do not recognize
revenue during the free months as the customer’s continuance is not assured.

For multiple element arrangements, the recognition criteria of revenue are applied to the separately identifiable components
of the transaction. A component within an arrangement is separated if it has standalone value to the customer and if its fair value
can be measured reliably. The fair value of the consideration received or receivable is allocated to the separate components of the
arrangement using the residual fair value method.

Revenue resulting from the sale of goods is realized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to
the customer.

Installation fees generally are recognized as services are rendered.

For information regarding our policy for allocating product revenue, see Segments below.
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Income taxes
Current taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities atundiscounted values. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amounts are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted as of the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxes

Generally, deferred taxes are recognized for any temporary differences between the tax base and the EU-IFRS base, except
in situations where goodwill is not recognized for tax purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and tax loss and interest carryforwards, ifit is probable
that future taxable earnings will be available against which the unused tax losses or temporary differences can be utilized. However,
deferred tax assets are not recognized if the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting earnings nor taxable earnings.

The recoverability of the carrying value of deferred taxes is determined based on management’s estimates of future taxable
earnings. If it is no longer probable that enough future taxable earnings will be available against which the unused tax losses or
temporary differences can be used, an impairment in a corresponding amount is recognized on the deferred tax assets.

Deferred taxes are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted as of the balance sheet date. Deferred taxes are not
discounted.

If the changes in the value of assets or liabilities are recognized in a separate component of equity, the change of value of the
corresponding deferred tax assets and liabilities are also recognized in this separate component of equity (instead of income tax
expense).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset in our consolidated balance sheets if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity.

For additional information concerning our income taxes, see note 14.
Segments

We operate in one geographical area, the country of Germany. Through September 30, 2010, we had two segments, cable and
arena. Following the September 30, 2010 closure of our arena segment, as discussed in note 5, we operate in the cable segment
only.

Our revenue by major product category is as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions

Subscription revenue (b):

7[5 RSP RRR € 948.6 € 638.4 € 571.7
Broadband INteINEt ...........ccoceeiiieieiiieiecie ettt 283.8 130.9 83.0
Telephony ......cccceeveviirieieeeeeeeeee e 346.4 156.0 109.4
Total subscription revenue 1,578.8 925.3 764.1
NON-SUDSCIIPHION TEVENUE (C) ...vvenvierreeieieriieieseieiesieeteeseeteeresseeseesseensesseesesseensesses 222.8 127.7 102.8
TOLAL TEVETIUC ...ttt ete e ettt e et e e et e e e eaaneestaeessnaeesnnneas € 1801.6 € 1,053.0 € 866.9

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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(b)  Subscription revenue includes amounts received from subscribers for ongoing services, excluding installation fees, late fees
and mobile services revenue. Subscription revenue from subscribers who purchase bundled services at a discounted rate
is generally allocated proportionally to each service based on the standalone price for each individual service.

(c)  Non-subscription revenue includes carriage fee, interconnect, installation and mobile services revenue.

“) Financial Risk Management

Overview
We have exposure to the following risks that arise from our financial instruments:

*  Credit Risk
»  Liquidity Risk
e Market Risk

Our exposure to each of these risks, the policies and procedures that we use to manage these risks and our approach to capital
management are discussed below in this note. As a subsidiary of Liberty Global, our approach to the management of these risks
is integrated with Liberty Global’s overall risk management policies and procedures.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that we would experience financial loss if our customers or the counterparties to our derivative and other
financial instruments, undrawn debt facilities and cash investments were to default on their obligations to us.

We manage the credit risks associated with our trade receivables by performing credit verifications, following established
dunning procedures and engaging collection agencies. We also manage this risk by disconnecting services to customers whose
accounts are delinquent. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of
customers.

We manage the credit risks associated with our derivative and other financial instruments, cash investments and undrawn debt
facilities primarily through the evaluation and monitoring of the creditworthiness of, and concentration of risk with, the respective
counterparties. Most of our cash currently is invested in overnight deposits with banks having a minimum credit rating of A by
Standard & Poor’s or an equivalent rating by Moody’s Investor Service. To date, neither the access to nor the value of our cash
and cash equivalent balances have been adversely impacted by liquidity problems of financial institutions. We and our
counterparties do not post collateral or other security, nor have we entered into master netting arrangements with any of our
counterparties.

Under our derivative contracts, it is generally only the non-defaulting party that has a contractual option to exercise early
termination rights upon the default of the other counterparty and to set off other liabilities against sums due upon such termination.
However, in an insolvency of a derivative counterparty, under the laws of certain jurisdictions, the defaulting counterparty or its
insolvency representatives may be able to compel the termination of one or more derivative contracts and trigger early termination
payment liabilities payable by us, reflecting any mark-to-market value of the contracts for the counterparty. Alternatively, or in
addition, the insolvency laws of certain jurisdictions may require the mandatory set-off of amounts due under such derivative
contracts against present and future liabilities owed to us under other contracts between us and the relevant counterparty.
Accordingly, it is possible that we may be subject to obligations to make payments, or may have present or future liabilities owed
to us partially or fully discharged by set-off as a result of such obligations, in the event of the insolvency of a derivative counterparty,
even though it is the counterparty that is in default and not us. To the extent that we are required to make such payments, our
ability to do so will depend on our liquidity and capital resources at the time. In an insolvency of a defaulting counterparty, we
will be an unsecured creditor in respect of any amount owed to us by the defaulting counterparty, except to the extent of the value
of any collateral we have obtained from that counterparty.

The risks we would face in the event of a default by a counterparty to one of our derivative instruments might be eliminated
or substantially mitigated if we were able to novate the relevant derivative contracts to a new counterparty following the default
of our counterparty. While we anticipate that, in the event of the insolvency of one of our derivative counterparties, we would
seek to effect such novations, no assurance can be given that we would obtain the necessary consents to do so or that we would
be able to do so on terms or pricing that would be acceptable to us or that any such novation would not result in substantial costs
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to us. Furthermore, the underlying risks that are the subject of the relevant derivative contracts would no longer be effectively
hedged due to the insolvency of our counterparty, unless and until we novate or replace the derivative contract.

While we currently have no specific concerns about the creditworthiness of any counterparty for which we have material
credit risk exposures, we cannot rule out the possibility that one or more of our counterparties could fail or otherwise be unable
to meet its obligations to us. Any such instance could have an adverse effect on our cash flows, results of operations, financial
condition and/or liquidity.

Our maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amounts of our financial assets, excluding our loan
receivable - related-party. For information concerning these carrying amounts, see note 6. In light of the related-party nature of
our current loan receivable from UPC Germany (the UPC Germany Loan Receivable as described in note 16), we have not
considered this financial instrument in our credit risk assessment.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that we will encounter difficulty in meeting our financial obligations. We evaluate our liquidity risks
at the parent (Unitymedia KabelBW) and operating subsidiary levels. As a holding company, our primary assets other than cash
and cash equivalents are our investments in consolidated subsidiaries. Our ability to access the financial assets of our operating
subsidiaries is restricted by the terms of the indentures for the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes, as defined and described in note 13.
Tax considerations and other factors may also limit our ability to access the financial assets of our subsidiaries.

Our sources of liquidity at the parent level include (i) our cash and cash equivalents, (i) amounts due under the UPC Germany
Loan Receivable, (iii) funding from UPC Germany (and ultimately from Liberty Global or other Liberty Global subsidiaries) in
the form of loans or contributions, as applicable, and (iv) subject to the certain restrictions, proceeds in the form of distributions
or loans from Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW or other subsidiaries. At December 31, 2012, substantially all of our
consolidated cash and cash equivalents were held by our subsidiaries.

In addition to cash and cash equivalents, the primary sources of liquidity of Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW
and our other operating subsidiaries is cash provided by operations and, in the case of Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW,
any borrowing availability under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities, as defined and described in note 13. At
December 31, 2012, we had combined borrowing capacity of €417.5 million under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit
Facilities.

The ongoing cash needs of Unitymedia KabelBW include (i) corporate general and administrative expenses and (ii) interest
payments on outstanding debt. From time to time, Unitymedia KabelBW may also require cash in connection with (a) the repayment
of outstanding debt, (b) the satisfaction of contingent liabilities, (¢) acquisitions or (d) other investment opportunities. No assurance
can be given that funding from UPC Germany (and ultimately from Liberty Global or other Liberty Global subsidiaries), our
subsidiaries or external sources would be available on favorable terms, or at all.

The liquidity of Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW and our other operating subsidiaries generally is used to fund
capital expenditures, debt service requirements and other liquidity requirements that may arise from time to time. Our subsidiaries
may also require funding in connection with (i) the repayment of outstanding debt, (ii) acquisitions and other investment
opportunities or (iii) distributions or loans to Unitymedia KabelBW (and ultimately to Liberty Global or other Liberty Global
subsidiaries). No assurance can be given that any external funding would be available to our subsidiaries on favorable terms, or
at all.

Our most significant financial obligations are our debt obligations, as described in note 13. The terms of our debt instruments
contain certain restrictions, including covenants that restrict our ability to incur additional debt. As aresult, additional debt financing
is only a potential source of liquidity if the incurrence of any new debt is permitted by the terms of our existing debt instruments.

Our ability to generate cash from our operations will depend on our future operating performance, which is in turn dependent,
to some extent, on general economic, financial, competitive, market, regulatory and other factors, many of which are beyond our
control. We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, the UPC Germany Loan Receivable, the cash provided from the operations
of our subsidiaries, and any available borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities, will be sufficient
to fund our currently anticipated working capital needs, capital expenditures and debt service requirements through December 31,
2013, although no assurance can be given that this will be the case. However, as our debt matures in later years, we anticipate
that we will seek to refinance or otherwise extend our debt maturities. No assurance can be given that we will be able to complete
refinancing transactions or otherwise extend our debt maturities. In thisregard, itis not possible to predict how economic conditions,
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sovereign debt concerns and/or any adverse regulatory developments could impact the credit markets we access and, accordingly,
our future liquidity and financial position. In addition, sustained or increased competition, particularly in combination with adverse
economic or regulatory developments, could have an unfavorable impact on our cash flows and liquidity.

Our ability to service or refinance our debt and to maintain compliance with our leverage covenants is dependent primarily
on our ability to maintain or increase the Adjusted EBITDA of our operating subsidiaries and to achieve adequate returns on our
capital expenditures and acquisitions. In addition, our ability to obtain additional debt financing is limited by the leverage covenants
contained in our and our subsidiaries’ various debt instruments. In this regard, if our Adjusted EBITDA were to decline, we could
be required to repay or limit our borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities in order to maintain
compliance with applicable covenants. No assurance can be given that we would have sufficient sources of liquidity, or that any
external funding would be available on favorable terms, or at all, to fund any such required repayment. As we use the term,
Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA before stock-based compensation, impairment, restructuring and other operating items
and related-party fees and allocations.

We and Liberty Global use budgeting and cash flow forecasting tools to ensure that we will have sufficient resources to timely
meet our liquidity requirements. We and Liberty Global also maintain a liquidity reserve to provide for unanticipated cash outflows.

The following table shows the timing of expected payments based on the contractually agreed upon terms for our financial
liabilities as of December 31, 2012:

Payments due during:
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total
in millions

Debt principal:

Third-party .......cccoceevenrenneneeeen € 198 € — € — € — € 9060 € 42739 € 5,199.7

Related-party.........cccoevvevevneerenenen. — — — — — 1,311.8 1,311.8
Debt interest (a):

Third-party.......ccccceeevniineiieninens 354.4 383.7 383.7 383.7 383.7 1,021.6 2,910.8

Related-party.......cccceveerecneinnnnne 125.2 125.2 125.2 125.2 125.2 1,025.1 1,651.1
Finance lease obligations:

Principal......ccooeeveeneiniiiece 0.6 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 4.5 6.2

Interest ......cocoveeeeeinenireeeeeeee 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 3.1 5.5
Accrued liabilities (including related-

party accrued liabilities) ................. 214.4 — — — — — 2144
Accounts payable (including related-

party accounts payable) .................. 107.1 — — — — — 107.1

Total.ooeeeeeeeeeeee e € 8221 € 509.7 € 5097 € 5095 €14156 € 7,640.0 €11,406.6

(a)  Amounts are based on interest rates, interest payment dates and contractual maturities in effect as of December 31, 2012.
These amounts are presented for illustrative purposes only and will likely differ from the actual cash payments required in
future periods. In addition, the amounts presented do not include the impact of our interest rate derivative agreements,
deferred financing costs, premiums and discounts or commitment fees, all of which affect our overall cost of borrowing.

For information concerning a financing transaction completed subsequent to December 31, 2012, see note 19.
Market Risk
Because we have certain debt that is denominated in United States (U.S.) dollars and other debt that has a floating interest

rate, we are exposed to market risks relating to fluctuations in the foreign exchange rate between the U.S. dollar and the euro and
changes in the EURIBOR. Each of these risks is discussed below.
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Interest rate risk

Our exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit
Facilities.

With respect to our fixed rate debt, changes in interest rates will impact the fair value of the debt instrument but not our cash
flows. If however, we were to refinance our fixed rate debt, we would be exposed to interest rate risk with respect to the debt we
would incur with respect to any such refinancing. While we and Liberty Global typically strive to mitigate this risk by refinancing
well before the debt matures, no assurance can be given that we would be able obtain new debt financing on terms that are as
attractive as our existing debt. As we do not carry our debt at fair value, changes in the fair value of our debt typically would not
impact our results of operations.

For purposes of demonstrating the sensitivity of the interest expense on the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities
to changes in interest rates, we present the change that would result from a hypothetical instantaneous change in the 3-month
EURIBOR of 50 basis points (0.50%) as of December 31, 2012, holding all other variables constant. This sensitivity analysis
assumes that this hypothetical rate was in effect, and that all of the available borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving
Credit Facilities were outstanding, for the entire year. This analysis is presented for illustrative purposes only. In practice, market
rates rarely change in isolation and are likely to be interdependent. The annual impacts of these hypothetical changes in interest
rates are as follows:

Increase of Decrease of
0.50% 0.50%

in millions

Increase (decrease) in INtEIESt EXPEISE .....eeuverueeriireerreerierteeiesseeseesreesesseesesseesesseessesssessesssessesssessenss € 2.1 € 2.1)

Increase (decrease) in loss from continuing operations before income taxes ...........coceveeverveevenenne € 2.1 € 2.1)

Foreign currency risk

Our reporting currency is the euro. We historically have not had, and do not expect in the future to have, material amounts
of cash inflows or outflows that are denominated in currencies other than the euro, with the exception of interest and principal
payments on the UM Dollar Senior Secured Exchange Notes and the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes (as defined
and described in note 13). Accordingly, these interest and principal payments represent our only material foreign currency risk.
In accordance with our and Liberty Global’s risk management policies, we have entered into cross-currency swaps to synthetically
convert the interest and principal payments due under the UM Dollar Senior Secured Exchange Notes and the December 2012
UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes into euros throughout the term of such notes.

For purposes of demonstrating the sensitivity of (i) the outstanding principal and accrued interest associated with the UM
Dollar Senior Secured Exchange Notes and the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes and (ii) the fair value of the
related cross-currency swaps to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, we present the changes in these items that would
result from a hypothetical instantaneous change in the euro to U.S. dollar foreign currency exchange rate of 10% as of December 31,
2012, holding all other variables constant. This sensitivity analysis assumes that the UM Dollar Senior Secured Exchange Notes
and the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes and the related cross-currency swaps were outstanding for the entire
year. This analysis is presented for illustrative purposes only. In practice, market rates rarely change in isolation and are likely
to be interdependent. The annual impacts of these hypothetical changes in foreign exchange rates are as follows:

Value of euro
relative to U.S dollar

10% 10%
increase decrease

in millions

Increase (decrease) in foreign currency tranSaction aINS...........c.eeveeereeruerreerueseessessessessessessensenns € 110.6 € (110.6)
Decrease (increase) in loss associated with change in fair value of cross-currency swaps ............... (142.9) 142.9
Decrease (increase) in loss from continuing operations before income taxes .........c..coceveverereneenne. € 323) € 323
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Capital Management

We manage our capital to ensure that we will be able to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, Liberty Global may determine to cause our company to return capital to our shareholder or make
loans to our shareholder or other Liberty Global subsidiaries. In addition, Liberty Global may determine to cause one or more of
its subsidiaries to provide funding to our company in the form of loans or capital contributions, as applicable.

We monitor our debt capital on the basis of our leverage covenants. As further discussed above, our ability to service or
refinance our debt and to maintain compliance with our leverage covenants is dependent primarily on our ability to maintain or
increase the Adjusted EBITDA of our operating subsidiaries and to achieve adequate returns on our capital expenditures and
acquisitions. For additional information regarding our debt, see note 13.

o) Common Control Transfer, Acquisitions and Discontinued Operation

In May 2012, in conjunction with the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange, as defined and described in note 13, UPC Germany
completed the KBW Fold-in by transferring its 100% ownership interest in UPC Germany Holdings to Unitymedia Hessen. We
have accounted for this common control transfer at carryover basis and the applicable prior period information has been
retrospectively revised to give effect to the change in reporting entities for all periods during which we and the Kabel BW Group
were under the common control of Liberty Global (namely all periods beginning on or after the December 15, 2011 acquisition
of a then indirect parent of KBW by a then indirect subsidiary of UPC Germany Holdings). Prior to December 15, 2011, UPC
Germany Holdings had no operating results, cash flows or capital transactions.

Consideration for the transfer of all outstanding shares of UPC Germany Holdings to Unitymedia Hessen in the amount of
€1,230.0 million was based upon a valuation of UPC Germany Holdings as of the date of transfer. This amount, which was settled
in the form of the 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC Germany, was recorded as a capital transaction during the second quarter of
2012. For additional information regarding the 2012 Shareholder Loan, see note 13.

The following table sets forth the retrospective effects of this common control transfer on our December 31,2011 consolidated
balance sheet:

Common As
As previously control retrospectively
reported adjustments revised

in millions

CUITENE ASSELS...evveveeerestienreeteetieseesteetesseeseesseessesseessessaessesseessesssessenseessenssessennes € 1326 € 63.7 € 196.3
Property and equipment, NEt..........c.occveevievieriieciiiieiecieeie e € 2,041.2 € 1,419.5 € 3,460.7
GOOAWILL ...ttt ettt st bt re et et teebe b e b s € 1,436.1 € 1,406.9 € 2,843.0
Intangible assets subject to amortization, Net.............cceeveeeevrieeerreeeenreeeeeneene € 5623 € 692.0 € 1,254.3
TOLAL @SSEES...uevieeeeeeeeeeee ettt e et e e e e e eaeeeeeeseeaseeeesesssteeeseseaseeesesnnnnes € 43295 € 3,608.5 € 7,938.0
Current HabIlITIES .....cvecvievieeeeriereeie ettt sttt b e e ae e € 279.6 € 182.6 € 462.2
Noncurrent debt and finance lease obligations.............ccoccveeveviecvereerescveniennenn € 29155 € 2,2953 € 5,210.8
TOtal HADIIItICS ....vevveeeviieeereetect ettt ettt sttt b e e ae e € 3,519.1 € 2,723.6 € 6,242.7
Additional paid-in capital...........ccevirierieciirieiee e € 1,178.5 € 892.5 € 2,071.0
Accumulated defiCit..........coioiiviiiiiiiciiceeeeeeeee e € (368.1) € (7.6) € (375.7)
Shareholder’s EQUILY ......ccevveriiiierierieie ettt ee e seees € 8104 € 8849 € 1,695.3
Total liabilities and shareholder’s eqUIty.........c.ccceevvivieviieiecrieieeeeereeeeee € 43295 € 3,608.5 € 7,938.0
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The following table sets forth the retrospective effects of this common control transfer on our operating results for the year
ended December 31, 2011:

Common As
As previously control retrospectively
reported adjustments revised

in millions

REVEIUE ...ttt sttt ettt € 1,025.2 € 278 € 1,053.0
OPEX 1ottt ettt ettt € 2719 € 92 € 281.1
SGELA .ottt bbbttt et e e € 140.6 € 41 € 144.7
Depreciation and amortiZation...........ccecuveveereeriereeriesieie et € 3883 € 126 € 400.9
Net financial and other eXPense..........ccveereririreierieree e € (337.9) € (11.5) € (349.4)
Income tax Benefit ........ccceiririiiniiiiiceeeccec e € 16.1 € 2.1 € 18.2
INEE LOSS 1.ttt ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt et s ettt et et e e esesaesesseseeseseesaneas € (133.7) € (7.6) € (141.3)

The following table sets forth the retrospective effects of this common control transfer on our operating results for the three
months ended March 31, 2012, which are included in the amounts reported in our consolidated statement of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2012:

Common As
As previously control retrospectively
reported adjustments revised

in millions

REVEIUE ...ttt et esa s ees € 2709 € 159.7 € 430.6
OPEX oottt ettt ettt te b ereereenes € (76.0) € (48.7) € (124.7)
SGEA .ottt ettt et ettt e teenteereeaeeatensennean € (39.5) € (17.4) € (56.9)
Depreciation and amortiZation..............ceeveerueeieieerieireeieeeereeeeereeeesreessesne e € (98.7) € (55.2) € (153.9)
Net financial and other XPense...........cceeveviereerieiieniieieeeiese e € (67.3) € 49.2) € (116.5)
Income tax DENETit .......cocvieviiiieiieiicice e € 13.7 € 23 € 16.0
INCE LOSS ettt ettt ettt et ettt e b e e aaeebeestseere e aeeereesaaeeares € 5.7 € (12.6) € (18.3)
Acquisition of KBW

On December 15, 2011, UPC Germany HoldCo 2 GmbH (UPC Germany HC2), a then wholly-owned subsidiary of UPC
Germany Holdings, acquired all of the outstanding shares of Kabel BW Musketeer GmbH (KBW Musketeer) pursuant to a sale
and purchase agreement dated March 21, 2011 with Oskar Rakso S.ar.l (Oskar Rakso) as the seller (the LGI/KBW Transaction).
KBW Musketeer was the indirect parent company of KBW. UPC Germany HC2’s cost to acquire KBW Musketeer has been
reflected in these consolidated financial statements as of the December 15, 2011 acquisition date. At closing, Oskar Rakso
transferred its KBW Musketeer shares and assigned the balance of a loan receivable from KBW Musketeer to UPC Germany HC2
in consideration of UPC Germany HC2’s payment of €1,062.4 million in cash (the KBW Purchase Price). UPC Germany provided
an €892.5 million capital contribution and a €169.9 million intercompany loan to UPC Germany HC2 to fund the KBW Purchase
Price. The KBW Purchase Price, together with KBW’s consolidated net debt at December 15, 2011 (aggregate fair value of debt
and finance lease obligations outstanding less cash and cash equivalents) of €2,153.4 million, resulted in total consideration of
€3,215.8 million. The acquisition was completed in order to achieve certain financial, operational and strategic benefits through
the integration of KBW with our company, and, to a lesser extent, with Liberty Global’s other broadband communications operations
in Europe.

Aspart of a reorganization that was effected through a series of mergers and consolidations, KBW Musketeer and its immediate
subsidiary, Kabel BW Erste Beteiligungs GmbH, were merged into UPC Germany HC2 and UPC Germany HC2 was subsequently
merged into KBW. As aresult of these transactions, which were effective upon registration in March 2012, UPC Germany HoldCol
GmbH (UPC Germany HC1) became the immediate parent company of KBW and the issuer of the KBW Senior Notes (as defined
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and described in note 13). As a result of the May 2012 completion of the KBW Fold-in, as described in note 1, the immediate
parent of UPC Germany HC1 became part of our consolidated borrowing group. For additional information, see note 13.
Additionally, UPC Germany HC1 and Kabel Baden-Wiirttemberg Verwaltungs-GmbH were merged into KBW in August 2012.

The LGI/KBW Transaction was subject to the approval of the Federal Cartel Office (FCO) in Germany, which approval was
received in December 2011 upon final agreement of certain commitments we made to address the competition concerns of the
FCO, as outlined below:

(a) We committed to the distribution of basic digital television channels (as opposed to channels marketed in premium
subscription packages) on our entire network in unencrypted form commencing January 1,2013. This commitment generally
covers free-to-air television channels in standard definition and high definition (HD) and is consistent with the practice that
had been adopted by KBW prior to the LGI/KBW Transaction. If, however, free-to-air television broadcasters request their
HD content to be distributed in an encrypted HD package, the encryption of free-to-air HD channels is still possible. In
addition, we made a commitment that, through December 31, 2016, the annual carriage fees we receive for each such free-
to-air television channel distributed in digital or simulcast in digital and analog would not exceed a specified annual amount,
determined by applying our applicable rate card systems as of January 1, 2012;

(b)  Effective January 1, 2012, we waived exclusivity rights in access agreements with housing associations with respect to the
usage of infrastructures other than our in-building distribution networks to provide television, broadband internet or
telephony services within the building;

(c)  Effective January 1, 2012, upon expiration of the minimum term of an access agreement with a housing association, we
will transfer the ownership rights to the in-building distribution network to the building owner or other party granting access.
In addition, we waived the rights to remove in-building distribution networks; and

(d) A special early termination right was granted with respect to certain of our existing access agreements (the Remedy HA
Agreements) with the largest housing associations that cover more than 800 dwelling units and which had a remaining term
of more than three years as of December 15,2011. The total number of dwelling units covered by the Remedy HA Agreements
was approximately 340,000 as of December 15,2011. The special termination right may be exercised on or before September
30 of each calendar year up to the expiration of the current contract term, with termination effective as of January 1 or July
1 of the following year. If the special termination right is exercised, compensation will be paid to partially reimburse our
company for unamortized investments in modernizing the in-building network based on an agreed formula. To the extent
we are successful in obtaining renewals of the Remedy HA Agreements, we expect that these renewed contracts will contain
pricing and other provisions that are somewhat less favorable to our company than those in previous agreements. At
December 31, 2012, approximately 40% of the dwelling units covered by the Remedy HA Agreements remain subject to
the special termination right.

In January 2012, two of our competitors, including the incumbent telecommunications operator, each filed an appeal against
the FCO regarding its decision to approve the LGI/KBW Transaction. We believe that the FCO’s decision will ultimately be upheld
and we currently intend to support the FCO in defending the decision. In addition, we do not expect that the filing of these appeals
will have any impact on the ongoing integration and development of our operations. The ultimate resolution of this matter is
expected to take up to four years, including the appeals process.

The FCO is investigating customary practices regarding the duration of contracts with multiple dwelling units for analog
television services, including with respect to one such contract that the FCO had previously identified between our company and
a landlord as potentially being subject to amendment by order. The FCO indicated that the contract term of 10 years may be an
infringement of European and German antitrust laws and that it is inclined to open a test case that could set a precedent for all (or
almost all) market participants. We cannot predict the outcome of these FCO proceedings, however, any FCO decision that would
limit the duration of our contracts with multiple dwelling units could have a material adverse impact on the financial condition
and results of operations of our company.

We have accounted for the LGI/KBW Transaction using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase
price was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets based on assessments of their respective fair values, and the excess of
the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill.
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A summary of the KBW Purchase Price and the opening balance sheet of KBW Musketeer as of the December 15, 2011
acquisition date is presented in the following table. The opening balance sheet presented below reflects our final purchase price
allocation (in millions).

Cash and Cash EQUIVALENLS ............ccuiiiiiiiciiiie ettt ettt ettt et e ste e e e s teesbesteesbeeteesbeessesseesseseessesseessesaeensenseas € 179.7
OtNET CUITENT ASSELS (@) ....eeuvieviietiiitieeiteeeteeeteeetee ettt eeteeeteeeteeeveeeseeeabeaesaaeeseeseeesseessaessseesaessseenssesssseseessseensesssseenseees 46.3
Property and €qUIPIMENT, NEt.........cc.iciiiiiiiiiiieieite ettt ettt ettt eeteeeteeaesteesbesteesbesssesbeessesseessesseessesaeessesseensesseas 1,421.9
GOOAWIIL (D) vttt ettt ettt ettt et e et e e et e et et e b e e e st s e e st et e st e b e st et ene et eneebeneebe e ebeneesenene 1,405.6
Intangible assets SUbject t0 AMOTtIZALION (C) .....ccvieveivieiriirierieieeteeeeete et et eeeete et e steebesteebeeseeseessesseessesaeessesreensesseas 694.5
Other NONCUITENE ASSELS ..c.veuviutiuienieieiieiteitet ettt ettt ettt ea et eb e eb e e bt e bt e bt e b e st e st et et et et es s entebtesteseebeebeebesbesbeebeee 27.0
Current portion of debt and finance 16ase ODIIGAtIONS. .........c..cceevuiiiiriieiiiieee ettt s reeeeas (39.3)
Other CUITENT THADIIITIES . .......eeviiiiiietie ettt ettt ettt et e et e et e et e e eteeeebeeebeeetbeeseeeebeenseeseseeseesasseseessseensesssseenseees (131.8)
Noncurrent debt and finance 1ease ObBIIZALIONS ..........c.ccveiiiiiiiiiieie ettt re e s aeeae e reeseeenas (2,293.8)
Other NONCUITENE [IADIIIEIES. ... .cccviieiii ittt ettt ettt e et e ete e et eeeteeetbeeteeeebeesbeeseseeseesaseeseessseenseessseeseees (247.7)
KBW PUICRASE PIICE .......oviiiiiiie ettt ettt e et e et e e et e e e et e e e eaateeseaeeeeaaeesesaeesasteeesaseesaseeesaneeesanes € 1,0624

(a)  Includes trade accounts receivables of €18.9 million, net of an allowance for impairment of €4.9 million, and other current
receivables of €2.4 million.

(b)  The goodwill recognized is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to take advantage of the existing advanced broadband
communications networks of KBW to gain immediate access to potential customers and (ii) substantial synergies that are
expected to be achieved through the integration of KBW with our other broadband communications operations in Germany.
We expect that €294.2 million of the goodwill recognized as of December 15, 2011 will be deductible for tax purposes.

(c)  Amounts primarily include intangible assets related to customer relationships. At December 15,2011, the weighted average
useful life of KBW’s intangible assets was approximately 10 years.
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The following pro forma consolidated operating results for the year ended December 31, 2011 give effect to (i) the LGI/KBW
Transaction, (ii) the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing, as defined and described in note 13, and (iii) the change in the reporting
entities associated with the KBW Fold-in as if such transactions had been completed as of January 1, 2011. As discussed above
and further described in note 13, we issued the 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC Germany in connection with the KBW Fold-in.
No interest expense on the 2012 Shareholder Loan is reflected in the following pro forma results prior to the May 2012 issuance
date. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions
had occurred on such date. The pro forma adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable.

Revenue:
Subscription revenue:

TRIEPRONY ...ttt ettt ettt ettt e st e b e e sa et e e tb e b e sb e baenbeeteenseereenaenes
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVETIUE .......ecuvieeeieeiiieriieeieerieeieesteeeteessreeseesseeeseessseeseesssesnseesssesnseens
INON-SUDSCIIPION TEVEIIUE ... .eeueieiiiieieieeiieteeite ettt ettt etce et e e steestesbeetesbeentesbeenteeneeneeens

Operating costs and expenses:

Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Nt ...........cccceceeerererinererenenereenes
Related-party fees and alloCations.........co.eecierieiiiieri e

Financial and other expense:
Interest expense:

TRILA-PATEY ettt ettt ettt e et e e et e e st et e ne et nee e enes
ReIAtEA-PAILY ...c.veeeieieeeieee ettt ettt ettt ettt et nneens
Foreign currency transaction 10SSES, NEL.........c.evuerierierierierienieriesieseenieesesseesesseensesseesesens
Realized and unrealized gains on derivative instruments, Net...........cceeveevverreecreeeerreseenennes
(013513 013170} 0o TS s 1< SRR
Net financial and other EXPEeNSE........cccerieriiieiiiieieeetee et

L 0SS DEfOIe INCOME TAXES ...vvieurieeerieiieitieieeeteesteeeteeesteesreeteesebeeaeeseseesaessseeseessseenseens
INCOME tAX DENECTIL....c.eieiiiieiieiieeeeee ettt st e st e s e naesseennennean
INEE L0SS -ttt b et b e bbbt

Further details of OpEx and SG&A:

Direct costs (programming and copyright, interconnect and other)...........cccecceveerinienne.
Staff-related costs (excluding restructuring charges) .........coceveeeeereeienieneeere e
NEtWOTK OPEIAtING COSES ..eeuvirureiiriieriieiertietesteeteeteeteestesteestesseentesseensesseensesseesesseensesseensenns
Sales and MArketing COSES.......uuiriiriiriieierieriere ettt erte sttt eae st eaesseessesseessesanesseensensens
Other INAITECE COSES .....eviurriiuirtinietiietitetirtet ettt sttt ettt ettt ettt sae sttt sbeseeaeanenes

Further details of impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net:
RESHUCTUIING CIEAILS. .. .evieieieieiiei ettt ettt ettt et et et esae et e eneeeeens
Gain on diSPOSAL OF ASSELS......eeruirieriieieriieie ettt ettt ee st sneesseeneesseensenneas
ASSCE IMPAITTNICIILS ....eevveveenierireieeiiesteestesteetesseetesseessesseessesseessesssessesssesesssesseessesseensesseessesses
Direct acquisition Costs and Other...........cceevuirieriiiieriiiiee e
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Year ended
December 31, 2011

in millions

€ 924.0

220.8
292.5

1,437.3
193.1

1,630.4

460.5
206.2
3.9
35.8

706.4

924.0
618.2

305.8

(425.2)
(99.9)
(50.6)

18.0
0.8

(556.9)

(251.1)
40.7

€ (210.4)

€ 161.5
149.7
136.4
90.3
128.8

€ 666.7

€ (0.2)
(1.3)
52
0.2
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Acquisition of Old Unitymedia

On January 28, 2010, Unitymedia KabelBW completed the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction, whereby Unitymedia KabelBW
paid cash of €2,006.0 million (the Old Unitymedia Purchase Price), to acquire from Unity Media S.C.A. all of the issued and
outstanding capital stock of Old Unitymedia. In addition to the Old Unitymedia Purchase Price, we acquired Old Unitymedia’s
net debt (aggregate principal amount of debt and finance lease obligations outstanding less cash and cash equivalents) of €1,586.3
million at January 28, 2010 and incurred direct acquisition costs of €23.3 million, which were recorded during the first quarter of
2010 and which are included in impairment, restructuring and other operating items in our consolidated statement of operations.
The LGI/Unitymedia Transaction was completed in order to achieve certain financial, operational and strategic benefits through
the integration of Old Unitymedia with Liberty Global’s existing European operations.

The Old Unitymedia Purchase Price was funded with (i) €849.2 million of cash from the escrow accounts associated with the
2009 UM Notes, as defined and described in note 13, and (ii) loans payable to UPC Germany, as further described in note 13.

We have accounted for the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction using the acquisition method of accounting, whereby the total purchase
price was allocated to the acquired identifiable net assets based on assessments of their respective fair values, and the excess of
the purchase price over the fair values of these identifiable net assets was allocated to goodwill.

The summarized financial position of Unitymedia KabelBW (after giving retrospective effect to the Unitymedia Merger) as
of January 28, 2010 is presented in the following table. The opening balance sheet presented below reflects our final purchase
price allocation (in millions):

a8 etk h e bt h et h et R et e Rttt et A e a e R et b et Rt R et e bt e bt et e st et eneete e be st benene € 125.9
ACCOUNLS TECEIVADIE ......eiviieiiiiieiecieciecteet ettt ettt ettt e et e s teesaesteesbesteesbeeseesbeessesseessesseessesseessesseessesaeesnesaeensesseas 197.0
ONET CUITENE ASSELS ..c.viutintenteteiteiteitei ettt ettt ettt ettt eb e bt e bt b e e bt s bbb et st et e s et eatebtebtebeebeebesbeebeebesae st et enee 20.3
Property and €qQUIPIMENT, NMETL...........c.ccviiieiiiiieiicieeteee ettt et e steestesteesaesteesbesteesseeseesseessessesseesseassesseessesaeessesaeessesseas 2,028.4
GOOAWIIL () vttt ettt ettt sttt st a ettt et et et e st e b et e b et e b e e e b et e bt et e st st ene et e st etenesbeneebenene 1,436.1
Intangible assets subject t0 aMOTtiZAtiON (D) .........ccuevvieviiirieiiiieiiceeie ettt ste b e steesbesteebeereesaeesnesaeensesaeas 732.2
Other NONCUITENT ASSEES, TIET ....vvvvviiiiieiieieeeeeeeeeteeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeteeeeessesaseeessesiateessssaaseaeessssssaseesssensasseessassassteesessssseeessssns 234
Current portion of debt and finance 1€ase ODIIGAtIONS. ............cceevviiieiiiiieiiiciece ettt re s saeas 0.7)
Other CUITENT THADIIITIES . ......veetiiiiiciie ettt ettt ettt et e e te e tteebeesebeeabeessseeaseesseenseeseeeaseesssesaseessseenseenns (437.6)
Noncurrent debt and finance 1ease ODIIGALIONS ..........cc.coieiiirieiiiieiieiee ettt b e re s ste s e ereesseens (1,711.5)
Other NONCUITENE [HADIIIEIES. ... .ccviiiiiiiiieciiecie ettt ettt et e e ete e teeebeestbeebeesebeesseessseenbeesaeeaseesssesasesssseenseenns (407.5)
Old Unitymedia PUIChASE PLiCE........c.cccuiiiiiiiiiiciicieciietce ettt ettt ettt sb e e te b e eaeebeeseesbeenaesaeesneseeas € 2,006.0

(a)  The goodwill recognized in connection with the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction is primarily attributable to (i) the ability to
take advantage of Old Unitymedia’s existing advanced broadband communications network to gain immediate access to
potential customers and (ii) substantial synergies that are expected to be achieved through the integration of Old Unitymedia
with Liberty Global’s other broadband communications operations in Europe.

(b)  Amount primarily includes intangible assets related to customer relationships, which had a useful life of approximately
seven years at the acquisition date.
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The following pro forma statement of operations data of Unitymedia KabelBW for the year ended December 31, 2010 gives
effect to (i) the Unitymedia Merger, (ii) the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction and (iii) the March 2, 2010 Unitymedia Debt Pushdown,
as defined and described in note 13, as if such transactions had been completed as of January 1, 2010. These pro forma amounts
are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on such date.
The pro forma adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable.

Year ended
December 31, 2010
in millions

Revenue:
Subscription revenue:

VIEO. ..ttt ettt et b bttt bttt a e h e bbbt e bt bttt b bt et et et en e en e e bt bt bt e bbb e b e € 618.0
Broadband INEEIMEE ..........coouiiiiieee ettt ettt s e e bt ettt et b et e bt et et e et e eaee e eaee 88.8
JIS] 157 0] 1 o) 1SS PS 117.5
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIUE .....vvevieeiietieetietieiestteteeteeteseeesteeesebeessesseessesseessesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssensenns 824.3
INON-SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIIUC .. .eeueiiieiteiieiteete ettt ettt ettt e et et e et et e s bt et e sbeemeesbeemteebeenteeseenteeneeneeeneeneeenee 110.9
935.2

Operating costs and expenses:
L0 70) 25 USRS 273.6
SGEA ...ttt h bt h b b h ettt a et ebe bbbt ettt e b e 140.7
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Nt ...........ccccveruereerierierieeierieeeesreeee e eee e eseesreesaeseees 26.7
Related-party fees and alloCatiONS. .........eeueruieiiriieie ettt sttt st e e saeas 23.8
464.8
EBITDA ...ttt ettt ettt ettt a e h e e bt e bt e bt s h e ek e b et et e et et en b e st e neeb e bt ebeebeebenbenaen 470.4
Depreciation and amOTtiZATION .........eueiuieierieieete ettt ettt et es et e st e s bt e e et e st e et eteseeetesneeaeeaean 351.8
EBIT ..ttt ettt ettt b e h e bt bt a ke h ettt ettt be e bt e bt bt eaeeb b naen 118.6

Financial and other expense:
Interest expense:

TRILA-PATLY ..ottt et ettt st et e et e b e e et e st e st et e enseeseensesseenseenee st ense st ensenseenteeseenseeneenneenes (247.7)
REIALEA-PATLY ..c.veeeiiiieiieciiei ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e st e e s b et e esbeeseesseeseesseesaesseasaesseessessaessanssensenssensenseensennes 93.5)
Foreign currency transaction 10SSES, MET .......ccuevieriirieriiiieie ettt ettt ettt ettt e et et e saeeeeseeeeesseenaesaeas (13.1)

Realized and unrealized gains on derivative inStruments, NEt .........cc.ceevererrerierienterienieeeeeeeeeeeese e 33.2

ONET INCOIMNIE ...ttt ettt sttt a et ea e e bt eb e e bt e bt e b e e bt st et e s et emeentene e st ebeebeesesbeebesbeseennen 1.5
Net financial and Other EXPENSE.......co.eeruiiieiiiieiteeerteee ettt ettt ettt e eesbe et esbeeneesbeeneenneens (319.6)
L0SS DEfOTE INCOME TAXES ...vveivvieeieeiieiiiieitieeite et eeteeeveestteebeestaeebeestseesbeessseesbeessseesseessseasssessseenseesssesnres (201.0)

INCOME TAX DEMETIL......eeuieiiitiitiiti ettt sttt sttt et et e st et e bt eb e bt ebeebeebesbesaeten 33.1
Loss from CONtinuUing OPETATIONS ......c.uerueetertieieieerieeteteetee e ettesteeate bt ete e st e et eseestesseenbeeseeneeeneenseeneenaeans € (167.9)

Further details of OpEx and SG&A:

Direct costs (programming and copyright, interconnect and other)............ccceieeoiriieiiniieiiniee e € 86.5
STAFT-TELALEA COSES ..ttt ettt et b ettt sttt b et ettt et et et e bt eb e e bt ebesbeebenbenaen 92.2
INEEWOTK OPCTATINZ COSTS...uviivieriiiirtieieiieetesteestesteeteeseesseeseesseestesseeseesseessesseassesseessasssessesssessesssessenssessensesssenses 90.5
Sales and MArKELING COSES ......oiuiiiiiiiieiiee ettt ettt ettt et et e et e s bt e tesseeaesaeenbeeseenbeeseenbeeneenseans 74.6
Oher INAITECT COSES ...vtuvttitirtiriintirterte sttt ettt ettt ettt b e bt sttt b e sttt et et st est e bt ebe e bt ebeebesbesbesbeebesbenaens 70.5

€ 414.3

Further details of impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net:

RESHUCTUIING CHATZES ... eeuviiiieieeiieiieitet ettt ettt e st e st e st e e st e besse e b e ese et e esseseensenseensesseensesneensesseensenneen € 34
DIrECt ACQUISILION COSES ...uviivietiriieitieiestieteeteeteeteeteeseeseestessesseessesssessesssessesssesseessasseessesseessesseessesssessesseessensees 233

€ 26.7
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Discontinued Operation

Effective September 30, 2010, we closed down the DTH operations of our arena segment. The operating results of our arena
segment during 2010 are classified as a discontinued operation in our consolidated statement of operations and are summarized
in the following table (in millions):

REVEIUE ...ttt ettt ettt et eh e bt e bt e bt e bt e bt e bt et b et et et et emtebtebtebeebe e bt e benae st e b e e € 7.8
Operating COStS ANA EXPEIISES........ccvievierrierierieerteiteeteiteeteeteeteeseesseeseesseestesseessesseessesseessesssessesssassesssasseessesssessesssessessees € 11
EBITDA ..o eeooosssoossssssss s € 07
LOSS DETOIE INCOME TAXES ....veevviveeerieiietieieeiteeteiteeete vt eebeeteesbeeteesseeseebeessesseessesseessesseessesssessesssasseessaseessesaeensesesensenses €—(08)
INCOME TAX DENETIL.....ceititiiiite ettt b ettt ettt e bt ebt e bt e bt e bt e b sae st b e € 2.0
Earnings from diScONtiNUEd OPETALION ...........ccueiuiiieiiiiiiciieteeteete ettt ste e teebeste e b e e teesbeeseesseessesseessesaeessesaeensenseas € 1.2
6) Derivative Instruments

We have entered into certain derivative instruments to manage interest rate exposure and foreign currency exposure with
respect to the U.S. dollar. Portions of the notional amounts of the derivative instruments that were originally entered into by the
Kabel BW Group in March 2011 in order to manage the U.S. dollar currency risks and the variable interest rate risks associated
with the KBW Notes (as defined in note 13) were transferred to Unitymedia Hessen in connection with the KBW Fold-in and the
remaining notional amounts were canceled. For additional information regarding the KBW Fold-in, see notes 5 and 13. Hedge
accounting is not applied to our interest rate and cross-currency swaps.

The following table provides details of the fair values of our derivative instrument assets and liabilities:

December 31,2012 December 31, 2011 (a)
Current (b)  Noncurrent (b) Total Current (b)  Noncurrent (b) Total
in millions
Assets:
Cross-currency derivative
contracts () ..ooevevevevenenen. € 20 € 56.9 € 589 € 49 € 93.7 € 98.6
Liabilities:

Cross-currency and interest
rate derivative
coNtracts (C) .e..eoeeveeveneenens € — € 57 € 57 € 63 € 73 € 13.6

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

(b)  Our current derivative assets and liabilities are included in other current assets and other current liabilities, respectively,
and our noncurrent derivative assets and liabilities are included in other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities,
respectively, in our consolidated balance sheets.

(c)  We consider credit risk in our fair value assessments. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, (i) the fair values of our cross-
currency derivative contracts that represented assets have been reduced by credit risk valuation adjustments aggregating
€4.5 million and €10.0 million, respectively, and (ii) the fair values of our cross-currency and interest rate derivative contracts
that represented liabilities have been reduced by credit risk valuation adjustments aggregating €1.7 million and €0.5 million,
respectively. The adjustments to our derivative assets relate to credit risk associated with counterparty nonperformance
and adjustments to our derivative liabilities relate to credit risk associated with our own nonperformance. In all cases, the
adjustments take into account offsetting liability or asset positions within a given contract. Our determination of credit risk
valuation adjustments generally is based on our and our counterparties’ credit risks, as observed in the credit default swap
market. The changes in the credit risk valuation adjustments associated with our derivative instruments resulted in net gains
(losses) of €6.7 million, (€7.4 million) and (€7.4 million) during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These amounts are
included in realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, in our consolidated statements of operations.
For further information concerning our fair value measurements, see note 7.
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The details of our realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions

L€ (375) € 263 € 414
(5.6) (0.8) 2.6)
€ 431 € 255 € 38.8

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
(b)  During the third quarter of 2012, our interest rate derivative contracts were terminated.

The net cash paid or received related to our derivative instruments is classified as an operating, investing or financing activity
in our consolidated statements of cash flows based on the objective of the derivative instrument and the classification of the
applicable underlying cash flows. For cross-currency or interest rate derivative contracts that are terminated prior to maturity, the
cash paid or received upon termination that relates to future periods is classified as a financing activity. The classifications of our
derivative cash flows are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions

OPErating ACHIVITIES ...ecvvervieieriieiereeieieeieseetesteeteessesseessesseeseesseessesseessesseessesseensenseens € 0.8 € 8.1) € (19.6)
FINANCING ACHIVITIES ...ecvvevieeiirieeiicieeteeteete ettt ettt et esb et eabeeteeabeeaeesseennesaeennas (12.3) — (66.6)
TOTAL ettt ettt b ettt b et ne e € (11.5) € 8.1) € (86.2)

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

The terms of our outstanding cross-currency swap contracts at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Notional amount Notional Interest rate Interest rate
due from amount due to due from due to
Final maturity date (a) counterparty counterparty counterparty counterparty

in millions

January 2021 ..o $ 1,000.0 € 688.2 5.50% 5.58%
March 2019 ..o e $ 4593 € 326.5 7.50% 7.98%

(a)  The notional amount of multiple derivative instruments that mature within the same calendar month are shown in the
aggregate and interest rates are presented on a weighted average basis.

7 Fair Value Measurements

Our derivative instruments are the only financial instruments that were accounted for at fair value as of December 31, 2012.
The reported fair values of our derivative instruments as of December 31, 2012 likely will not represent the value that will be
realized upon their ultimate settlement or disposition. In this regard, we expect that the values realized generally will be based on
market conditions at the time of settlement, which may occur at the maturity of the derivative instrument or at the time of the
repayment or refinancing of the underlying debt instrument.
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We disclose fair value measurements according to a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value into three broad levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted
market prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. We record transfers of our derivative instruments in or out of Levels 1, 2 or 3 at the
beginning of the quarter during which the transfer occurred. During 2012, no such transfers were made.

We do not have any financial instruments that fall under Level 1 or Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

All of our Level 2 inputs (interest rate futures, swap rates, and certain of the inputs for our weighted average cost of capital
calculations) and certain of our Level 3 inputs (credit spreads) are obtained from pricing services. These inputs, or interpolations
or extrapolations thereof, are used in our internal models to calculate, among other items, yield curves, forward interest and currency
rates and weighted average cost of capital rates. In the normal course of business, we receive market value assessments from the
counterparties to our derivative contracts. Although we compare these assessments to our internal valuations and investigate
unexpected differences, we do not otherwise rely on counterparty quotes to determine the fair values of our derivative instruments.
The midpoints of applicable bid and ask ranges generally are used as inputs for our internal valuations.

As further described in note 6, we have entered into various derivative instruments to manage our interest rate and foreign
currency exchange risk. The recurring fair value measurements of these derivative instruments are determined using discounted
cash flow models. All but one of the inputs to these discounted cash flow models consist of, or are derived from, observable Level
2 data for substantially the full term of these derivative instruments. This observable data includes applicable interest rate futures
and swap rates, which are retrieved or derived from available market data. Although we may extrapolate or interpolate this data,
we do not otherwise alter this data in performing our valuations. We incorporate a credit risk valuation adjustment in our fair value
measurements to estimate the impact of both our own nonperformance risk and the nonperformance risk of our counterparties.
Our and our counterparties’ credit spreads are Level 3 inputs that are used to derive the credit risk valuation adjustments with
respect to our various interest rate and foreign currency derivative valuations. As we would not expect changes in our or our
counterparties’ credit spreads to have a significant impact on the valuations of these derivative instruments, we have determined
that these valuations fall under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Our credit risk valuation adjustments with respect to our cross-
currency and interest rate swaps are quantified and further explained in note 6.

Fair value measurements are also used in connection with nonrecurring valuations performed in connection with impairment
assessments and acquisition accounting. These nonrecurring valuations include the valuation of our company, customer relationship
intangible assets, property and equipment and the implied value of goodwill. The valuation of our company (our only cash-
generating unit) is based at least in part on discounted cash flow analyses. With the exception of certain inputs for our weighted
average cost of capital and discount rate calculations that are derived from pricing services, the inputs used in our discounted cash
flow analyses, such as forecasts of future cash flows, are based on our assumptions. The valuation of customer relationships is
primarily based on an excess earnings methodology, which is a form of a discounted cash flow analysis. The excess earnings
methodology requires us to estimate the specific cash flows expected from the customer relationship, considering such factors as
estimated customer life, the revenue expected to be generated over the life of the customer, contributory asset charges, and other
factors. Tangible assets are typically valued using a replacement or reproduction cost approach, considering factors such as current
prices of the same or similar equipment, the age of the equipment and economic obsolescence. The implied value of goodwill is
determined by allocating the fair value of our company to all of the assets and liabilities of that unit as if the reporting unit had
been acquired in a business combination, with the residual amount allocated to goodwill. All of our nonrecurring valuations use
significant unobservable inputs and therefore fall under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. We performed nonrecurring fair value
measurements in connection with our October 1, 2012 impairment test and the LGI/KBW Transaction. The discount rate used to
value the customer relationships acquired in the LGI/KBW Transaction was 10%. See notes 5 and 8.
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The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in our consolidated balance sheets,
are as follows:

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 (a)
Carrying Carrying
Category (b) amount Fair value amount Fair value

in millions

Assets carried at fair value - derivative financial
instruments 1 € 589 € 589 € 98.6 € 98.6

Assets carried at cost or amortized cost:

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue.................. 11 € 111.2 € 111.2 € 76.5 € 76.5

Restricted Cash .....oooveriiriieniieniienieeeec e 11 1.8 € 1.8 1.9 € 1.9

Loan receivable — related-party ..........cccocoeiviiiinins I 168.7 (c) 54.0 (c)

Other current and noncurrent financial assets ........ 11 8.0 € 8.0 102 € 10.2

Cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccccceiieiinnennnn. | 202 € 20.2 48.1 € 48.1
Total assets carried at cost or amortized COSt......cccccevveevueennnne € 309.9 € 190.7

Liabilities carried at fair value - derivative financial
instruments 1 € 57 € 57 € 13.6 € 13.6

Liabilities carried at cost or amortized cost:

Debt 0bligations..........ecvvveervereeuirieinieieeeeeeeneneens 1 € 51967 € 5,707.8 € 50805 € 5,325.0
Loans payable — related-party.........ccccooeveeiriienne. 111 1,397.8 (©) 193.1 ()
Accrued liabilities (including related-party

accrued liabilities) ......coeveereeencineincinecneens ar 2144 € 2144 1479 € 147.9
Accounts payable and other (including related-

party accounts payable)...........c.ccocereeeverereeenennnns I 109.5 € 109.5 7477 € 74.7
Finance lease obligations.......cc.ccoeeeieiiicciiciennnnnn. A% 62 € 6.2 63 € 6.3

Total liabilities carried at cost or amortized cOst........c.cceevenenne. € 69246 € 55025

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

(b)  Pursuant to IAS 39, category I refers to financial assets and liabilities held for trading, category II refers to loans and
receivables, category III refers to financial liabilities measured at amortized cost and category IV refers to derivatives
designated as hedging instruments. Category V refers to finance leases outside the scope of IAS 39.

(¢)  Due to the related-party nature of these loans, the fair value is not subject to reasonable estimation.
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Pre-tax amounts recognized in our consolidated statements of operations for 2012, 2011 and 2010 related to our financial

assets and liabilities are as follows:

Other
statement of Impact on
Interest Interest operations loss before
income expense effects (a) income taxes
in millions
Year ended December 31, 2012:
Derivative assets carried at fair value through our consolidated
statement Of OPETAtIONS ............o.veeververvreereeseeseeeseesesesseseeseesesenaas € — € — € (31.8) € (31.8)
Assets carried at cost or amortized cost:
Trade receivables (B) ......coveviviiiiiiiiiiiiii — — (8.9) (8.9)
Loan receivable - related-party ........ccooeevvviviiiiininiii 2.7 — — 2.7
Derivative liabilities carried at fair value through our consolidated
statement Of OPETAtIONS ............o.vveveeverereeeeereesseeseeseseeeeseessseseenans — — (11.3) (11.3)
Liabilities carried at cost or amortized COSt «....veeeervveernieeeriieeenniieennnne — (522.1) (123.5) (645.6)
€ 2.7 € (522.1) € (175.5) € (694.9)
Year ended December 31, 2011 (c¢):
Derivative assets carried at fair value through our consolidated
statement Of OPETALIONS ...........cvvveveieevreerereeieiesiesssessee e € — € — € 264 € 26.4
Assets carried at cost or amortized cost:
Trade receivables (D) . ..oooeeeiieiicicc — — (5.1 (5.1
Loan receivable - related-party .......cocovvevveieieiiiniiiiiec 0.5 — — 0.5
Derivative liabilities carried at fair value through our consolidated
statement Of OPETAtIONS .............coovveeveveeeeeeeneeseeeeeeeeeseeeeeese e — — (0.9) 0.9)
Liabilities carried at cost or amortized COSt ......cocvveviiiiiiiiiiinnnnn. — (352.1) (21.6) (373.7)
€ 05 € (352.1) € (1.2) € (352.8)
Year ended December 31, 2010:
Derivative assets carried at fair value through our consolidated
statement Of OPETAtIONS ..........c.c.vervevereverereerereereeeeseseeeeaeeesesenesaesnas € — € — € 59.6 € 59.6
Assets carried at cost or amortized cost:
Trade receivables (D) ... 0.3 — (8.4) 8.1
RESHCLEd CASN...eeitiiiiiiiieieeceteete e — — 31.7 31.7
Derivative liabilities carried at fair value through our consolidated
statement Of OPETAtIONS .........c..cvvveveeverrereereesesscseseesee s — — (20.8) (20.8)
Liabilities carried at cost or amortized COSt «.....coovrviriieniiiiriniennenns — (342.8) (47.8) (390.6)
€ 03 € (342.8) € 143 € (328.2)

(a)  Except as noted in (b) below, amounts are included in net financial and other expense in our consolidated statements of

operations.

(b)  The “Other statement of operations effects” amounts represent provisions for impairment of trade receivables and are

included in OpEx in our consolidated statements of operations.

(c)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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8 Long-lived Assets

Property and Equipment, Net

Changes during 2012 and 2011 in the carrying amounts of our property and equipment, net, are set forth below:

Support
Cable Customer equipment,
distribution premises buildings
systems equipment and land Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2012 ..o € 3,502.6 € 2478 € 1504 € 3,900.8
AAAITIONS ..ttt e 259.2 126.7 37.5 423.4
Retirements and diSposals ...........cccoeeeevieiiiieiiieeieceeeceeie e (12.6) (6.4) 2.5 (21.5)

December 31, 2012 .o € 37492 € 368.1 € 185.4 € 43027

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2012 oo e € 3404 € 717 € 28.0 € 440.1
DEPIECIAtION ...e.vvenvieeieieeiiesieeieeteeie ettt e ste e saeeae e e beseaeseesnenseens 309.2 68.9 233 401.4
Retirements and diSposals ...........ccceeveeeiieiiiieiiiieieceee e (10.6) 4.7 3.9 (19.2)

December 31, 2012 ..o € 639.0 € 1359 € 474 € 822.3

Property and equipment, net:

December 31, 2012 ...ouiuiiiieieeeeeee e € 3,1102 € 2322 € 138.0 € 3,4804

Support
Cable Customer equipment,
distribution premises buildings
systems equipment and land Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 201 Lo € 19785 € 150.8 € 106.3 € 2,235.6
LGI/KBW Transaction (NOt€ 5)........ccecvveveerrierierieerieseeieseesveeenennenns 1,366.3 37.9 17.7 1,421.9
AAAIEONS () 1eevveeieiieiieiieiieieeieetese ettt eee e ese st ssesse s s 170.4 65.0 26.5 261.9
Retirements and disposals (8).......c..cceevvieveerierierierieiieie e (12.6) 5.9 0.1 (18.6)

December 31, 2011 (2) .ooveeverveeierieieieieieieieeetee et € 35026 € 2478 € 1504 € 3,900.8

Accumulated depreciation:

January 1, 2011 € 1619 € 312 € 133 € 206.4
DePreciation (Q) .......c.ccueeveereerieerieeieereeereeeeereeeteereeeresreeereerseereereeereens 190.2 46.3 14.8 251.3
Retirements and disposals (@) .......c.ccceevvievienieriereerieiieie e (11.7) (5.8) 0.1 (17.6)

December 31, 2011 (2) .ooveeverveeierieieieieieieieeetee et € 3404 € 71.7 € 28.0 € 440.1

Property and equipment, net:

December 31, 2011 (2) c.eovvieeiiieeieiieeiecieeeeeieeee et € 3,1622 € 176.1 € 122.4 € 3,460.7

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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For information concerning purchase obligations for property and equipment, see note 17. For information concerning pledged
assets, see note 13.

Goodwill

We performed our annual review for impairment as of October 1, 2012 and we concluded that the full amount of our goodwill
was recoverable. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations used to determine the recoverable amount are those
regarding weighted average cost of capital (WACC) and discount rates and expected changes to selling prices/product offerings
and direct costs during the period. These key assumptions were primarily derived from internal sources and external market data
and are based on past experience including estimates on the development of revenue and direct cost, customer acquisition and
retention costs, churn rates, capital expenditures, market share and growth rates. The calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management, and projections or extrapolations of our Long Range Plan through 2022. A WACC
of 10.2% was applied to the projected cash flows based on the current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to our company and our business plan. Cash flows beyond the 10-year period have been extrapolated using a steady
3.0% growth rate based on historical experience. This growth rate is at the upper range of the long-term average growth rate for
the industry, however, we compensated for this estimate by having more company specific risk in our WACC. A period of 10
years prior to implementing a continuing growth rate in the cash flow model is deemed reasonable due to the long-term capital
intensive nature of our industry. We believe that any reasonably possible changes in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based would not cause the carrying amount of our goodwill to exceed its recoverable amount.

Changes during 2012 and 2011 in the carrying amount of our goodwill are set forth below (in millions):

JANUATY 1, 20T Laiiiiiiiiiiiieiieiecieet ettt ettt e et et et e b e b e b e b e s essessessessesseseeseeseeseeseesessessessessessessessessassessaseeseasensensenns € 1,436.1
LGI/KBW Transaction (IOT€ 5)........cccceuieueruieieiieeteiteeteeteeseeseesseeseesseessesseessesseessesssessessssssessssssessssssesssesseessssssessessees 1,406.9
DECeMDBET 31, 2011 (Q) c.vvieiieiiieieeeie ettt ettt e et e e e et e et e e b e e staeeebe e beeeabeebeessbeenseessseenbseesseebeeeaseeareesraeenseenes 2,843.0
AJUSTIMENLS (D) 1.ttt ettt et et e e e te et e e teesbe e bt e beetb e b e etb e b e ets e beetb e beert e bt enseereenteeaeensesreenteareas (1.3)
DECEMDET 31, 2002 oottt ettt et e ettt e e e e et e e e ses et eeeees e ateeeeeesanssaeeeesesasaeessensasseeesssnatteesessnreeeeeaans € 2841.7

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

(b)  Represents the net effect of adjustments recorded to the preliminary acquisition accounting with respect to the LGI/KBW
Transaction. For additional information, see note 5.
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Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization, Net

Changes during 2012 and 2011 in the carrying amounts of our finite-lived intangible assets are set forth below:

Subscriber
Customer acquisition
relationships costs Other (a) Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 2012 .o € 13586 € 53.7 € 81.1 € 1,4934
AAAILIONS ..ottt — 73.0 10.6 83.6
Retirements and diSposals ........c..cceeveeeieriiriieniiiienecee e — (53.9) (1.6) (55.5)

December 31, 2012 ..o € 1,3586 € 72.8 € 90.1 € 1,521.5

Accumulated amortization:

January 1, 2012 ...occooiiieieiiiccieeecee ettt € 189.0 € 266 € 235 € 239.1
AMOTHZALION......ecvviiieeiiieeeieete ettt ettt ettt e ste e e beesaesaeeeseereens 160.1 56.4 21.0 237.5
Retirements and diSposals ........c..cceevverieriiiieniiienecese e — (53.9) (1.6) (55.5)

December 31, 2012 ...oooovieiieiceeeeeeeeeeeee e € 349.1 € 29.1 € 429 € 421.1

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net:
December 31, 2012 .oooiiiiieeeeeeeeeeee et € 1,005 € 437 € 472 € 1,1004

(a)  Primarily includes computer software costs and trade names.

Subscriber
Customer acquisition
relationships costs Other (a) Total
in millions

Cost:

January 1, 201 1.t e € 700.0 € 316 € 39.7 € 771.3
LGI/KBW Transaction (NOt€ 5)........ccceevuievrieeieecieeeieereecere e 658.6 — 359 694.5
AdItIONS (D) ..eoviieieiieeiiieeieeteeee e — 47.1 5.5 52.6
Retirements and disposals (b)........cccceevvevircieniniieneeieneeieseeieeieens — (25.0) — (25.0)

December 31, 2011 (D) .vieviiuieiieieeieceee et € 13586 € 53.7 € 81.1 € 14934

Accumulated amortization:

January 1, 201 1. € 88.6 € 13.1 € 12.8 € 114.5
AMOTHZAION (D) ..veevieiiiiciecieeeeeee e 100.4 38.5 10.7 149.6
Retirements and disposals (b)........cccceecvevircienincieninieneeieseeieeieens — (25.0) — (25.0)

December 31, 2011 (D) .vvciieiieiieieieeeece et € 189.0 € 26.6 € 235 € 239.1

Intangible assets subject to amortization, net:
December 31, 2011 (D) cuvieviiiiieeee e € 1,169.6 € 27.1 € 57.6 € 12543

(a)  Primarily includes computer software costs and trade names.

(b)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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) Trade Receivables and Unbilled Revenue, Net

The details of our trade receivables and unbilled revenue are set forth below:

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

TTade 1ECEIVADIES, ZIOSS ...iiviiuiiiietieciieie it ete sttt et e et et e e te et e et eeseessesseesaesseessesseessesssessesssesseessensenns € 56.5 € 48.2
Allowance for impairment of trade receivables ...........ooceviriieiiriieiieieeeee e 9.9) (17.0)
Trade TECEIVADIES, NEL ......cocueiiiieiiiiieeie ettt e et e et e et e e e eateeesaaeesenaeeesaaeessrnneesnaeeens 46.6 31.2
UNDILEA TEVEIUE ...ttt ettt ettt e et e st e b e essesseenseeseenseeneenseeneensesnsesseensensenn 64.6 453
Trade receivables and unbilled TEVENUE, NEL............ccueiiviiiiiiiiiieee et € 111.2 € 76.5
Noncurrent Unbilled reVENUE (D) .......c.eeeviiiiiiiiiieiieciiceee ettt e re et s veeeveeseveesraeeaneenns € 35 € 2.0
Current trade receivables and unbilled reVenUE, NEt .............cooovviiiiiiiiciiieie e € 107.7 € 74.5

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

(b)  Noncurrent unbilled revenue, which primarily results from revenue accrued for free and discounted services and other
customer incentives during promotional periods, is included in other noncurrent assets in our consolidated balance sheets.

The detailed aging of current trade receivables and related impairment amounts as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is set forth

below:
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 (a)
Gross trade  Allowance for  Gross trade  Allowance for
receivables impairment receivables impairment
in millions
Days past due:
CUITENE ..ttt € 16.1 € — € 158 € —
L = 30 e e et eba e s aeebaenaae s 16.7 0.3 8.8 0.6
BT 200 ettt st et n 5.5 0.6 4.9 2.1
01 =90 ot s n 3.8 0.8 3.0 1.4
OVEE 90ttt ettt et aeesae e enbe e esesseens 14.4 8.2 15.7 12.9
TOtal oo e € 56.5 € 99 € 482 € 17.0

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

At December 31,2012 and 2011, a total of €30.5 million and €15.4 million, respectively, was past due but not impaired. With
respect to these trade receivables, there are no indications that the subscribers will not meet their payment obligations.
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The following table shows the development of the allowance for impairment of trade receivables:

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

AlIOWANCE At JANMUATY 1 ....ueiiiiiiiiieiiiiecieeieeie ettt ettt b e st e sb e te e b e ete e b e eseesbeesaesseeseesaeessessnas € 17.0 € 15.7
Provisions for impairment of 1€CeIVADIES.........cccveviiieriiierieeeee e 8.9 5.1
WIite-0ffS Of TECEIVADIES .....cuviiiiiiciiciiceccece ettt ettt st teebeeseere e (16.0) 8.7
LGI/KBW Transaction (NNOTE 5).......cccueevuieiirieiieiiiesieeeeeeiteeeereereesseeseessseeseesseesseesssessseesssesseenns — 4.9

Allowance at DECeMDBET 31 .......oiiiiiiiiiieieie ettt e ettt ne s € 99 € 17.0

(a) As retrospectively revised - see note 5.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. The provision for impairment of trade
receivables is included in OPEX in our consolidated statements of operations. We do not hold any trade receivables in a foreign
currency.

10) Other Noncurrent Assets

The details of our other noncurrent assets are set forth as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

DErivative INSIUMEILS .......ccveieieriieiertieiese et eteesteetesteetestesaesseessesseessesseensesseesseeseeseeneessesssesseensensens € 569 € 93.7
Prepaid fIDEr 1EaSES. .....cviiiieiiciieiicietece ettt ettt et et b e et be e reesae e e saeeraenaeas 15.9 19.7
UNDILEA TEVEIUE ...ttt ettt ettt st e st e et e st essesseenseeseesseeseenseeneensesnsesseensensenn 35 2.0
RESIICEEA CASNL.....cviiieiiiiicecee ettt re e st b e s re e b e s aa e b e saesbeesnere e 1.8 1.9
L0115 T<) RSP RSTURSRP 8.6 54

Total Other NONCUITENE ASSELS ........icviiiierieiieeete et ete et ete et e st ebeete e b e eteebeeseesseesaesaeessesaeenseseeas € 86.7 € 122.7

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

a1 Accrued Liabilities, Third-Party

The details of our accrued liabilities, third-party are set forth as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

Accrued expenses (other than payroll related accruals)........ccoceecveriecienieiiinieecee e € 138.5 € 87.8
Accrued capital EXPENAItUIES .........c.ccieviiiiieiiiiicie ettt te et te b e ereesbeereesaeesaesaeessesaeas 324 26.4
Accrued payroll related compensation and Benefits ............occeveeeierierienieniieieeeee e 23.0 26.5

Total accrued liabilities, third-Party.............cccoeiiviiiiiiiiieiece ettt € 1939 € 140.7

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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12) Provisions

The details of our provisions are set forth as follows:

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

Net PENSION HADIIILY .....cviciiiiiiiieciecece sttt et et b e st b e et beets et e e s e beesseereenneens € 175 € 16.3
L0 11 1T OO OO OO SU PO SUR T PPRRRRRTRRRO 19.8 24.5

TOLAl PrOVISIONS .....viiiieeieiticiiecieete ettt ettt ettt e e s te e s e teesbesteesbeeseesbeeseesseessesseessesseessesasenseseas € 373 € 40.8
CUITENE POTTION c..eetetieiieetienteeeieteete et etesseetesseessesseessesseessessaenseessasseassesseensesssensesseensesssensesssensenssensenns € 179 € 23.0
INONCUITENE POTTION .....vevvivieitietieie et eeteete et e it esbe e st esbeeseesseessesseesseseeessesssessesssesseessesseessaseessesseenseases € 194 € 17.8

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

The following table shows the development of provisions:

Net pension
liability Other Total

in millions

JANUATY 1, 2012 .ottt ettt resnene € 16.3 € 245 € 40.8
AAITIONS ...ttt ettt ettt et et e e teete e teeta e teerbeereeaseereens 1.5 5.8 73
REICASES ...ttt ettt et et e e et et eeta e ete e eaeeere e (0.2) (7.6) (7.8)
CasSh PAYIMENLS. ......eeciieiiiiieeiee ettt et eete e b e e taesabe e teeeaseebeesebeeseenenas (0.1) 2.9) 3.0)

DecembDEr 31, 2012 ...ooeiiiieiiieieieieeteie ettt ettt enene € 17.5 € 19.8 € 37.3

JAnUATY 1, 20T Le.eiiiiiieiieicieieee ettt ettt ettt enene € 84 € 243 € 32.7
LGI/KBW Transaction (NOTE€ 5).....c..ccueeeeviereeieereeieeereeereereeeteeveeeseeseeeseesseeveesseeseens 7.1 6.3 13.4
AAAITIONS (2)111vieieieieieiiieieeiete ettt ettt ste et et eae s e essesreesbesssesesssesseessessesssesenns 0.8 5.8 6.6
REICASES () .veveievirieieciecie ettt ettt ettt et et ettt e te e te e et eraeereenseereens (6.3) (6.3)
Cash PAYMENLS (2) ..cuveeveerierieiieieiie ettt ste et a e sbeereesbesseessesseenseeseesseens — (5.6) (5.6)

DecembBer 31, 2011 (@) .cuvvveeiiieiiieeieieieieteieeetetete ettt b e € 163 € 245 € 40.8

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
Our expenses related to (i) our contributions to the German statutory pension system, (ii) our defined contribution plan, (iii)

our defined benefit pension plan and (iv) our direct insurance aggregated €16.1 million, €10.0 million and €8.9 million during
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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13) Debt and Finance Lease Obligations

The euro equivalents of the components of our consolidated debt and finance lease obligations are as follows:

December 31, 2012 Estimated fair value (a) Carrying value (b)
Interest Borrowing Euro December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
rate (c) currency equivalent 2012 2011 (d) 2012 2011 (d)

in millions

Third-party debt:

Parent:
2009 UM Senior Notes........... 9.625% € 665.0 € 665.0 € 749.0 € 686.6 € 652.7 € 651.5
UM Senior Exchange Notes ... ~ 9.500% € 618.0 618.0 718.8 — 616.3 —
Subsidiaries:

2009 UM Euro Senior

Secured NOtES o.vveeveeeen, 8.125% € 906.0 906.0 981.3 1,485.2 892.5 1,405.4
2009 UM Dollar Senior

Secured Notes ..........cceevenne — — — — 686.2 — 641.3
UM Euro Senior Secured

Exchange Notes .................. 7.500% € 735.1 735.1 810.9 — 741.1 —
UM Dollar Senior Secured

Exchange Notes .................. 7.500% $  459.3 348.0 383.5 — 354.0 —
September 2012 UM Senior

Secured Notes ..................... 5.500% €  650.0 650.0 668.7 — 650.0 —
December 2012 UM Dollar

Senior Secured Notes.......... 5.500% $ 1,000.0 757.8 785.7 — 757.8 —
December 2012 UM Euro

Senior Secured Notes.......... 5.750% €  500.0 500.0 521.9 — 500.0 —
New Unitymedia KabelBW

Revolving Credit

Facility (€)....ccccvereeerueennne 3.359% € 337.5 337.5 — — — —
Unitymedia KabelBW

Revolving Credit

Facility (€)....cccceerveereennnne 2.609% € 80.0 80.0 — 77.2 — 80.0
Vendor financing (f)................ 3.550% € 19.8 19.8 19.8 — 19.8 —
KBW Notes (2) ....coveverevennnnee — — — — 2,323.0 — 2,294 .4

Total third-party debt before
transaction costs and

accrued interest................. 7.394% 56172 € 5,639.6 € 5,258.2 5,184.2 5,072.6
TEANSACHON COSES +rvvvvvvrrerrreeeereseesoeos oo oeesemesseeessessseesesesseseoseoeeeeee s eeeeeeseeo oo (55.7) (58.9)
Accrued INterest = thIrd=-PArLY .......coeoerieiiereiee ettt ettt ettt eenea 68.2 66.8

Total third-Party deDt.........ooeieieee ettt 5,196.7 5,080.5
Related-party debt: (note 16)
2010 shareholder loans
payable (h).......cocoevreereenans 8.125% € 70.4 70.4 (h) (h) 70.4 179.2
2012 shareholder loan
payable (1) ....ccooveveeereererieeenns 9.625% € 1,230.0 1,230.0 (@) (i) 1,230.0 —
UMI Loan Payable (j).... 10.000% € 11.4 11.4 )] )] 11.4 —
Total related-party debt - -
before accrued interest ..... 9.548% 1,311.8 1,311.8 179.2
Accrued Interest - TRlAtEA-PArtY .........c..cecieieiieieieeieeie ettt ettt ettt et ess e s e s e eteeteeteereersersennennens 86.0 13.9
Total related-Party AEDt...........cciiviirieeieeece ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ae et ene et n e 1,397.8 193.1
Total debt....................... 7.828% € 6,929.0 6,594.5 5,273.6
Finance lease obhgatlons—— .................................................... 6.2 6.3
Total debt and finance 1€ase ODIIGALIONS. .............ccvevverveereeriereeriee ettt ettt ettt et eteereereersersereensenenns 6,600.7 5,279.9
CUITENIE POTEION ...uteuveureteetieteeteeteettest et etestesteeteeteeseestessessassasseeseesaessessessassassassasseesaeseessassensansesseseaseeseessessessassanes (89.7) (69.1)

Noncurrent portion € 6,511.0 € 5,210.8
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The estimated fair values of our debt instruments were determined using the average of applicable bid and ask prices (mostly Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy) or, when quoted market prices are unavailable or not considered indicative of fair value, discounted cash flow
models (mostly Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy). The discount rates used in the cash flow models are based on the market interest
rates and estimated credit spreads, to the extent available, and other relevant factors. For additional information concerning fair value
hierarchies, see note 7.

Amounts include the impact of premiums and discounts, where applicable.

Represents the stated interest rate of the debt instrument as of December 31,2012 and does not include the impact of our deferred financing
costs, premiums or discounts or commitment fees, all of which affect our overall cost of borrowing. Including the effects of derivative
instruments, discounts and commitment fees, but excluding the impact of financing costs, our weighted average interest rate on our
aggregate third-party indebtedness was approximately 7.6% at December 31,2012. Forinformation concerning our derivative instruments,
see note 6.

As retrospectively revised - see note 5.

Unused borrowing capacity represents the maximum availability under the applicable facility at December 31, 2012 without regard to
covenant compliance calculations. At December 31,2012, €337.5 million of the borrowing capacity under the New Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility (as defined below) and €80.0 million of the borrowing capacity under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving
Credit Facility (as defined below) were available to be borrowed.

Represents amounts owed pursuant to interest-bearing vendor financing arrangements that are generally due within one year. Repayments
of vendor financing obligations are included in repayments of third-party debt and finance lease obligations in our consolidated cash flow
statements.

As further described below, during the second quarter of 2012, (i) all of the KBW Notes (as defined below) were exchanged or redeemed
and (ii) KBW’s €100.0 million secured revolving credit facility agreement was canceled. The weighted average interest rate on the KBW
Notes as of December 31, 2011 was 7.76%.

Represents amounts payable to our shareholder, UPC Germany, comprised of (i) a loan that originated on December 1,2010 (the December
2010 Loan) and (ii) prior to its conversion to equity during the fourth quarter of 2012, a loan that originated on January 28, 2010 (the
January 2010 Loan and, together with the December 2010 Loan, the 2010 Shareholder Loans). The December 2010 Loan (€70.4 million
principal balance at December 31, 2012) bears interest at 8.125% per annum and the January 2010 Loan (principal balance of nil at
December 31, 2012) bore interest at 8.580% per annum. Accrued interest (€5.3 million at December 31, 2012) on the December 2010
Loan is due and payable on the maturity date of January 1, 2030. Accrued interest is transferred to the loan balances annually on January
1. The net decrease in the principal amount of the 2010 Shareholder Loans during 2012 includes (i) cash borrowings of €856.8 million,
(ii) cash payments of €838.4 million, (iii) the conversion of €92.6 million to equity, (iv) a €60.1 million non-cash decrease related to
settlements against amounts outstanding pursuant to the UPC Germany Loan Receivable (as defined and described in note 16), (v) the
transfer of €13.9 million in non-cash accrued interest to the loan balance and (vi) a non-cash increase of €11.6 million related to the
settlement of related-party payables. The net decrease in the principal amount of the 2010 Shareholder Loans during 2011 includes (a)
the conversion of €1,014.0 million to equity, (b) the transfer of €85.8 million in non-cash accrued interest to the loan balance, (c) cash
borrowings of €82.0 million, (d) cash payments of €82.0 million and (e) a non-cash increase of €26.2 million related to the settlement of
related-party payables. The net increase in the principal amount of these loans during 2010 includes (1) cash borrowings of €1,856.0
million, (2) cash payments of €805.1 million and (3) a non-cash increase of €30.3 million related to the settlement of related-party
payables. The fair values of the 2010 Shareholder Loans are not subject to reasonable estimation due to the related-party nature of the
loans.

Represents a loan payable to our shareholder, UPC Germany, issued in May 2012 as consideration for all outstanding shares of UPC
Germany Holdings transferred in connection with the KBW Fold-in. The principal amount of €1,230.0 million was based upon a valuation
of UPC Germany Holdings as of the date of transfer. All principal and accrued interest (collectively €1,309.7 million at December 31,
2012) outstanding under this loan is due and payable on December 31, 2025. Interest accrues on the principal balance at 9.625% per
annum, is subject to adjustment annually and will be transferred to the loan balance on January 1 of each year. Amounts outstanding
may be converted to equity at the option of UPC Germany. The fair value of this loan is not subject to reasonable estimation due to the
related-party nature of the loan.

Represents a loan payable to UMI, an entity that is consolidated by UPC Holding, as further described in note 16. All principal (€11.4
million at December 31, 2012) outstanding under this loan is due and payable on December 31, 2025. The principal amount outstanding
under this loan bears interest at an agreed upon rate that is subject to adjustment (10.000% per annum at December 31, 2012). Accrued
interest (€1.0 million at December 31, 2012) may be, at the option of UMI, (i) transferred to the loan balance annually on January 1 or
(ii) repaid on the last day of each month and on the date of principal repayments. The fair value of this loan is not subject to reasonable
estimation due to the related-party nature of the loan.
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Unitymedia KabelBW Notes and KBW Notes

Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange, Special Optional Redemptions, and KBW Fold-in. In March 2011, certain members of the
Kabel BW Group issued the KBW Notes, the net proceeds from which were primarily used to repay the Kabel BW Group’s then
existing debt and to settle the interest rate swap contracts associated with the bank loans (the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing).
The KBW Notes consisted of (i) UPC Germany HC1’s €680.0 million principal amount of 9.5% senior notes due 2021 (the KBW
Senior Notes) and (ii) KBW’s (a) €800.0 million principal amount of 7.5% senior secured notes due 2019 (the KBW Euro Senior
Secured Notes), (b) $500.0 million (€378.9 million) principal amount of 7.5% senior secured notes due 2019 (the KBW Dollar
Senior Secured Notes and together with the KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes, the KBW Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes) and
(c) €420.0 million principal amount of senior secured floating rate notes due 2018 (the KBW Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes
and together with the KBW Senior Secured Fixed Rate Notes, the KBW Senior Secured Notes).

In May 2012, we completed (i) the exchange (the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange) of (a) 90.9% of the outstanding principal
amount of the KBW Senior Notes for an equal amount of UM Senior Exchange Notes (as defined and described below) and (b)
92.5% of'the outstanding principal amount of the KBW Senior Secured Notes for an equal amount of UM Senior Secured Exchange
Notes (as defined and described below), (ii) the redemption (the Special Optional Redemptions) of the remaining KBW Notes that
were not exchanged pursuant to the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange and (iii) the KBW Fold-in. The redemption price with respect
to the Special Optional Redemptions was 101% of the applicable principal amount thereof, and such redemptions were initially
funded with borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility and the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving
Credit Facility, each as defined and described below. In connection with these transactions, we recognized a loss of €1.1 million
representing the difference between the carrying value and redemption price of the debt redeemed pursuant to the Special Optional
Redemptions and portions of the notional amounts of the derivative instruments that were originally entered into by the Kabel BW
Group in connection with the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing were transferred to Unitymedia Hessen and the remaining
notional amounts were canceled.

The details of (i) the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange and (ii) the Special Optional Redemptions are as follows:

Outstanding principal Principal amount Principal amount
amount prior to the exchanged pursuant to the  redeemed pursuant to the
Unitymedia KabelBW Unitymedia KabelBW Special Optional
Exchange Exchange Redemptions
Borrowing Euro Borrowing Euro Borrowing Euro
KBW Notes currency equivalent (a) currency equivalent(a) currency equivalent (a)

in millions

KBW Senior Notes (b) .....ccoovevereereneenennnn € 6800 € 680.0 € 618.0 € 618.0 € 62.0 € 62.0

KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes (¢)...... € 800.0 800.0 € 735.1 735.1 € 64.9 64.9

KBW Dollar Senior Secured Notes (d)... $§ 500.0 3820 § 4593 3509 § 40.7 31.1
KBW Senior Secured Floating Rate

INOES (€)cvrrvverrerreeeireiriseeeeeeeieeeeeaeens € 4200 4200 € 3959 3959 € 241 24.1

€ 22820 € 2,099.9 € 182.1

(a)  Translations are calculated as of the May 4, 2012 transaction date.

(b) The KBW Senior Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 9.5% senior notes issued
by Unitymedia KabelBW due March 15, 2021 (the UM Senior Exchange Notes). Interest is payable semi-annually on
March 15 and September 15.

(¢)  The KBW Euro Senior Secured Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 7.5% senior
secured notes issued by Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW (together, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers) due
March 15, 2019 (the UM Euro Senior Secured Exchange Notes). Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and
September 15.

(d)  The KBW Dollar Senior Secured Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of 7.5% senior
secured notes issued by the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers due March 15,2019 (the UM Dollar Senior Secured Exchange
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Notes and, together with the UM Euro Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange
Notes). Interest is payable semi-annually on March 15 and September 15.

(e) The KBW Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes tendered for exchange were exchanged for an equal principal amount of
senior secured floating rate notes issued by the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers due March 15, 2018 (the UM Senior
Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes and, together with the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes, the UM
Senior Secured Exchange Notes). The UM Senior Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes bear interest at a rate of EURIBOR
plus 4.25% and interest is payable quarterly on March 15, June 15, September 15 and December 15. We refer to the UM
Senior Exchange Notes and the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes collectively as the “UM Exchange Notes.”

September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. On September 19, 2012, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €650.0
million principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due September 15, 2022 (the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes).
The net proceeds from the issuance of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to redeem in full the UM Senior
Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes at a redemption price of 101%, with the remaining €241.8 million available for general
corporate purposes. During the third quarter of 2012, we recognized losses on debt extinguishment of €8.6 million representing
the difference between the carrying value and redemption price of the debt redeemed.

December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. On December 14,2012, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued $1.0 billion
(€757.8 million) principal amount of 5.5% senior secured notes due January 15, 2023 (the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior
Secured Notes) and €500.0 million principal amount of 5.75% senior secured notes due January 15, 2023 (the December 2012
UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, and together with the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes, the December 2012 UM
Senior Secured Notes), each at par. The net proceeds from the issuance of the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes were
used to purchase and redeem (i) all of the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes (as defined and described below) and (ii) €524.0
million of the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes (as defined and described below). During the fourth quarter of 2012, we
recognized losses on debt extinguishment of €133.7 million including a loss of (a) €95.9 million representing the difference between
the principal amount and redemption price of the debt redeemed and (b) €37.8 million associated with the write-off of deferred
financing costs and an unamortized discount.

2009 UM Notes and the Unitymedia Debt Pushdown. In November 2009, Unitymedia KabelBW issued (i) €1,430.0 million
principal amount of 8.125% senior secured notes (the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes) at an issue price of 97.844%, (ii)
$845.0 million (€640.3 million) principal amount of 8.125% senior secured notes (the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes and,
together with the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, the 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes) at an issue price of 97.844% and (iii)
€665.0 million principal amount 0f 9.625% senior notes (the 2009 UM Senior Notes and together with the 2009 UM Senior Secured
Notes, the 2009 UM Notes) at an issue price of 97.652%. Interest payments for the 2009 UM Notes are made semi-annually on
June 1 and December 1. The net proceeds from the sale of the 2009 UM Notes (€2,541.0 million at the transaction date in 2009)
were placed into two escrow accounts. On January 28, 2010, we used €849.2 million of cash from the escrow accounts to fund a
portion of the Old Unitymedia Purchase Price (see note 5). On March 2, 2010, (a) the remaining balances in the escrow accounts
were released in connection with the repayment of Old Unitymedia’s then-existing indebtedness (the Old Indebtedness), (b) the
obligations under the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes and the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes were assumed by
Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW and (c) the obligations under the 2009 UM Senior Notes were assumed by Old
Unitymedia (collectively, the Unitymedia Debt Pushdown). Additionally, Old Unitymedia’s existing undrawn €130.0 million
revolving credit facility was canceled. Accrued interest on the Old Indebtedness of €12.8 million in the aggregate was also paid.
Old Unitymedia used approximately €198.0 million of its existing cash to repay a portion of the Old Indebtedness. The remainder
was repaid by utilizing the escrow cash from the 2009 UM Notes debt offering. Old Unitymedia was merged into Unitymedia
KabelBW in September 2010.

We refer to the 2009 UM Notes, the UM Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December
2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, collectively as the “Unitymedia KabelBW Notes.”

The 2009 UM Senior Notes and the UM Senior Exchange Notes are senior obligations of Unitymedia KabelBW that rank
equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of Unitymedia KabelBW and are senior to all existing and future subordinated
debt of Unitymedia KabelBW. The 2009 UM Senior Notes and the UM Senior Exchange Notes are secured by a first-ranking
pledge over the shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and junior-priority share pledges and other asset security of certain subsidiaries
of Unitymedia KabelBW.

The 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes
and the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes are (i) senior obligations of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers that rank
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equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of each UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer and are senior to all existing and
future subordinated debt of each of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and (ii) are secured by a first-ranking pledge over the
shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and certain other share and/or asset security of Unitymedia
KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries.

The Unitymedia KabelBW Notes contain customary incurrence-based covenants. For example, the ability to raise certain
additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of Liberty Global is subject to a Consolidated Leverage
Ratio test, as defined in the applicable indenture. The Unitymedia KabelBW Notes provide that any failure to pay principal prior
to expiration of any applicable grace period, or any acceleration with respect to other indebtedness of €25.0 million or more in the
aggregate of Unitymedia KabelBW or a UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer or any of the Restricted Subsidiaries (as defined in the
applicable indenture) is an event of default under the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the 2009 UM Senior Notes are non-callable until December 1, 2014, the UM
Senior Exchange Notes are non-callable until March 15,2016, the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes are non-callable
until March 15, 2015, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until September 15, 2017 and the December
2012 UM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until January 15, 2018.

At any time prior to December 1, 2014 in the case of the 2009 UM Senior Notes, March 15, 2016, in the case of the UM
Senior Exchange Notes, March 15, 2015, in the case of the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes, September 15, 2017,
in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and January 15, 2018, in the case of the December 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes, Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the
UM Senior Exchange Notes, the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes
or the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes (as applicable) by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value
ofall remaining scheduled interest payments to the redemption date using the discount rate (as specified in the applicable indenture)
as of the redemption date plus 50 basis points.

Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem some or all of the Unitymedia
KabelBW Notes at the following redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid
interest and Additional Amounts (as defined in the applicable indenture), if any, to the applicable redemption date, if redeemed
during the twelve-month period commencing on December 1, in the case of the 2009 UM Senior Notes and the 2009 UM Senior
Secured Notes, March 15, in the case of the UM Senior Exchange Notes and the UM Senior Secured Fixed Rate Exchange Notes,
September 15, in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, or January 15, in the case of the December 2012 UM
Senior Secured Notes of the years set forth below:

Redemption Price

UM Senior December December
2009 2009 Secured September 2012 2012
UM UM Senior UM Senior Fixed Rate 2012 UM Dollar UM Euro
Senior Secured Exchange Exchange UM Senior Senior Senior
Year Notes Notes Notes Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes Secured Notes
2013 e N.A. 104.063% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2014 oo 104.813% 102.031% N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
2015 . 103.208% 100.000% N.A. 103.750% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2016 .o 101.604% 100.000% 104.750% 101.875% N.A. N.A. N.A.
2017 oo 100.000% 100.000% 103.167% 100.000% 102.750% N.A. N.A.
2018 oo, 100.000% N.A. 101.583% 100.000% 101.833% 102.750% 102.875%
2019 .o 100.000% N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.917% 101.833% 101.917%
2020 . N.A. N.A. 100.000% N.A. 100.000% 100.917% 100.958%
2021 and thereafter.... N.A. N.A. 100.000% N.A. 100.000% 100.000% 100.000%

In addition, at any time prior to September 15, 2015 in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes or January
15, 2016 in the case of the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers may redeem up to
40% of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes or the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes (at redemption prices of
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105.500% in the case of the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December 2012 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes
and 105.750% in the case of the December 2012 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes) with the net proceeds from one or more specified
equity offerings.

KBW and its immediate parent (collectively, the New UM Guarantors) have granted, in addition to guarantees provided by
Unitymedia KabelBW and/or certain of its subsidiaries, as applicable, of the 2009 UM Senior Notes and the 2009 UM Senior
Secured Notes, a senior guarantee of the 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes and a senior subordinated guarantee of the 2009 UM
Senior Notes. The New UM Guarantors have also granted a senior subordinated guarantee of the UM Senior Exchange Notes and
a senior guarantee of the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and the December
2012 UM Senior Secured Notes. In addition, the New UM Guarantors have provided certain share and asset security in favor of
the 2009 UM Senior Secured Notes, the UM Senior Secured Exchange Notes, the September 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and
the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes.

Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) may redeem all of the Unitymedia KabelBW
Notes at prices equal to their respective principal amounts, plus accrued and unpaid interest, upon the occurrence of certain changes
in tax law. If Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers (as applicable) or certain of Unitymedia KabelBW’s
subsidiaries sell certain assets or experience specific changes in control, Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes
Issuers (as applicable) must offer to repurchase the Unitymedia KabelBW Notes at a redemption price of 101%.

Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities

On May 1, 2012, Unitymedia Hessen entered into a €312.5 million secured revolving credit facility agreement with certain
lenders (the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility). On August28,2012, the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving
Credit Facility was increased to €337.5 million. The interest rate for the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility is
EURIBOR plus a margin of 3.25%. Borrowings under the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility mature on June
30, 2017. The New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility provides for an annual commitment fee of 1.25% on the
unused portion. Also, on May 1, 2012, Unitymedia KabelBW’s existing €80.0 million secured revolving credit facility agreement
with certain lenders (the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility and together with the New Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility, the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities) was amended whereby the maturity date was
extended to June 30, 2017 and the interest rate was reduced to EURIBOR plus a margin of 2.50%. The Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility is senior to (i) the 2009 UM Notes, (ii) the UM Exchange Notes, (iii) the September 2012 UM Senior
Secured Notes, (iv) the December 2012 UM Senior Secured Notes and (v) the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit
Facility. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility provides for an annual commitment fee of 1.00% on the unused
portion. In connection with the Special Optional Redemptions (i) the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility was drawn
in full and (ii) borrowings of €105.0 million were drawn against the New Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility. Such
borrowings were repaid during the second quarter of 2012. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities may be used
for general corporate and working capital purposes.

In addition to customary restrictive covenants and events of default, the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities
require compliance with a Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as defined in the applicable facility. The Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving
Credit Facilities are secured by a pledge over the shares of the borrower and certain other asset security of certain subsidiaries of
Unitymedia KabelBW.

Maturities of Debt
For information concerning the maturities of our debt as of December 31, 2012, see note 4.
Non-cash Refinancing Transactions

During 2012, 2011 and 2010, certain of our refinancing transactions included non-cash borrowings and repayments of debt
aggregating €2,099.9 million, nil and nil, respectively.

Subsequent Events

For information concerning a financing transaction completed subsequent to December 31, 2012, see note 19.
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14) Income Taxes

Unitymedia KabelBW and its operating subsidiaries consist of three German taxpayers, two of which are German fiscal unities.
A German fiscal unity combines individual tax paying entities as one taxpayer for German tax purposes. The combined details
of our current and deferred income tax benefit are as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions

Current tax benefit (EXPENSE) .......cceevuieieriieieriieiereeee sttt ere e sre b reese e eaeees € 30 € (10.5) € 0.7
Deferred tax Benetit.......c.ooeiiiiiiiiiiiii s 77.3 28.7 36.2
TOTAL ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et sene b se b se et neebene s € 803 € 182 € 35.5

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

The income tax benefit attributable to our loss from continuing operations before income taxes differs from the income tax
benefit computed by applying the German income tax rate of 32.37% for 2012, 31.88% for 2011 and 31.58% for 2010 as a result
of the following:

Year ended December 31,
2012 (a) 2011 (a) (b) 2010
in millions

Computed expected income tax benefit ..........ceceveeiiiieriiiieriecieeeeeeeeere e € 109.9 € 50.8 € 65.9
Non-deductible or non-taxable interest and other items ...........cccecevveviervenerceenenen. (34.1) (28.1) (21.4)
Recognized (unrecognized) net operating losses and interest carryforwards,
TIEE ettt etteteete et e teteete st et et e st e et e st e st et e et e e Rt R et e be b e b en b e s ensenbensentent et s enees e et e eseeseeneeaenne 6.0 (1.2) (7.0)
OtNET, NET...cviiiiiceiecie ettt ettt e e et e e e et e e veeeteeetaeeeteeeareeereeeaeeennes (1.5) 3.3) (2.0)
TOtALL.. ettt n et n st te et st eteeteeseerennas € 80.3 € 182 € 35.5

(a)  The income tax benefit amount for 2012 reflects certain amounts related to prior years, including a current net tax benefit
of €3.0 million and a deferred tax benefit of €10.8 million from the reversal of an unrecognized interest carryforward. The
2011 income tax benefit amount includes a current net tax benefit of €5.2 million related to prior years.

(b)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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The details of our deferred tax balances at December 31, 2012 and our deferred tax benefit for the year ended December 31,
2012 are as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2012
Recognition in
Deferred tax Deferred tax statement of
assets liabilities operations
in millions

LSS CarTyfOrWards.........c.eccueeieriiiieieeieie ettt ees € 397.1 € — € 92.1
TNVESIMENES ..ecuviiiieeiiicieeiee ettt e e et e b et e e beeaeesabeeaeeennas — 16.0 0.1
Property and eqUIPMENt ............cceeieriieieriieienii e — 536.3 252
INtANGIDIE ASSELS .....cviivierieeiietecie ettt ettt ettt — 300.2 373
RECEIVADICS ...ttt ettt e — 10.6 (1.8)
PrOVISIONS......viiiiitiiiictiecteceete ettt ettt ettt ere e ens 23 — 0.6
Debt ODLIZAtIONS ......cvieeieiieieiieeieeieere ettt et ste e sreesbesbeesbessseseessesseens — 1.5 (38.2)
AcCrued INTEreSt EXPEINSE ...c.veviereerierierieereeeieere et e ereeee e ereereeereersesveesseereens 6.1 — (63.1)
GOOAWIIL ...t ettt e — 19.3 (18.5)
DICTIVALIVES ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eabeebe et eteeveeaeeneens 10.0 — 31.1
LIOAMS .ttt ettt st st e e eans 13.3 — 13.3
L0 711 <3 S OO 0.5 4.4 (0.8)
Net assets with liabilities within same jurisdiction...............cceevevvereeevenen. (429.3) (429.3) —

€ — € 459.0 € 77.3

The details of our deferred tax balances at December 31, 2011 and our deferred tax benefit for the year ended December 31,
2011 are as follows:

Year ended
December 31, 2011 (a) December 31, 2011 (a)
Recognition in
Deferred tax Deferred tax statement of
assets liabilities operations

in millions

LSS CarTyfOrwards.........c.occueeieriiiieieeieie ettt ees € 305.0 € — € (31.6)

TNVESIMENES ...uviieiieeiieeie ettt ettt e e beeaeeeeveesneennes — 16.1 (16.1)
Property and eqUIPMENt ............cceeieriieieriieienii e — 562.1 17.1
INtANGIDIE ASSELS .....eviiviirietiietecie ettt ettt ettt — 337.5 20.2

RECEIVADICS ...ttt ettt e — 8.8 (11.5)

PrOVISIONS . .....viiiiieiiiiciieeteceee ettt ettt ettt ens 1.6 — 0.6)
Debt ODLIZAtIONS ......cvieeieiieieiieeieeieere ettt et ste e sreesbesbeesbessseseessesseens 36.7 — 24.1
AcCrued INTErESt EXPEINSE ...c.veiveeerierierierieereeieere et e ereeeeereeaeereeereerseereesseereens 69.2 — 45.1

GOOAWIIL ...t s — 0.8 (0.8)

— 21.1 (17.0)

1.4 43 0.2)

Net assets with liabilities within same jurisdiction............c..cccoeeevvevueennennen. (413.9) (413.9) —
€ — € 536.8 € 28.7

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.
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No deferred tax assets have been recognized for the following carryforwards:

December 31,
2012 2011 (a)
in millions

INterest CArTYOIWAIAS .......ccviiiieiiiiiciecie ettt ettt et sb e eaeebeeaeebeeraebeessesbeesseseessenseans € 56.1 € 71.2
Trade tax 10SS CAITYTOTWATAS .......oovieiieieiieie ettt st esseesaesseennenseens € 298 € 535
Corporate income taX 10Ss CarryfOrWards...........ooccveriieieiiieiiiieieeeeeeee et re e sreens € 149.7 € 149.7

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

Our tax loss carryforwards within each fiscal unity combine all companies’ tax losses in that fiscal unity, however, certain
jurisdictions limit the ability to offset taxable income of separate company or different tax groups with the tax losses associated
with another separate company or group as a result of certain profit and loss pooling agreements made pursuant to relevant tax
law. These losses are limited while the agreement is in place. Some losses are limited in use due to change in control.

15) Shareholder’s Equity (Deficit)

Our share capital was €25,000 at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and has been fully paid. All of our shares are held by UPC
Germany.

Changes in additional paid-in capital during 2010 relate to a €17.0 million cash contribution from UPC Germany.

Changes in additional paid-in capital during 2011 relate to (i) a €892.5 million increase for a contribution of cash in connection
with the LGI/KBW Transaction, (ii) a €1,100.0 million increase related to the conversion to equity of €1,014.0 million of principal
and €86.0 million of accrued interest associated with the shareholder loan payable to UPC Germany, (iii) a cash contribution of
€61.0 million for an investment in UMI, another Liberty Global subsidiary, and (iv) a €0.5 million increase related to stock-based
compensation. For additional information concerning our investment in UMI, see note 16.

Changes in additional paid-in capital during 2012 relate to (i) a€1,230.0 million decrease for consideration issued in connection
with the KBW Fold-in, (ii) a €100.4 million increase related to the conversion to equity of €92.6 million of principal and €7.8
million of accrued interest associated with the shareholder loan payable to UPC Germany, (iii) a €1.1 million decrease representing
the excess of the €1.1 million of consideration paid over the nil carrying value of the property and equipment transferred from
UPC Holding and (iv) a €1.1 million increase related to stock-based compensation.

One of our indirect parent companies, Liberty Global Europe Holding B. V., granted a financing commitment dated September
30, 2010 to our company in the amount of €75.0 million, all of which has been used. During 2010, €17.0 million was received
through an equity contribution and, during the second quarter of 2012, the remaining €58.0 million was funded through an increase
to our 2010 Shareholder Loans.
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(16) Related-Party Transactions

Our related-party transactions consist of the following:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions

(03] 25 SRRSO € 12.1 € 6.8 € 1.4
Allocated stock-based compensation EXPENSE ........c.ccveevverrerreerreriveressuesressveseessenseens 1.1 0.5 —
Fees and alloCatiONS .........cooueruerierieieieieeteeee ettt eee e eeens 53.7 35.8 23.8

Included in EBIT ..ottt 66.9 43.1 25.2
TNEETEST EXPEIISE ..uvvierieiieeiieciie et eetee ettt et e e e et e e beeeaeebeessbeesseessseenseenssesnsaennnennss 98.1 99.9 85.8
Share of aSSOCIALE GAIMN ......c.eecvereieiieieiieieee ettt ettt steeae e esbesreesbessaenseesneseeens 3.3) — —
INEEIEST INCOME ..ottt ettt st et be et st ebeete et e e te e beersenbeeasereens (1.7) — —

Included In NET LOSS ..c.vievieiieieciieieceeteeteee ettt sttt e e ensenseens € 160.0 € 143.0 € 111.0
Property and equipment additions..............cceeveeeiiiierieiieie e € 22.1 € 56 € 1.3

(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

OpEx. These amounts represent certain cash settled charges from other Liberty Global subsidiaries, including charges that
originate with UPC Holding, to our company primarily for (i) technology-related costs based on the global contract of another
Liberty Global subsidiary for encryption services and (ii) certain backbone costs.

Allocated stock-based compensation expense. These amounts are allocated to our company by Liberty Global and represent
the stock-based compensation associated with the Liberty Global stock incentive awards held by certain employees of our
subsidiaries. Awards consist of (i) stock appreciation rights, (ii) restricted shares and restricted share units and (iii) performance-
based restricted share units (PSUs). PSUs represent the right to receive one share of Liberty Global Series A common stock or
Liberty Global Series C common stock, as applicable, subject to performance and vesting as determined by the compensation
committee of Liberty Global’s board of directors. Stock-based compensation expense is reflected as an increase to shareholder’s
equity and is included in SG&A in our consolidated statements of operations.

Fees and allocations. These amounts represent charges that originate with UPC Holding and include charges for management,
finance, legal, technology, marketing and other services that support our company’s broadband communications operations. The
amounts charged generally are based on our company’s estimated share of the applicable costs (including personnel-related and
other costs associated with the services provided) incurred by the other Liberty Global subsidiaries, plus a mark-up. The monthly
amounts charged are based on estimated costs that are reviewed and revised on an annual basis, with any differences between the
revised and estimated amounts recorded in the period identified. Charges that originate with UPC Holding may be cash or loan
settled. With respect to the amounts settled during 2012, 2011 and 2010, all amounts were loan settled with the exception of €25.8
million and €13.1 million that were cash settled during 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Inaddition, in December2012, UPC Operations B.V., a subsidiary of UPC Holding, entered into a sub-license license agreement
with UPC Germany and UPC Germany, in turn, entered into a sub-license agreement with Unitymedia KabelBW for the use the
UPC trademark through April 2,2017. The sub-license agreement between UPC Germany and Unitymedia KabelBW was effective
April 2, 2012 (the date of initial commercial use by Unitymedia KabelBW) and provides for an annual fee for the use of the UPC
trademark equal to 0.5% of Unitymedia KabelBW’s revenue (as defined in the sub-license agreement). A fee of €5.0 million for
the period from April 2, 2012 through December 31, 2012 was recorded during 2012. Sub-license fees are payable quarterly and
are to be loan settled unless otherwise determined by UPC Germany.

Depending on the nature of our related-party transactions, the amount of the charges or allocations may be based on (i)
estimated or allocated costs, (ii) estimated or allocated costs plus a mark-up or (iii) commercially negotiated rates. Although we
believe that the related-party fees and allocations described above are reasonable, no assurance can be given that the related-party
costs and expenses reflected in our consolidated statements of operations are reflective of the costs that we would incur on a
standalone basis.
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Interest expense. Related-party interest expense relates to (i) our 2010 Shareholder Loans and 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC
Germany and (ii) our loan with UMI. Accrued interest is transferred to the respective loan balance annually on January 1 for the
2010 Shareholder Loans and the 2012 Shareholder Loan. For the loan with UMI, accrued interest may be, at the option of UMI,
(a) transferred to the loan balance annually on January 1 or (b) repaid on the last day of each month and on the date of principal
repayments. For additional information, see note 13.

Share of associate gain. The 2012 amount relates to the gain received from the investment in UMI, as discussed below. Share
of associate gain is reflected in other income (expense), net, in our consolidated statement of operations.

Interest income. The 2012 amount relates to the UPC Germany Loan Receivable, as discussed below. Interest income is
reflected in other income (expense), net, in our consolidated statement of operations.

Property and equipment additions. These amounts represent customer premises and network-related equipment acquired
from other Liberty Global subsidiaries, including Liberty Global Europe B.V. and UPC Holding. During 2012, 2011 and 2010,
€11.1 million, €0.1 million and nil, respectively, of these amounts were cash settled.

UPC Germany loan receivable. Pursuant to our loan agreement with UPC Germany, we can require the repayment of all or
part of the amount outstanding pursuant to this loan agreement (€168.7 million at December 31, 2012) within five-days of providing
notice to UPC Germany. Amounts loaned to UPC Germany pursuant to this agreement are subject to certain restrictions contained
in the instruments governing Unitymedia KabelBW’s indebtedness. The interest rate on this loan, which is subject to adjustment,
was 2.22% as of December 31, 2012. The net increase in the loan receivable - related-party during 2012 includes (i) cash loaned
of €1,248.8 million, (ii) cash received of €1,074.7 million, (iii) a €60.1 million non-cash decrease related to the settlement of
amounts due under the 2010 Shareholder Loans, (iv) €1.3 million of accrued interest on the loan receivable and (v) individually
insignificant net non-cash decreases of €0.6 million.

Investment in associate. We have an investment in UMI. UMI was formed for the purpose of effecting certain asset purchase
and related leasing transactions involving certain of UPC Holding’s subsidiaries, including certain purchase and leaseback
transactions that were initiated in December 2011. UMI is considered a special purpose entity and is consolidated by UPC Holding.
Although UPC Holding has no equity or voting interest in UMI, all of the revenue of UMI is derived from UPC Holding. As such,
UPC Holding is required by the provisions of EU-IFRS to consolidate UMI. As a result, we use the equity method to account for
our investment in UMI. For more information regarding a loan from UMI to our company, see note 13.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - related-party. At December 31,2012 and 2011, our accounts payable and accrued
liabilities - related-party balances represented amounts owed to UPC Holding and other Liberty Global subsidiaries outside of
Unitymedia KabelBW for various related-party charges and fees and allocations, as further described above. These amounts may
be cash or loan settled.

Shareholder loans. For information regarding our 2010 Shareholder Loans and 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC Germany,
see note 13.

Management Remuneration. Salaries, bonuses and benefit related remuneration of the Managing Directors was €3.1 million,
€2.2 million and €2.1 million for 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Cash contribution. In connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction, we received a €892.5 million cash contribution from UPC
Germany. For additional information, see note 15.
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an Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments

In the ordinary course of business, we have entered into agreements that commit our company to make cash payments in
future periods with respect to non-cancelable operating leases, programming contracts, purchases of customer premises equipment
and other items. These include several long-term term agreements with Deutsche Telekom and its affiliates with respect to usage
and access for underground cable duct space, the use of fiber optic transmission systems, tower and facility space. In general,
these agreements primarily impose fixed prices for a limited period of time, which may then be raised to reflect services requested
additionally and increased costs, subject to index-linked limitations. Some agreements impose prices based on the cost to Deutsche
Telekom of services that are passed through to us. In accordance with EU-IFRS, we treat these agreements as operating rather
than finance leases or as other commitments, as applicable. We expect that in the ordinary course of business, operating leases
that expire generally will be renewed or replaced by similar leases.

Expenses for operating leases included in our consolidated statements of operations were €119.0 million, €73.3 million and
€64.4 million during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Details of our operating lease contracts and the respective significant
leasing arrangements are as follows:

Lease Terms Terms of renewal Purchase options Contingent rent
Building .......ccooovieiieiiiiicieeccee e 1 - 20 years 1 -5 years No No
Dark fiber......coccvieieiieiee e 1 - 19 years 1 - 5 years No No
ColoCatioN €A .......cveevieeierieriereeeecie et 1-14years 1 month- 1 year No No
Cable dUCES......cceeieeiieiieieie e 1 - 30 years 1 - 5 years No No

As of December 31, 2012, the operating leases, programming commitments and other commitments that are not reflected in
our consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

Payments due during:
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter Total
in millions

Operating 1€ases ..........ccoeveeveeeeeneennnns € 1052 € 101.6 € 979 € 942 € 923 € 1,074.8 € 1,566.0
Programming commitments................ 10.7 8.6 1.9 0.5 — — 21.7
Other commitments.............cocveeennee... 83.7 30.3 21.0 17.5 17.5 2.0 172.0

€ 1996 € 1405 € 1208 € 1122 € 109.8 € 1,076.8 € 1,759.7

Operating leases include indefinite-lived lease agreements with Deutsche Telekom for cable ducts. During 2012, the aggregate
fees for these leases were €75.6 million. We have the legal right to cancel these agreements with a notice period of 24 months,
however, the technological requirements to replace leased capacity represent economic penalties that would result in the reasonably
assured continuance of the leases for a longer period of time. Due to German law governing the statute of limitations, the agreements
in effect represent a maximum lease term of 30 years, after which time Deutsche Telekom has certain additional rights under the
lease. Accordingly, the operating lease amounts included in the above table reflect payments under the Deutsche Telekom lease
agreements through the applicable statutory termination dates.

Programming commitments consist of obligations associated with certain of our programming contracts, that are enforceable
and legally binding on us in that we have agreed to pay minimum fees without regard to (i) the actual number of subscribers to
the programming services, (ii) whether we terminate cable service to a portion of our subscribers or dispose of a portion of our
cable systems or (iii) whether we discontinue our premium movie and sports services. The amounts reflected in the table with
respect to these contracts are significantly less than the amounts we expect to pay in these periods under these contracts. Payments
to programming vendors have in the past represented, and are expected to continue to represent in the future, a significant portion
of our operating costs.
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Other commitments include (i) certain service commitments with Deutsche Telekom, (ii) certain fiber capacity commitments,
(iii) service and supply agreements and (iv) commitments to purchase customer premises equipment that are enforceable and
legally binding on us.

Legal Proceedings

Deutsche Telekom Litigation. On December 28, 2012, we filed a lawsuit against Telekom Deutschland GmbH, an operating
subsidiary of Deutsche Telekom, in which we assert that we pay excessive prices for the co-use of Deutsche Telekom’s cable ducts
in our footprint. The Federal Network Agency approved rates for the co-use of certain ducts of Telekom Deutschland GmbH in
March 2011. Based in part on these approved rates, we are seeking a reduction of the annual lease fee (approximately €76 million
for2012) by approximately two-thirds and the return of similarly calculated overpayments from 2009 through the ultimate settlement
date, plus accrued interest. The resolution of this matter may take several years and no assurance can be given that our claims will
be successful. Any recovery by our company will not be reflected in our consolidated financial statements until such time as the
final disposition of this matter has been reached.

Guarantees and Other Credit Enhancements

In the ordinary course of business, we have provided indemnifications to purchasers of certain of our assets, our lenders, our
vendors and certain other parties. In addition, we have provided performance and/or financial guarantees to local municipalities,
our customers and vendors. Historically, these arrangements have not resulted in our company making any material payments
and we do not believe that they will result in material payments in the future.

Regulatory Issues

Our existing and planned activities in the cable television, broadband internet and telephony industries are subject to significant
regulation and supervision by various regulatory bodies, including state authorities in the jurisdictions in which we operate, and
German and EU authorities. Adverse regulatory developments could subject our businesses to a number of risks. Regulation,
including conditions imposed on us by competition or other authorities as a requirement to close acquisitions or dispositions, could
limit growth, revenue and the number and types of services offered and could lead to increased operating costs and capital
expenditures. In addition, regulation may restrict our operations and subject them to further competitive pressure, including pricing
restrictions, interconnect and other access obligations, and restrictions or controls on content, including content provided by third
parties. Failure to comply with current or future regulation could expose our businesses to various penalties.

Other

We have contingent liabilities related to legal proceedings and other matters arising in the ordinary course of business. We
expect that the amounts, if any, which may be required to satisfy these contingencies will not be material in relation to our financial
position or results of operations.

(18) Disclosures According to Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in Germany

The average aggregate number of full-time and part-time employees during 2012 was 2,490 and the average number of full-
time equivalent (FTE) employees was 2,424. During 2012, our operating departments, which include network and customer
operations and customer services, employed an average of 1,843 FTE employees and our administration departments, consisting
of sales and marketing, finance, information technology and other general services, employed an average of 581 FTE employees.
Average employee calculations are based on quarterly averages.

Our auditor has received the following remuneration for the respective services:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 (a) 2010
in millions

Audit of financial StateMENtS............ccivierieierieiereeee et ens € 09 € 1.0 € 0.5
ASSUTanCe SETVICES (D) ....ccveiiiiiiiiiciieiicieieet ettt b et b e b e re e 0.8 0.2 0.1
OthET SETVICES ..uvievvetieiieiieieetieteeteteeteste st e testessesseesseesaesseessenseensenseensenseensesneensennes — — 0.1

TOAL. ...ttt et ettt ettt ettt aeeae et eteeteeteeteeteeaeeaeae e € 1.7 € 12 € 0.7
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(a)  Asretrospectively revised - see note 5.

(b)  Amount for 2012 does not include approximately €1.5 million of charges from third-party insurance companies that were
passed through to our company by our auditor in connection with comfort letters that were issued in connection with debt
financing transactions.

19) Subsequent Events

Unitymedia KabelBW Notes

On January 21, 2013, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers issued €500.0 million principal amount of 5.125% senior secured
notes due January 21, 2023 (the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes). The net proceeds from the issuance of the January
2013 UM Senior Secured Notes were used to redeem a portion of the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes.

The January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes are (i) senior obligations of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers that rank
equally with all of the existing and future senior debt of each UM Senior Secured Notes Issuer and are senior to all existing and
future subordinated debt of each of the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and (ii) are secured by a first-ranking pledge over the
shares of Unitymedia KabelBW and the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers and certain other share and/or asset security of Unitymedia
KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries.

The January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes contain certain customary incurrence-based covenants. For example, the ability
to raise certain additional debt and make certain distributions or loans to other subsidiaries of Liberty Global is subject to a
Consolidated Leverage Ratio test, as defined in the indenture.

Subject to the circumstances described below, the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes are non-callable until January 21,
2018. At any time prior to January 21, 2018 the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers may redeem some or all of the January 2013
UM Senior Secured Notes by paying a “make-whole” premium, which is the present value of all remaining scheduled interest
payments to the redemption date using the discount rate (as specified in the indenture) as of the redemption date plus 50 basis
points.

The UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers may redeem some or all of the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes at the following
redemption prices (expressed as a percentage of the principal amount) plus accrued and unpaid interest and Additional Amounts
(as defined in the indenture), if any, to the redemption date, if redeemed during the twelve-month period commencing on January
21 of the years set forth below:

Year Redemption Price
0 SRS PRPRR 102.563%
2000 ettt ettt e h e e et e e bt e et e bt st e e bt e sh bt e bt e e abe e bt e et e e bt e sabeeheesateenbeeeaneenbee 101.708%
2020 . ettt ettt ettt e et e et e e e te et ee e baetee ettt e ate e be e baeenbe e teeen b e e teeesbe e seeesbe e tae et eenseeanseeseeenbeensaaenaeentes 100.854%
2021 AN thETEATET ... eevtieeieiieieei ettt ettt ettt et e et ete st et e entesseessesseenseeseenseaseenseeneenseensesseennas 100.000%

In addition, at any time prior to January 21, 2016, the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers may redeem up to 40% of the January
2013 UM Senior Secured Notes (at redemption prices of 105.125%) with the net proceeds from one or more specified equity
offerings.

The UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers may redeem all of the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes at prices equal to their
respective principal amounts, plus accrued and unpaid interest, upon the occurrence of certain changes in tax law. Ifthe UM Senior
Secured Notes Issuers or certain of Unitymedia KabelBW’s subsidiaries sell certain assets or experience specific changes in control,
the UM Senior Secured Notes Issuers must offer to repurchase the January 2013 UM Senior Secured Notes at a redemption price
of 101%.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis, which should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, is
intended to assist in providing an understanding of our financial condition, changes in financial condition and results of operations
and is organized as follows:

*  Overview. This section provides a general description of our business, our product offerings and recent events.

*  Results of Operations. This section provides an analysis of our historical results of operations for the years ended
December 31,2012 and 2011, as compared to our pro forma results of operations for the years ended December 31,2011
and 2010, respectively, as further described below.

*  Liquidity and Capital Resources. This section provides an analysis of our liquidity and consolidated cash flow statements.

The capitalized terms used below have been defined in the notes to our consolidated financial statements. In the following

text, the terms, “we,” “our,” “our company” and “us” may refer, as the context requires, to Unitymedia KabelBW or collectively
to Unitymedia KabelBW and its subsidiaries.

Effective, September 30,2010, we closed down our arena segment which operated a DTH digital pay-TV platform in Germany.
As further discussed in note 5 to our consolidated financial statements, our consolidated statements of operations and cash flows
have been reclassified to present our arena segment as a discontinued operation. In the following discussion and analysis, the
operating statistics, results of operations, cash flows and financial condition that we present and discuss are those of our continuing
operations unless otherwise noted.

Overview

We are a subsidiary of Liberty Global that provides digital and analog cable television and broadband internet and telephony
services over our broadband communications network and mobile services as a mobile virtual network operator (MVNO). We
are the second largest cable operator in Germany and largest cable operator in the German federal states of North Rhine-Westphalia
and Hesse (collectively, the Unitymedia footprint) and Baden-Wiirttemberg (the KabelBW footprint) in terms of the number of
video subscribers.

We focus on achieving organic revenue and customer growth in our broadband communications operations by developing
and marketing bundled entertainment and communications services, and extending and upgrading the quality of our networks
where appropriate. While we seek to obtain new customers, we also seek to maximize the average revenue we receive from each
household by increasing the penetration of advanced services, comprised of digital cable, broadband internet, telephony and mobile
services, with existing customers through product bundling and upselling, or by migrating analog cable customers to digital cable
services that include various incremental service offerings, such as premium subscription channels, HD programming and digital
video recorder (DVR) services. We plan to continue to employ this strategy to achieve organic revenue and subscriber growth.

In our upgraded network coverage area, we provide an integrated triple-play (and in some instances, quadruple-play) service
offering that allows our customers to access digital cable, broadband internet, telephony and mobile services in addition to our
analog video services as follows:

»  Video Services. As of December 31, 2012, we provided our basic digital and analog cable services to 53.2% of the
homes passed by our network. As further described in note 5 to our consolidated financial statements, our basic digital
television channels are unencrypted in our KabelBW footprint, and effective January 1, 2013, are unencrypted in our
Unitymedia footprint as well. Where our basic digital television channels are unencrypted, subscribers who have the
necessary equipment and who pay the monthly subscription fee for our analog package are able to watch our basic
digital television channels. Our premium digital cable service offerings include premium subscription channels and
HD and DVR services. As of December 31,2012, 16.4% of our video base subscribed to premium digital cable services.
We provide video services via individual contracts with single dwelling units or bulk contracts with landlords or housing
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associations or with third parties that operate and administer the in-building network on behalf of housing associations
(Professional Operators).

*  Broadband Internet Services. Our current service portfolio consists of services with download speeds ranging from
10 Mbps to 150 Mbps with no time or data volume restrictions. Our customers can choose between various packages
and bundles. As of December 31, 2012, our ultra high-speed broadband internet services were available to 97% of our
homes passed.

*  Telephony Services. We market our telephony services principally as a component of our product bundles but also on
a standalone basis.

*  Mobile Services. As an MVNO, we offer mobile voice and data services to our customers as a component of our
product bundles or on a standalone basis.

We plan to introduce a next generation set-top box platform, which we refer to as Horizon TV, during 2013. Horizon TV is
a family of media products that allows customers to view and share content across the television, computer, tablet and smartphone.
Horizon TV is powered by a user interface that provides customers a seamless intuitive way to access linear, time-shifted, on-
demand and web-based content on the television. It also features an advanced set-top box that delivers not only video, but also
internet and voice connections along with a wireless network for the home. For our Horizon TV customers, we also plan to offer
applications for various services.

As of December 31, 2012, we served 6,689,500 video revenue generating units (RGUs) (including 2,185,900 digital cable
RGUs), 2,232,000 telephony RGUs and 2,219,200 broadband internet RGUs over a broadband communications network that
passed 12,567,900 homes. Effective January 1,2012, we began including certain small office and home office (SOHO) RGUs in
our externally-reported subscriber statistics. As a result of this change, we recorded a non-organic adjustment to increase the
number of our RGUs at January 1, 2012 by 9,700. As noted above, we also offer mobile services using third-party networks, but
do not currently include subscriptions to mobile services in our reported RGU statistics. We added a total of 767,500 RGUs
(including 17,600 SOHO RGUs) on an organic basis during 2012. The organic RGU growth during 2012 is attributable to the
growth of our (i) broadband internet services, which added 415,600 RGUs, (ii) telephony services, which added 396,300 RGUs,
and (iii) digital cable services, which added 202,800 RGUs. The growth of our broadband internet, telephony and digital cable
RGUs was partially offset by declines in our analog cable RGUs of 247,200.

Due to the expected impacts of, among other matters, (i) the ongoing negotiations related to the special termination right
granted with respect to certain of our access agreements with our largest housing associations and (ii) the scheduled expiration of
contracts for certain of our residential subscribers and housing associations, our analog cable RGU losses during 2013 and over
the next few years have the potential to be higher than current levels. For information concerning the special termination right,
see note 5 to our consolidated financial statements.

Although we continue to increase revenue and RGUs by increasing the penetration of our advanced services, we are
experiencing significant competition. Key competitors of our cable business include:

(i) satellite-based and other broadband cable or fiber-based reception of analog and digital free-to-air programming that
compete primarily with our basic video products;

(i1) Sky Deutschland AG and Deutsche Telekom with their respective content offerings that compete primarily with our
premium digital cable products; and

(iii) Deutsche Telekom and alternative digital subscriber line and fiber-based operators with their bundled offerings that
compete primarily with our broadband internet and telephony products.

In general, our ability to increase or maintain the fees we receive for our services is limited by competitive, and to a lesser
degree, regulatory factors. The competition we face in our markets, as well as any decline in the economic environment, could
adversely impact our ability to increase or maintain our revenue, RGUs, operating cash flow or liquidity. We currently are unable
to predict the extent of any of these potential adverse effects.

In addition to competition, our operations are subject to macroeconomic and political risks that are outside of our control.
For example, high levels of sovereign debt in the U.S. and certain European countries, combined with weak growth and high
unemployment, could lead to fiscal reforms (including austerity measures), sovereign debt restructurings, currency
instability, increased counterparty credit risk, high levels of volatility and, potentially, disruptions in the credit and equity markets,
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as well as other outcomes that might adversely impact our company. With regard to currency instability issues, concerns exist in
the eurozone with respect to individual macro-fundamentals on a country-by-country basis, as well as with respect to the overall
stability of the European monetary union and the suitability of a single currency to appropriately deal with specific fiscal
management and sovereign debt issues in individual eurozone countries. The realization of these concerns could lead to the exit
of one or more countries from the European monetary union and the re-introduction of individual currencies in these countries,
or, in more extreme circumstances, the possible dissolution of the European monetary union entirely, which could result in the
redenomination of a portion or, in the extreme case, all of our euro-denominated assets, liabilities and cash flows to the new
currency of the country in which they originated. The capital market disruption that would likely accompany any such
redenomination event could have a material adverse impact on our liquidity and financial condition. Furthermore, any
redenomination event would likely be accompanied by significant economic dislocation, particularly within the eurozone countries,
which in turn could have an adverse impact on demand for our products, and accordingly, on our revenue and cash flows. Moreover,
any changes from a euro to a non-euro currency in Germany would require us to modify our billing and other financial systems.
No assurance can be given that any required modifications could be made within a timeframe that would allow us to timely bill
our customers or prepare and file required financial reports. In light of the significant exposure that we have to the euro through
our euro-denominated borrowings, loan receivable, derivative instruments, cash balances and cash flows, a redenomination event
could have a material adverse impact on our company.

The video, broadband internet and telephony businesses in which we operate are capital intensive. Significant additions to
our property, equipment and intangible assets are required to add customers to our networks and to upgrade our broadband
communications networks and customer premises equipment to enhance our service offerings and improve the customer experience,
including expenditures for equipment and labor costs. Significant competition, the introduction of new technologies, the expansion
of existing technologies such as fiber-to-the-home or adverse regulatory developments could cause us to decide to undertake
previously unplanned upgrades of our networks and customer premises equipment. In addition, no assurance can be given that
any future upgrades will generate a positive return or that we will have adequate capital available to finance such future upgrades.
If we are unable to, or elect not to, pay for costs associated with adding new customers, expanding or upgrading our networks or
making our other planned or unplanned additions to our property, equipment and intangible assets, our growth could be limited
and our competitive position could be harmed. For information regarding our property and equipment additions, see Liquidity
and Capital Resources - Consolidated Cash Flow Statements below.

Certain public broadcasters have sent us notices purporting to terminate, effective December 31, 2012, the contracts that
govern the fees we receive for the carriage of their channels. In addition, as further described in note 5 to our consolidated financial
statements, we made certain commitments to address the competition concerns of the FCO with respect to the LGI/KBW
Transaction. These developments could have an adverse impact on our operating results and cash flows. For additional information,
see the below discussion under Revenue.

Results of Operations

This section provides an analysis of (i) our historical results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared
to our pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011 and (ii) our historical results of operations for the
year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to our pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010. As
further explained in note 1 to our consolidated financial statements, (a) the operating results of the Kabel BW Group are not
included in our historical consolidated statements of operations prior to December 15, 2011 and (b) the operating results of Old
Unitymedia are not included in our historical consolidated financial statements prior to January 28, 2010. Among other matters,
the aforementioned pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31,2011 give effect to the LGI/KBW Transaction
as if it had occurred on January 1, 2011 and the aforementioned pro forma results of operations for the year ended December 31,
2010 give effect to the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction as if it had occurred on January 1, 2010, but do not include any impacts of
the LGI/KBW Transaction.

2012 compared to 2011

In order to provide meaningful comparisons, the following discussion and analysis of our results of operations for 2012 is
based on comparisons to our pro forma statement of operations for 2011. Our 2011 pro forma statement of operations gives effect
to (i) the LGI/KBW Transaction, (ii) the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing and (iii) the change in the reporting entities associated
with the KBW Fold-in as if such transactions had been completed as of January 1, 2011. As a result, the pro forma statement of
operations for 2011 presented below includes the historical operating results of the Kabel BW Group for the entire year. In
connection with the KBW Fold-in, we issued the 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC Germany as consideration for all of the outstanding
shares of UPC Germany Holdings that were transferred to our company. No interest expense on the 2012 Shareholder Loan is
reflected in our 2012 historical or 2011 pro forma results prior to the May 2012 issuance date. The pro forma amounts related to
KBW are derived from the pre-acquisition historical consolidated financial statements of KBW. The pro forma amounts are not
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necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on January 1,2011. The
pro forma adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable.

Financial Performance

Historical results for the year ended December 31, 2012 as compared to pro forma results for the year ended December 31,
2011 are set forth below (in millions):

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
pro forma
Revenue:
Subscription revenue:
4 T 1< T RSOOSR € 948.6 € 924.0
Broadband INTETIEL ..........coiiiriiiiinieeee ettt ettt st b et 283.8 220.8
TRIEPIONY ...ttt ettt ettt et ettt et e et e e te et e eteebeere e teeraenteerbenaeas 346.4 292.5
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIUE........ecueeiieeieiieeieieetesteetesteetesteetesteessesseeseeseessesseesesssessesssessesssessens 1,578.8 1,437.3
INON-SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIUEL ......eevvieierieriiteeeeeeteesteeteeteeseesseeteesteessesseessesseessesseesseessesseersesseessesssessessens 222.8 193.1
1,801.6 1,630.4
Operating costs and expenses:
OPEX ettt bbbttt h bt bbbt h e bbbt b et st nnen 500.8 460.5
SGELA .ttt ettt h ettt et et et et ateat st st bt Rt et eteeaeeaeetesenen 236.2 206.2
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Nt ...........cceeeverierieeriereecieneeeere e seeeeneees 29.7 3.9
Related-party fees and alloCationS............c.eceeviiiieriiiieiie ettt saeas 53.7 35.8
820.4 706.4
EBITDA .ottt e st e st et e bt et e et e et e ss e s e s et e e entententeneeseeneese et eebeeaessensenes 981.2 924.0
Depreciation and amoOrtiZatiOn ..........c.ecvevuerierierieeriesteseseesieetesteesesreesesseesesseessessaessesssessessensens 638.9 618.2
252 ) 8 USSR 3423 305.8
Financial and other expense:
Interest expense:
TRITA-PATLY .ttt ettt et be bbbt st b et ne (424.0) (425.2)
RELAtEA-PAILY ... ccveiiieeiecieeeete ettt ettt et ettt et e et et e eae e te e e saeeraesreennenaeas 98.1) (99.9)
Foreign currency transaction gains (I0SSES), NET ........c.evververiiriierieeienieieeeeieeeesaeene e enesseesenseas 20.1 (50.6)
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, Net .............ccoeeeveevreeeerreenenen. (43.1) 18.0
Losses on debt modification and extinguiShment, Nt .............ccecveeveeiieriiriieneeiere e (143.6) —
Other INCOME, TIET ...ttt e ettt e e et e e et e e eaa e e seaaeeeeeaeeessaeeseaseesanneessneeesnes 6.8 0.8
Net financial and Other EXPENSE..........ccueruireierieiieriieieeiete ettt ste e e ae e esbessaeseesneseens (681.9) (556.9)
L0SS DEfOre INCOME TAXES ....cuvicviiiieeiicrieeiieteeet ettt ettt ettt eteeete e e et eees e beeasesteeaseeteenseeseenseenas (339.6) (251.1)
INCOME tAX DENETIL.....c.eiiitiieieee ettt ettt eb bbb st sa b neens 80.3 40.7
INEE LOSS ..ttt ettt ettt ettt et e et et e et e ebe s et et e beea e s e b et e s enseneeneeneeseeneeseeseenesseeseseseanennan € (259.3) € (210.4)
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Revenue

Revenue includes amounts earned from subscribers for ongoing services as well as channel carriage fees, interconnect fees,
installation fees, late fees and other non-subscription revenue. We use the term “subscription revenue” in the following discussion
to refer to amounts received from subscribers for ongoing services, excluding installation fees, late fees and mobile services
revenue.

The details of our revenue are set forth below (in millions, except percentages):

Year ended December 31, Increase
2012 2011 € %
pro forma

Subscription revenue:
VIACO ..ttt sttt re e s ae e bessa e besnsenseens € 948.6 € 9240 € 24.6 2.7
Broadband internet.............coeeveevuieieirieiiciee e 283.8 220.8 63.0 28.5
TeIEPRONY ...ttt 346.4 292.5 53.9 18.4
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVENUE.......c.ccvieveeeieereeieeteete et ereens 1,578.8 1,437.3 141.5 9.8
Non-subscription reVeNUE (8).........cceevvereerrereeriereeseneessessessensaensenns 222.8 193.1 29.7 15.4
TO ALttt € 18016 € 11,6304 € 171.2 10.5

(a)  Includes carriage fee, interconnect, installation and mobile services revenue.

The details of our revenue increase during 2012, as compared to 2011, are set forth below (in millions):

Increase in subscription revenue due to change in (a):

Average NUMDET OF RGUS (D) ...c.viiuiiiieiiiiieiicieeie sttt ettt esb e s aeebe e e beessesbeesseseessanssensesseensennes € 111.5
Average monthly subscription revenue per average RGU (ARPU) (C) ...ecvivveeveiieieiiiiiecieeeeceeeeveee e 30.0
Increase in NON-SULSCIIPHON TEVEIUE (A)...cuviiviiriiriiiriieiesiieieetieteeeeteeeesteetesteesaesreessesseesseeseesseeseesseessesseessesseessesses 29.7
TOLAL L.ttt ettt sttt ettt s e a b st ettt et e Rttt eR e R e oA e ke b e s enbenbensententententan b et e eseeneeseeneese s ensenns € 171.2

(a)  Our subscription revenue includes revenue from multi-year bulk agreements with landlords, housing associations or with
Professional Operators. These bulk agreements, which generally allow for the procurement of the basic video signals at
volume-based discounts, provide access to nearly two-thirds of our video cable subscribers. Our bulk agreements are, to
a significant extent, medium and long-term contracts, although certain of these agreements are scheduled to expire as early
as 2013. During the three months ended December 31, 2012, our 20 largest bulk agreement accounts generated
approximately 6% of our revenue (including estimated amounts billed directly to the building occupants for premium cable,
broadband internet and telephony services). No assurance can be given that our bulk agreements will be renewed or extended
on financially equivalent terms or at all, particularly in light of the commitments we made to regulators in connection with
the LGI/KBW Transaction. In this regard, we have, among other items, agreed to grant a special termination right with
respect to our Remedy HA Agreements. The Remedy HA Agreements that remain subject to the special termination right
(which include agreements that are not among the 20 largest bulk agreements) as of December 31, 2012 accounted for
approximately 1% of our total revenue during the three months ended December 31, 2012. For additional information, see
note 5 to our consolidated financial statements.

(b)  The increase in our subscription revenue related to a change in the average number of RGUES is attributable to increases in
the average numbers of broadband internet, telephony and digital cable RGUs that were only partially offset by a decline
in the average number of analog cable RGUs. The decline in our average number of analog cable RGUs led to a decline
in the average number of total video RGUs during 2012, as compared to 2011.

(c)  The increase in our subscription revenue related to a change in ARPU is due to (i) an improvement in RGU mix, attributable
to higher proportions of telephony, digital cable and broadband internet RGUs, and (ii) a net increase resulting primarily
from the following factors: (a) lower ARPU due to a decrease in telephony call volume for customers on usage-based calling
plans, (b) higher ARPU from digital cable services, (c) lower ARPU due to a higher proportion of customers receiving
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(d)

discounted analog cable services through bulk agreements and (d) higher ARPU from broadband internet services. For
information concerning our commitment to distribute basic digital television channels in unencrypted form commencing
January 1, 2013, see note 5 to our consolidated financial statements.

The increase in our non-subscription revenue is primarily attributable to (i) an increase in installation revenue, due to a
higher number of installations and an increase in the average installation fee, (ii) an increase in network usage revenue,
most of which relates to the settlement of prior year amounts and (iii) an increase in mobile services revenue. In addition,
our non-subscription revenue includes fees received for the carriage of certain channels included in our analog and digital
cable offerings. This carriage fee revenue is subject to contracts that expire or are otherwise terminable by either party at
various dates ranging from 2013 through 2017. The aggregate amount of our carriage fee revenue represents approximately
6% of our total revenue during the three months ended December 31,2012. Public broadcasters representing approximately
20% of our carriage fee revenue for the three months ended December 31, 2012 have sent us notices purporting to terminate
these carriage fee arrangements effective December 31, 2012. While we are still seeking to negotiate with the public
broadcasters to reach acceptable agreements, we have rejected the termination notices and filed law suits for payment of
carriage fees against the public broadcasters. Until such time as we resolve these disputes or obtain favorable outcomes in
our law suits, we don’t believe we will meet the criteria to recognize revenue from the public broadcasters in 2013 and
future periods. In addition, some private broadcasters are seeking to change the distribution model to eliminate the payment
of carriage fees and instead require that cable operators pay license fees to the broadcasters. In light of the foregoing, no
assurance can be given that any of our carriage fee contracts will be renewed or extended on financially equivalent terms,
or at all. Also, our ability to increase the aggregate carriage fees that we receive for each channel is limited by certain
commitments we made to regulators in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction. For additional information, see note
5 to our consolidated financial statements.

OpEx

General. OpEx includes programming and copyright, network operations, interconnect, customer operations, customer care

and other operating costs. Our network operating costs include significant expenses incurred pursuant to long-term agreements
with Deutsche Telekom for the use of assets and other services provided by Deutsche Telekom. Our programming costs, which
represent the majority of our direct costs, are expected to rise in future periods as a result of (i) growth in digital cable services,
in combination with the planned introduction of Horizon TV, (ii) price increases and (iii) other factors. In addition, we are subject
to inflationary pressures with respect to our staff-related and other costs. Any cost increases that we are not able to pass on to our
subscribers through service rate increases would result in increased pressure on our operating margins. The details of our OpEx
are set forth below (in millions, except percentages):

Year ended December 31, Increase (decrease)
2012 2011 € %
pro forma

Direct costs (programming and copyright, interconnect and other).... € 179.5 € 1615 € 18.0 11.1
Staff-related COSES ....ovuiiiiriiiiiiirieieeeeeeeee et 83.3 853 (2.0) (2.3)
Network Operating COStS .......cuevvirieriereerrieieireeeeseeste et et eeeesreeeeerens 144.4 136.4 8.0 5.9
Other INAITECt COSES....ouviiuiriiriiriieieiieiere et ete e eae e ese e seesaenseees 93.6 77.3 16.3 21.1

TOtAL ..ot € 500.8 € 460.5 € 40.3 8.8

Our total OpEx increased €40.3 million or 8.8% during 2012, as compared to 2011. This increase includes the following

factors:

* An increase in direct costs of €18.0 million or 11.1%, primarily attributable to (i) an increase in programming and
related costs, due to the net effect of (a) growth in digital video services and (b) a decrease of €1.4 million due to the
netimpactofaccrual releases during 2012 and 2011 related to the settlement or reassessment of operational contingencies
and (ii) an increase in interconnect costs, primarily due to a higher number of telephony subscribers;

* An increase in other indirect costs of €16.3 million or 21.1%, primarily attributable to (i) an increase in outsourced
labor and professional fees, primarily due to increased call center costs attributable to higher call volumes and, to a
lesser extent, higher outsourced labor associated with customer-facing activities and (ii) an increase in encryption costs,
due largely to an increase in the number of installed digital set-top boxes; and
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* Anincrease in network operating costs of €8.0 million or 5.9%, primarily due to (i) higher costs associated with the
refurbishment of customer premises equipment and (ii) higher energy costs, due in part to the release of accruals in
connection with the settlement of operational contingencies during the second and fourth quarters of 2011. Duct and
pole rental costs increased slightly primarily due to the negative impact of a fourth quarter 2011 settlement of an
operational contingency.

SG&A

General. SG&A includes human resources, information technology, general services, management, finance, legal and
marketing costs, stock-based compensation and other general expenses. As noted above under OpEx, we are subject to inflationary
pressures with respect to our staff-related and other costs. The details of our SG&A costs are set forth below (in millions, except
percentages):

Year ended December 31, Increase
2012 2011 € %
pro forma
Staff-related COSES.......ooiiiiiiiiiiiece e € 66.6 € 644 € 2.2 34
Sales and Marketing COStS .......covrvverirrierieiieieie e 101.7 90.3 11.4 12.6
Other INAITECt COSES ...viiviiiriiiitieeie et e ettt et eee e ereeeaee e 67.9 51.5 16.4 31.8
TOtAL ettt et e € 236.2 € 2062 € 30.0 14.5

Our total SG&A increased €30.0 million or 14.5% during 2012, as compared to 2011. This increase includes the following
factors:

*  Anincrease in other indirect costs of €16.4 million or 31.8%, largely attributable to (i) an increase in outsourced labor
and professional fees, primarily due to higher consulting costs associated with the integration of KBW’s operations,
(i) an increase in facilities expenses, primarily due to higher costs related to the rental of office space, and (iii) an
increase in delivery and postage costs primarily associated with the delivery of customer premises equipment to retail
locations;

*  An increase in sales and marketing costs of €11.4 million or 12.6%, primarily due to net effect of (i) increased costs
associated with rebranding and other advertising campaigns and (ii) lower expenses for third-party sales commissions,
as higher proportions of capitalized third-party sales commissions more than offset the impact of higher overall third-
party sales commissions during 2012; and

*  Anincrease in staff-related costs of €2.2 million or 3.4%, primarily due to the net effect of (i) annual wage increases,
(i1) lower bonus costs and (iii) lower severance costs.

Impairment, Restructuring and Other Operating Items, Net

We recognized impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net, of €29.7 million during 2012, compared to €3.9
million during 2011. The 2012 amount includes (i) €30.8 million of restructuring charges associated with employee severance
and termination costs related to reorganization activities, (ii) a €2.7 million gain on disposal of assets and (iii) €1.6 million of
impairment charges. The 2011 amount includes (a) €5.2 million of impairment charges and (b) a €1.3 million gain on disposal of
assets. The 2011 impairment charges primarily relate to the write-off of development costs associated with a customer billing
system that was discontinued.

Related-Party Fees and Allocations

We recorded related-party fees and allocations related to corporate services performed by Liberty Global of €53.7 million
during 2012 as compared to €35.8 million during 2011. These amounts represent charges, which originate with UPC Holding and
other Liberty Global subsidiaries, to our company, including charges for management, finance, legal, technology, marketing and
other services that support our company’s operations. The 2012 amounts include fees and allocations related to both Unitymedia
KabelBW and KBW, while the 2011 amounts do not include any amounts related to KBW. For additional information, see note
16 to our consolidated financial statements.
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Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased €20.7 million or 3.3% during 2012, as compared to 2011. This increase is
due primarily to the net effect of (i) an increase in property and equipment additions, (ii) an increase in expenditures for capitalized
subscriber acquisition costs, (iii) a decrease associated with certain assets becoming fully depreciated and (iv) a decrease in
accelerated deprecation associated with the replacement of certain network equipment during 2011.

Net Financial and Other Expense

Our net financial and other expense primarily includes interest expense, interest income, foreign currency transaction gains
or losses, realized and unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments and losses on debt modification and extinguishment.
As further described below, we recorded net financial and other expense during 2012 of €681.9 million, as compared to €556.9
million during 2011.

Interest expense — third-party

Interest expense — third-party decreased €1.2 million or 0.3% during 2012, as compared to 2011, due primarily to the net
effect of (i) lower weighted average interest rates and (ii) slightly higher average outstanding balances. For additional information,
see note 13 to our consolidated financial statements.

Interest expense — related-party

Interest expense — related-party decreased €1.8 million or 1.8% during 2012, as compared to 2011, due primarily to the net
effect of (i) lower average outstanding balances during 2012 and (ii) higher weighted average interest rates. Our related-party
interest expense relates to (a) our shareholder loans payable to UPC Germany, including (1) the 2010 Shareholder Loans and (2)
following the May 2012 KBW Fold-in, the 2012 Shareholder Loan, and (b) our loan payable to UMI. For additional information,
see note 13 to our consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transaction gains (losses), net

We recognized foreign currency transaction gains (losses), net, of €20.1 million during 2012, as compared to (€50.6 million)
during 2011. These amounts primarily relate to the remeasurement of our U.S. dollar denominated indebtedness.

Realized and unrealized gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net
Our realized and unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments include (i) unrealized changes in the fair values of our
derivative instruments that are non-cash in nature until such time as the underlying contracts are fully or partially settled and (ii)

realized gains or losses upon the full or partial settlement of the underlying contracts. The details of our realized and unrealized
gains (losses) on derivative instruments, net, are as follows (in millions):

Year ended December 31,

2012 2011
pro forma
Cross-currency derivative CONEIACTS (@) .....evverueeruerierierieieeeeieetesteeeesseeseesseessesseessesseessesssensesssensenns € (37.5) € 453
Interest rate derivative CONTACES (D) .....ocierviiieriiiieiiceeieee ettt ve e s reebeseeesbe e s esveessesreens (5.6) (27.3)
TOTAL .ttt ettt et b ettt a et b et e nen € 43.1) € 18.0

(a)  Theloss during 2012 is primarily attributable to the net effect of (i) losses associated with decreases in market interest rates
in the euro market, (ii) gains associated with decreases in market interest rates in the U.S. dollar market and (iii) losses
associated with a decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the euro. The gain during 2011 is primarily attributable
to the net effect of (a) gains associated with decreases in market interest rates in the U.S. dollar market, (b) losses associated
with decreases in market interest rates in the euro market and (c) gains associated with an increase in the value of the U.S.
dollar relative to the euro.

(b)  During the third quarter of 2012, our interest rate derivative contracts were terminated.
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For additional information regarding our derivative instruments, see notes 6 and 7 to our consolidated financial statements.
Losses on debt modification and extinguishment, net

We recognized losses on debt modification and extinguishment, net, of €143.6 million during 2012. The loss includes (i) a
loss of €133.7 million during the fourth quarter associated with the redemption and repurchase of all of the 2009 UM Dollar Senior
Secured Notes and a portion of the 2009 UM Euro Senior Secured Notes, including a loss of (a) €95.9 million representing the
difference between the principal amount and redemption price of the debt redeemed and (b) €37.8 million associated with the
write-off of deferred financing costs and an unamortized discount, (ii) a loss of €8.6 million representing the difference between
the carrying value and redemption price of the UM Senior Secured Floating Rate Exchange Notes that were redeemed during the
third quarter and (iii) a loss of €1.1 million representing the difference between the carrying value and redemption price of the
debt redeemed pursuant to the Special Optional Redemptions in May 2012. For additional information, see note 13 to our
consolidated financial statements.

Income Tax Benefit
We recognized income tax benefit of €80.3 million and €40.7 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The income tax benefit during 2012 differs from the expected income tax benefit of €109.9 million (based on the German
group income tax rate of 32.37%) due primarily to the negative impact of certain permanent differences between the financial and
tax accounting treatment of interest and other items. This negative impact was partially offset by the positive impact of the
recognition of certain net operating loss and interest carryforwards.

The income tax benefit during 2011 differs from the expected income tax benefit of €80.1 million (based on the German group
income tax rate of 31.88%) due primarily to the negative impacts of certain permanent differences between the financial and tax
accounting treatment of interest and other items.

For additional information regarding our income taxes, see note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.
Net Loss
We reported net losses of €259.3 million and €210.4 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Gains or losses associated with (i) changes in the fair values of derivative instruments, (ii) movements in foreign currency
exchange rates and (iii) the disposition of assets are subject to a high degree of volatility, and as such, any gains from these sources
do not represent a reliable source of income. In the absence of significant gains in the future from these sources or from other
non-operating items, our ability to achieve net earnings is largely dependent on our ability to increase our aggregate Adjusted
EBITDA to a level that more than offsets the aggregate amount of our (a) stock-based compensation, (b) related-party fees and
allocations, (c) impairment, restructuring and other operating items, (d) depreciation and amortization, (¢) net financial and other
expense and (f) our income tax expenses.

2011 compared to 2010

In order to provide meaningful comparisons, the following discussion and analysis of our results of operations for 2011 is
based on comparisons to our pro forma statement of operations for 2010. Our 2010 pro forma statement of operations gives effect
to (i) the formation of Unitymedia KabelBW and the Unitymedia Merger, (ii) the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction and (iii) the
Unitymedia Debt Pushdown, as if such transactions had been completed as of January 1,2010. As aresult, the pro forma statement
of operations for 2010 presented below includes the historical operating results of Old Unitymedia for the entire year. The pro
forma amounts related to Old Unitymedia are derived from the pre-acquisition historical consolidated financial statements of Old
Unitymedia. The pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that would have occurred if these
transactions had occurred on January 1, 2010. The pro forma adjustments are based on certain assumptions that we believe are
reasonable.

Financial Performance
Historical results for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to pro forma results for the year ended December 31,

2010 are set forth below (in millions). The operating results of the Kabel BW Group are not included in the results prior to
December 15, 2011.
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Year ended December 31,

2011 2010
pro forma
Revenue:
Subscription revenue:
VIARO ..ttt h bbbt b e bttt e h bt et h e b b s h ettt ennen € 6384 € 618.0
Broadband INTETINIEL ...........ccueiiiriitieiee ettt ettt et et e st eneeseeneeseeseeseeseesesseesannan 130.9 88.8
B 157 011107 1) TP 156.0 117.5
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIMURC........icviirierieeietiecte et eteeeteete et e eteeesesteebeeteeseeseeseessesseessesseessesreensesseas 925.3 824.3
NON-SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIIUE .......eevviieievieiieieetesieeteeteeseeseesseeseesseessesseessesseessesssessesssessesssensessessessenses 127.7 110.9
1,053.0 935.2
Operating costs and expenses:
(0] 0] 25 TSP 281.1 273.6
SGELA ...ttt a et h e bbbt bbb et beaen 144.7 140.7
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, NEt.............ccceeieveiiierreieereeeeere e e 0.6 26.7
Related-party fees and alloCations...........ccuieveriiiieriiiierie ettt e seee e seesaenaees 35.8 23.8
462.2 464.8
EBITDA ..ottt ettt h bt bttt b e bttt et et eb e bt e bt bt e bt bt et b s bt et enee 590.8 470.4
Depreciation and amoOrtiZatiOn .............ceecuieeeeiiieeiie et eete et ereereeereereesteerseereersesreessesseas 400.9 351.8
EBIT ettt h bt b et b bttt h e a e bbbt bbbt tenee 189.9 118.6
Financial and other expense:
Interest expense:
TRITA-PATLY .ottt ettt ettt e et et e s e et et e st enseneeneeseeneeseeseeteeneesensenes (252.2) (247.7)
J ] L eTa T2 4 2SR (99.9) (93.5)
Foreign currency transaction 10SSES, NET .........c..cvevuiiuieiieerieiteeiecteeteete et eere e ere e sre e e steesnesaeas (21.6) (13.1)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivative inStruments, NEt ...........cccevvereeirercnenenenenenenenes 255 33.2
Other INCOME (EXPENSE), NEL.....cuviiuieriitieriitieteiteeteeteere et eeteereeeteessesteesesreessesreesesssessessseseessenseens (1.2) 1.5
Net financial and Other EXPENSE..........ccveruiieierieiiiieieeeeie ettt sre et e se e e eae e essesseesessseseens (349.4) (319.6)
L0SS DEfOre INCOME TAXES ....cuviviiiieeierieeiieteete et et ettt ettt et te et e eas e te s e teeaseereeaveereenneeeas (159.5) (201.0)
INCOME tAX DENETIL.....c.eiiiiiieiee ettt b e eb e st be et neens 18.2 33.1
Loss from continuing OPEratiONS............c.eceeeviereerueeeerteereeereeeesteeseesteessesseesesseeseeseeseeseeseens € (141.3) € (167.9)
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Revenue

The details of our revenue are set forth below (in millions, except percentages):

Organic
Year ended December 31, Increase increase
2011 2010 € % %
pro forma
Subscription revenue:

VIACO .o € 6384 € 618.0 € 20.4 33 1.2
Broadband internet...........cccoceeevenininienenenenenens 130.9 88.8 42.1 47.4 42.5
Telephony .......cccovieveeciieiieiieeeeeeeee e 156.0 117.5 38.5 32.8 26.5
Total subscription revenue...........cocceevveevereneenne. 925.3 824.3 101.0 12.3 9.2
Non-subscription revenue (a).........cccceeeveereeveereennnne. 127.7 110.9 16.8 15.1 12.5
TOAL .o € 10530 € 9352 € 117.8 12.6 9.6

(2)

Includes carriage fee, interconnect and installation revenue.

The increase in our revenue during 2011, as compared to 2010, includes an organic increase of €90.0 million or 9.6% and the

impact of the LGI/KBW Transaction, as set forth below (in millions):

Increase in subscription revenue due to change in:

Average NUMDET OF RGUS (@) ....c.viiuiiiiiiiiciiceeccie ettt ettt ettt et e v et e eteeae e taeteeteeebeetseseeaseeseenseeseenseenis € 56.7
ARPU (D) 1nteteiieteieteiet ettt ettt ettt ettt et b e s et e st e b e st sen s e s e a b e s e e Rt e Rt ke n b e st ek en e b e st et et ese b es e beneebeneebeneeee 19.4
Increase in NON-SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIUE (C) ..vveivririireerierieteeeteeteeteeteeteeteeeteeteeeseesseeseesseeseesseeseeseeseeeseeseesseessesseessesseas 13.9
OFZANIC INCICASE ... eeuvevreurieeeereestesseessesseessesseessesseessesseessesssessasssesseassesseessasseassesseessesssessesssessesssessesssessesssessensesssenns 90.0
Impact of the LGI/KBW TIANSACLION ........cveiviiiiiriitietieteeteeete et eeteeete et eete et eeteesseeseesseeseesseeseeseeseesseessesssessesseessesseas 27.8
TORAL ...ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ekttt ettt e Rt b e Rt A e Rt s en ek en s ket et et e st b es e b e st b e st s e st sentesentenen € 117.8
(a)  The increase in subscription revenue related to a change in the average number of RGUs is attributable to increases in the

(b)

(©)

average numbers of broadband internet, telephony and digital cable RGUs that were only partially offset by a decline in
the average number of analog cable RGUs. The decline in the average number of analog cable RGUs led to a decline in
the average number of total video RGUs during 2011, as compared to 2010.

The increase in subscription revenue related to a change in ARPU is due to an improvement in RGU mix, attributable to
higher proportions of telephony, digital cable and broadband internet RGUs, that was only partially offset by a net decrease
resulting primarily from the following factors: (i) lower ARPU due to the impact of free bundled services provided to new
subscribers during promotional periods, (ii) lower ARPU due to a higher proportion of customers receiving discounted
analog cable services through bulk agreements and (iii) lower ARPU due to a decrease in telephony call volume for customers
on usage-based calling plans.

The increase in non-subscription revenue is primarily attributable to increases in (i) installation revenue, primarily due to

a higher number of RGU additions, (ii) interconnect revenue, primarily due to growth in telephony services and (iii) channel
carriage fees.
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OpEx

The details of our OpEx are set forth below (in millions, except percentages):

Organic
increase
Year ended December 31, Increase (decrease) (decrease)
2011 2010 € % %
pro forma
Direct costs (programming and copyright,
interconnect and other).............cccocveveveverevereeennann, € 90.6 € 86.5 € 4.1 4.7 1.2
Staff related COStS......couiviiviiiiiiiiiececeecreceee e, 57.2 55.2 2.0 3.6 1.6
Network operating COSts ........cceevevveeeerveeeerreneennenes 87.3 90.5 3.2) (3.5) (6.6)
Other indirect COStS ......ovviivrierieiiieeeeiecieere e 46.0 41.4 4.6 11.1 5.8
TOtal...oovieiiiee e € 281.1 € 273.6 € 7.5 2.7 (0.6)

Our total OpEx increased €7.5 million or 2.7% during 2011, as compared to 2010. This increase includes €9.2 million
attributable to the LGI/KBW Transaction. Excluding the effect of the LGI/KBW Transaction, OpEx decreased €1.7 million or
0.6%. This decrease includes the following factors:

SG&A

A decrease in network operating costs of €6.0 million or 6.6%, mostly attributable to lower energy costs due in part to
the release of accruals in connection with the settlement of operational contingencies during the second and fourth
quarters of 2011. Duct and pole rental costs remained relatively constant as the impact of higher rates was offset by
the favorable impact of an accrual release in connection with the fourth quarter 2011 settlement of an operational
contingency;

An increase in other indirect costs of €2.4 million or 5.8%, primarily attributable to the net impact of (i) a decrease in
bad debt and collection costs of €4.6 million, due primarily to improved collection experience, (ii) an increase in
outsourced labor and professional fees of €3.2 million, primarily attributable to the impact of increased call center costs
due to higher call volumes, (iii) an increase of €2.3 million in encryption costs and (iv) other individually insignificant
net increases. The increase in encryption costs is due primarily to (a) a shift from capitalizing encryption costs during
the first six months of 2010, when we purchased our encryption cards from third parties, to expensing encryption costs
during subsequent periods, when we reimbursed Liberty Global for our share of the costs incurred under Liberty
Global’s global contract for encryption services and (b) increased numbers of digital cable set-top boxes; and

An increase in direct costs of €1.0 million or 1.2%, primarily attributable to the net impact of (i) growth in digital cable
services and (ii) lower rates for certain copyright fees.

The details of our SG&A costs are set forth below (in millions, except percentages):

Organic
increase
Year ended December 31, Increase (decrease) (decrease)
2011 2010 € % %
pro forma
Staff related COStS.......ccviviiiiiiiiieei e € 41.8 € 370 € 4.8 13.0 9.7
Sales and marketing COStS ........cceevververeienieeieniinieienns 66.7 74.6 (7.9) (10.6) (13.1)
Other indirect COStS ......ceevviiiieeieereeeieeeeecee e 36.2 29.1 7.1 24 .4 21.0
TOtal..ceiiieieceee e € 1447 € 140.7 € 4.0 2.8 (0.1)
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Our total SG&A increased €4.0 million or 2.8% during 2011, as compared to 2010. This increase includes €4.1 million
attributable to the LGI/KBW Transaction. Excluding the effect of the LGI/KBW Transaction, SG&A decreased €0.1 million or
0.1%. This decrease includes the following factors:

* A decrease in sales and marketing costs of €9.8 million or 13.1%, due primarily to (i) a decrease in marketing
expenditures, primarily due to a shift to lower cost marketing channels, (ii) lower expenses for third-party sales
commissions, as higher proportions of capitalized third-party sales commissions more than offset the impact of higher
overall third-party sales commissions during 2011 and (iii) the €1.3 million positive impact of an accrual release
following the second quarter 2011 settlement of an operational contingency;

* Anincrease in other indirect costs of €6.1 million or 21.0%, primarily attributable to (i) an increase in outsourced labor
and professional fees of €3.0 million due primarily to higher consulting costs for strategic marketing projects, (ii) an
increase of €1.2 million associated with costs incurred in connection with the integration of KBW’s operations with
ours and (iii) individually insignificant changes in other indirect cost categories; and

* Anincrease in staffrelated costs of €3.6 million or 9.7%, due primarily to (i) higher costs related to temporary personnel,
(i1) annual wage increases and (iii) increased staffing levels.

Impairment, Restructuring and Other Operating Items, Net

We recognized impairment, restructuring and other operating items, net of €0.6 million during 2011, compared to €26.7 million
during 2010. The 2010 amount includes €23.3 million of direct acquisition costs incurred in connection with the LGI/Unitymedia
Transaction and €3.4 million of severance costs incurred in connection with certain reorganization and integration activities.

Related-Party Fees and Allocations

We recorded related-party fees and allocations related to corporate services performed by Liberty Global of €35.8 million
during 2011, as compared to €23.8 million during 2010. These amounts represent charges from UPC Holding and other Liberty
Global subsidiaries to our company following the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction, including charges for management, finance, legal,
technology, marketing and other services that support our operations. For additional information, see note 16 to our consolidated
financial statements.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation and amortization expense increased €49.1 million or 14.0% during 2011, as compared to 2010, primarily due
to the net effect of (i) an increase in property and equipment additions, (ii) an increase in expenditures for capitalizable subscriber
acquisition costs, (iii) a decrease associated with changes in the estimated useful lives of certain property and equipment that were
made during the second half of 2010, (iv) and increase associated with the LGI/KBW Transaction and (v) an increase in accelerated
deprecation associated with the replacement of certain network equipment during 2011.

Net Financial and Other Expense

Our net financial and other expense primarily includes interest expense, interest income, foreign currency transaction gains
or losses and realized and unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments. As further described below, we recorded net
financial and other expense of €349.4 million during 2011, as compared to €319.6 million during 2010.

Interest expense - third-party

Interest expense - third-party increased €4.5 million or 1.8% during 2011, as compared to 2010, as an increase in interest
expense from the December 15, 2011 addition of KBW’s indebtedness was partially offset by (i) decreases in interest expense
associated with foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations with respect to the U.S. dollar denominated 2009 UM Dollar Senior
Secured Notes and (ii) declines in interest expense on borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facility.
With the exception of the interest expense incurred with respect to KBW’s indebtedness during the last two weeks of 2011, our
third-party interest expense during 2011 and 2010 related to the 2009 UM Notes and borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW
Revolving Credit Facility.
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Interest expense - related-party

Interest expense - related-party increased €6.4 million or 6.8% during 2011, as compared to 2010, due primarily to a higher
weighted average outstanding balance of our 2010 Shareholder Loans payable to UPC Germany during 2011. For additional
information, see note 13 to our consolidated financial statements.

Foreign currency transaction losses, net

We recognized foreign currency transaction losses, net, of €21.6 million during 2011, compared to €13.1 million during 2010.
These amounts primarily relate to the remeasurement of the 2009 UM Dollar Senior Secured Notes into euros.

Realized and unrealized gains on derivative instruments, net

Our realized and unrealized gains or losses on derivative instruments include (i) unrealized changes in the fair values of our
derivative instruments that are non-cash in nature until such time as the underlying contracts are fully or partially settled and (ii)
realized gains or losses upon the full or partial settlement of the underlying contracts. The details of our realized and unrealized
gains on derivative instruments, net, are as follows (in millions):

Year ended December 31,

2011 2010
pro forma
Cross-currency derivative CONEIACTS (@) .....cverueeruereerierrieieerieseeeesseeeesseeseesseessesseessesseessesssessessaessenss € 263 € 38.2
Interest rate deriVatiVe CONTIACT........c..ccviiuieiiitieieite ettt ettt ettt et et e ete e eteeaaesreesesaeeseersenseessereens (0.8) 5.0)
TOTAL ettt h e a e bbb bt bttt e a e a e bt ae bbbt bt e bentennan € 255 € 33.2

(a)  The gain during 2011 is primarily attributable to the net effect of (i) gains associated with decreases in market interest rates
in the U.S. dollar market, (ii) losses associated with decreases in market interest rates in the euro market and (iii) gains
associated with an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the euro. The gain during 2010 is primarily attributable
to the net effect of (a) gains associated with an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the euro, (b) gains associated
with decreases in market interest rates in the U.S. dollar market and (c) losses associated with decreases in market interest
rates in the euro market.

For additional information regarding our derivative instruments, see notes 6 and 7 to our consolidated financial statements.

Income Tax Benefit

We recognized income tax benefit of €18.2 million and €33.1 million during 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The income tax benefit during 2011 differs from the expected income tax benefit of €50.8 million (based on the German
31.88% income tax rate), primarily due to the negative impacts of certain permanent differences between the financial and tax
accounting treatment of interest and other items.

The income tax benefit during 2010 differs from the expected income tax benefit of €63.5 million (based on the German
31.58% income tax rate), due primarily to the negative impacts of certain permanent differences between the financial and tax
accounting treatment of interest and other items.

For additional information regarding our income taxes, see note 14 to our consolidated financial statements.

Loss from Continuing Operations

We reported losses from continuing operations of €141.3 million and €167.9 million during 2011 and 2010, respectively.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Cash
Cash and cash equivalents

Although our consolidated operating subsidiaries have generated cash from operating activities, the terms of our debt
instruments restrict our ability to access the assets of our subsidiaries. At December 31, 2012, substantially all of our consolidated
cash and cash equivalents of €20.2 million were held by our subsidiaries. In addition, our ability to access the liquidity of our
subsidiaries may be limited by tax considerations or other factors.

Liquidity of Unitymedia KabelBW

Our sources of liquidity at the parent level include (i) our cash and cash equivalents, (ii) amounts due under the UPC Germany
Loan Receivable, (iii) funding from UPC Germany (and ultimately from Liberty Global or other Liberty Global subsidiaries) in
the form ofloans or contributions, as applicable, and (iii) subject to the restrictions noted above, proceeds in the form of distributions
or loans from Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW or other subsidiaries.

The ongoing cash needs of Unitymedia KabelBW include (i) corporate general and administrative expenses and (ii) interest
payments on outstanding debt. From time to time, Unitymedia KabelBW may also require cash in connection with (a) the repayment
of outstanding debt, (b) the satisfaction of contingent liabilities, (¢) acquisitions or (d) other investment opportunities. No assurance
can be given that funding from UPC Germany (and ultimately from Liberty Global or other Liberty Global subsidiaries), our
subsidiaries or external sources would be available on favorable terms, or at all.

Liquidity of Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW and our Other Operating Subsidiaries

In addition to cash and cash equivalents, the primary sources of liquidity of Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW
and our other operating subsidiaries is cash provided by operations and, in the case of Unitymedia Hessen and Unitymedia NRW,
any borrowing availability under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities. At December 31,2012, we had combined
borrowing capacity of €417.5 million under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities.

The liquidity of Unitymedia Hessen, Unitymedia NRW, KBW and our other operating subsidiaries generally is used to fund
capital expenditures, debt service requirements and other liquidity requirements that may arise from time to time. For a discussion
of our consolidated cash flows, see the discussion under Consolidated Cash Flow Statements below. Our subsidiaries may also
require funding in connection with (i) the repayment of outstanding debt, (ii) acquisitions and other investment opportunities or
(iii) distributions or loans to Unitymedia KabelBW (and ultimately to Liberty Global or other Liberty Global subsidiaries). No
assurance can be given that any external funding would be available to our subsidiaries on favorable terms, or at all.

Our most significant financial obligations are our debt obligations, as described in note 13 to our consolidated financial
statements. The terms of our debt instruments contain certain restrictions, including covenants that restrict our ability to incur
additional debt. As a result, additional debt financing is only a potential source of liquidity if the incurrence of any new debt is
permitted by the terms of our existing debt instruments.

Capitalization

Our ability to generate cash from our operations will depend on our future operating performance, which is in turn dependent,
to some extent, on general economic, financial, competitive, market, regulatory and other factors, many of which are beyond our
control. We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, our loan receivable from UPC Germany, the cash provided from the
operations of our subsidiaries and any available borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities will be
sufficient to fund our currently anticipated working capital needs, capital expenditures, and debt service requirements through
December 31, 2013, although no assurance can be given that this will be the case. However, as our debt matures in later years,
we anticipate that we will seek to refinance or otherwise extend our debt maturities. No assurance can be given that we will be
able to complete refinancing transactions or otherwise extend our debt maturities. In this regard, it is not possible to predict how
economic conditions, sovereign debt concerns and/or any adverse regulatory developments could impact the credit markets we
access and accordingly, our future liquidity and financial position. In addition, sustained or increased competition, particularly
in combination with adverse economic or regulatory developments, could have an unfavorable impact on our cash flows and
liquidity.
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Our ability to service or refinance our debt and to maintain compliance with our leverage covenants is dependent primarily
on our ability to maintain or increase the Adjusted EBITDA of our operating subsidiaries and to achieve adequate returns on our
capital expenditures and acquisitions. In addition, our ability to obtain additional debt financing is limited by the leverage covenants
contained in our and our subsidiaries’ various debt instruments. In this regard, if our Adjusted EBITDA were to decline, we could
be required to repay or limit our borrowings under the Unitymedia KabelBW Revolving Credit Facilities in order to maintain
compliance with applicable covenants. No assurance can be given that we would have sufficient sources of liquidity, or that any
external funding would be available on favorable terms, or at all, to fund any such required repayment.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

The below discussion is based on the amounts as presented in our consolidated statements of cash flows, which (i) have been
retrospectively revised to give effect to the KBW Fold-in for all periods during which we and the Kabel BW Group were under
the common control of Liberty Global and (ii) reflect the historical cash flows of Unitymedia KabelBW’s continuing operations
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 and the period from January 28, 2010 to December 31, 2010. Accordingly, (a)
the cash flows of the Kabel BW Group for periods prior to December 15, 2011 are not included in the amounts reported for 2011
and 2010 and (b) the pre-acquisition period of Old Unitymedia from January 1 to January 27, 2010 is excluded from our cash
flows for 2010. All of the cash flows discussed below are those of our continuing operations.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement - 2012 compared to 2011

Summary. The 2012 and 2011 consolidated cash flow statements of our continuing operations are summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2012 2011 Change
in millions

Net cash provided by operating activities..........cc.eevievierieveereerieieere e € 6342 € 3429 € 291.3

Net cash used by iNVeSting aCHIVILIES .......ccvevverierieriieieniieieetieeeeeesre e sre e sreeaeneens (637.8) (1,304.8) 667.0

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities...........c.eeueveeveeieecreieeereeeereeeeneans (24.3) 954.2 (978.5)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents............ccccoevveviriienincieneecenceereee e € 27.9) € 7.7) € (20.2)

Operating activities. The increase in net cash provided is primarily attributable to the net effect of (i) an increase in the cash
provided by our Adjusted EBITDA and related working capital items, due largely to the LGI/KBW Transaction, (ii) a decrease in
cash provided due to higher cash payments for interest, due largely to the LGI/KBW Transaction, (iii) an increase in cash provided
due to lower cash payments related to derivative instruments and (iv) an increase in cash provided due to lower cash payments
for taxes.

Investing activities. The decrease in net cash used is primarily attributable to (i) a decrease in cash used of €882.7 million
associated with net cash paid for the LGI/KBW Transaction in 2011, (ii) an increase in cash used due to higher capital expenditures
of €157.5 million, (iii) an increase in cash used to fund advances to UPC Germany of €120.1 million and (iv) a decrease in cash
used due to the €61.0 million investment in an associate in 2011.

The capital expenditures that we report in our consolidated cash flow statements do not include amounts that are financed
under vendor financing or finance lease arrangements. Instead, these amounts are reflected as non-cash additions to our property
and equipment when the underlying assets are delivered, and as repayments of debt when the principal is repaid. In the following
discussion, we present (i) our capital expenditures as reported in our consolidated cash flow statements, which exclude amounts
financed under vendor financing or finance lease arrangements, and (ii) our total property, equipment and intangible asset additions,
which include changes in current liabilities associated with capital expenditures and amounts that are financed under vendor
financing or finance lease arrangements.

Our capital expenditures were €464.9 million and €307.4 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively and our property,
equipment and intangible asset additions were €507.0 million and €314.5 million during 2012 and 2011, respectively. The increase
in our property, equipment and intangible asset additions is primarily due to (i) the LGI/KBW Transaction, (ii) an increase in
expenditures for the purchase and installation of customer premises equipment, (iii) an increase in expenditures for new build and
upgrade projects to expand services and (iv) an increase in capitalized third-party commissions. Our capitalized third-party
commissions increased €25.9 million, from €47.1 million during 2011 to €73.0 million during 2012, primarily due to the LGI/
KBW Transaction. In terms of the composition of our property, equipment and intangible asset additions during 2012, (a) 51%
relates to the rebuild and upgrade of our distribution network, primarily in connection with the upgrade of in-home wiring, (b)
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25% relates to the purchase and installation of customer premises equipment, (c) 14% relates to capitalized third-party commissions
and (d) the remainder relates to expenditures for general support systems. During 2012 and 2011, our (1) capital expenditures
represented 25.8% and 29.2% of our revenue, respectively and (2) property, equipment and intangible asset additions represented
28.1% and 29.9% or our revenue, respectively.

For 2013, we expect our consolidated property, equipment and intangible asset additions to range from 25% to 27% of our
revenue.

Financing activities. The change is primarily due to the net effect of (i) a decrease in cash due to lower contributions from
our parent of €953.5 million, (ii) an increase in cash of €88.3 million related to higher net borrowings of third-party debt, (iii) a
decrease in cash of €129.3 million associated with higher payments of financing costs and debt premiums, (iv) an increase in cash
of €29.8 million related to higher net related-party borrowings and (v) a decrease in cash of €12.3 million due to higher cash
payments related to derivative instruments.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement - 2011 compared to 2010

Summary. The 2011 and 2010 consolidated cash flow statements of our continuing operations are summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2011 2010 Change
in millions

Net cash provided by operating activities..........cc.ccvievieerievierierieieere e € 3429 € 2257 € 117.2

Net cash used by iNVeSting aCHIVILIES .......ccvevverrerieriieienieieetieteeeere e e sae e esneseens (1,304.8) (2,123.2) 818.4

Net cash provided by financing activities...........ceceevverrievieiieciiieeie e 954.2 1,966.1 (1,011.9)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............ccceeveeveneeieneeienen. € (7.7) € 68.6 € (76.3)

Operating activities. The increase in net cash provided is primarily attributable to (i) an increase in cash provided by our
Adjusted EBITDA and related working capital items (which increase is net of a decrease related to the exclusion of Old Unitymedia’s
negative working capital movements during the 2010 pre-acquisition period), (ii) an increase in cash provided due to lower cash
payments for interest, primarily related to the March 2, 2010 repayment of Old Unitymedia’s then existing debt, (iii) an increase
in cash provided due to lower cash payments related to derivative instruments and (iv) an increase in cash provided due to lower
cash payments for taxes.

Investing activities. The decrease in net cash used is primarily attributable to the net effect of (i) a decrease in cash used of
€997.4 million associated with net cash paid in connection with the LGI/KBW Transaction during 2011 and the LGI/Unitymedia
Transaction during 2010, (ii) an increase in cash used due to higher capital expenditures of €64.1 million, (iii) an increase in cash
used due to the €61.0 million investment in an associate and (iv) an increase in cash used due to advances to UPC Germany of
€54.0 million.

Our capital expenditures were €307.4 million and €243.3 million during 2011 and 2010, respectively and our property,
equipment and intangible asset additions were €314.5 million and €249.4 million during 2011 and 2010, respectively. The increase
in our property, equipment and intangible asset additions is due primarily to (i) an increase in expenditures for the purchase and
installation of customer premises equipment, (ii) an increase in capitalized third-party commissions of €15.5 million, from €31.6
million during 2010 to €47.1 million during 2011, (iii) an increase in expenditures for support capital, such as information technology
upgrades and general support systems, (iv) an increase due to lower property, equipment and intangible asset additions in 2010
due to the exclusion of the pre-acquisition period of Old Unitymedia, (v) an increase in expenditures for new build and upgrade
projects to expand services and (vi) an increase resulting from the LGI/KBW Transaction. During 2011 and 2010, our (1) capital
expenditures represented 29.2% and 28.1% of our revenue, respectively and (2) property, equipment and intangible asset additions
represented 29.9% and 28.8% or our revenue, respectively.

Financing activities. The decrease in net cash provided is due primarily to the net effect of (i) a decrease in cash provided of
€2,593.6 million due to the release of cash collateral accounts during 2010 that were originally funded in November 2009 with
proceeds from the issuance of the 2009 UM Notes, (ii) an increase in cash provided of €1,604.9 million due to lower third-party
net debt repayments, primarily related to the March 2, 2010 Unitymedia Debt Pushdown, (iii) a decrease in cash provided of
€1,050.9 million due to lower related-party borrowings, primarily due to amounts borrowed from UPC Germany in connection
with the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction during 2010, (iv) an increase in cash provided of €936.5 million due to higher contributions
from our parent and (v) an increase in cash provided of €66.6 million due to lower cash payments related to derivative instruments.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are not a party to any off-balance sheet arrangements that have, or are reasonably likely to have, a current or future material
effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenue or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.
Critical Accounting Policies

Our critical accounting policies include our policies with respect to:

*  Impairment of property and equipment and intangible assets (including goodwill);
¢ Costs associated with construction and installation activities;

o Useful lives of long-lived assets;

e Fair value measurements; and

+ Income tax accounting.

For additional information concerning these policies, see note 3 to our consolidated financial statements.
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Unitymedia KabelBW 2010 Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations
(unaudited)

On January 28,2010, Unitymedia KabelBW GmbH (formerly known as Unitymedia GmbH until August 8,2012) (Unitymedia
KabelBW) acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Old Unitymedia, as defined and described in note 1 to our
consolidated financial statements, (the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction). On March 2, 2010, the then existing debt of Old Unitymedia
was refinanced (the Unitymedia Debt Pushdown) with proceeds from an escrow account that was created in November 2009, when
Unitymedia KabelBW and certain of its subsidiaries issued senior and senior secured notes in contemplation of the LGI/Unitymedia
Transaction. On September 16,2010, Old Unitymedia merged with Unitymedia KabelBW and Unitymedia KabelBW became the
surviving entity (the Unitymedia Merger). The Unitymedia Merger, along with the new basis of accounting that resulted from the
LGI/Unitymedia Transaction, was given effect as of January 28, 2010 in the historical consolidated financial statements of
Unitymedia KabelBW.

On December 15, 2011, a then wholly-owned subsidiary of UPC Germany Holdings GmbH (UPC Germany Holdings),
acquired all of the outstanding shares of Kabel BW Musketeer GmbH, the then indirect parent of Kabel BW GmbH (KBW) (the
LGI/KBW Transaction). Through a series of transactions that were completed during the second quarter of 2012 in conjunction
with the Unitymedia KabelBW Exchange, as defined and described in note 13 to our consolidated financial statements, UPC
Germany Holding B.V., our immediate parent company, transferred UPC Germany Holdings, an indirect parent company of KBW,
to one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries (the KBW Fold-in). We have accounted for the KBW Fold-in as a reorganization of
entities under common control. Accordingly, we have recorded the transfer of UPC Germany Holdings and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the Kabel BW Group) at carryover basis and the applicable prior period information has been retrospectively revised
to give effect to the resulting change in reporting entities for all periods in which we and the Kabel BW Group were under the
common control of Liberty Global, Inc. (namely all periods beginning on or after the December 15, 2011 LGI/KBW Transaction).

The following table presents the 2010 pro forma condensed combined statement of operations of Unitymedia KabelBW as if
(1) the LGI/Unitymedia Transaction, (ii) the Unitymedia Merger, (iii) the Unitymedia Debt Pushdown, (iv) the LGI/KBW
Transaction, (v) the March 2011 Kabel BW Refinancing, as defined and described in note 13 to our consolidated financial statements,
and (vi) the change in the reporting entities associated with the KBW Fold-in had been completed as of January 1, 2010. As a
result, the pro forma statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010 presented below includes the historical operating
results of Old Unitymedia’s and the Kabel BW Group’s continuing operations for the full year of 2010. In connection with the
KBW Fold-in, we issued the 2012 Shareholder Loan to UPC Germany as consideration for all of the outstanding shares of UPC
Germany Holdings that were transferred to our company. No interest expense on the 2012 Shareholder Loan is reflected in our
pro forma results prior to the May 2012 issuance date. These pro forma amounts are not necessarily indicative of the operating
results that would have occurred if these transactions had occurred on January 1, 2010. The pro forma adjustments are based on
certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable. For additional information, see notes 1, 5 and 13 to our consolidated financial
statements.
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Unitymedia KabelBW 2010 Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations

(unaudited)
Year ended
December 31, 2010
in millions
Revenue:
Subscription revenue:
V2 T 1< B SRS € 909.8
Broadband INTETIEE .........ccueieieiiieiiet ettt sttt sttt ettt ehe et be b 166.3
T RIEPIONY ..ottt ettt ettt et ettt te et e e te et e e te e beeaaeeteeraeete e b e eteebeera et e ersereeaseereenns 235.8
Total SUDSCIIPLION TEVEIMUR........ecvievieeiieeieteeetesteetesteetesteestesteessesseesseeseesseessessesssesseassessesssessesssesseessensenns 1,311.9
NON-SUDSCIIPLION TEVEINUER........eeuviivieericteeteetieeteeeteeteereereeseeteeseeseessesrsesseessesseessesssessesseessesssensessseseessesseenses 173.4
1,485.3
Operating costs and expenses:
L0 3] 2 USRS 448.8
SGELA . ettt ettt et a e ea e ea e Rt Rt Attt eteete et e te b et et et entententeseeneeneereaneenea 203.8
Impairment, restructuring and other operating items, Nt ..........c.ccceeierrieiierieiierieiereeeeseeeeseereseeseneeens 36.3
Related-party fees and alloCAtIONS..........c.cccviiuiiiiiiiiiiiticiece ettt er ettt te b e s teeaesreebeereens 23.8
712.7
EBITDA ...ttt ettt ettt ettt et et et et et e st e et e st e st es e es e es e eb e beesees e b e s e s ensenseneeneeneeneeneeteeneees 772.6
Depreciation and amOTtIZATION ..........cccveruiecierrierierieeriesteeteseestesseessesseeseeseesseessesseaseessesssessesssessesssessesssessanns 560.4
25 2 ) 8 ST 212.2
Financial and other expense:
Interest expense:
TRITA-PATEY ...ttt ettt ettt et e st e b e s teesbeste e s e esaesseeseenseessenseessesseessesseensesseensesseensesseensensenns (445.2)
REIAtEA-PAILY .....viviiiiciieiece ettt ettt ettt ettt e beeae e beeaaeebe e e e e beeabeeteenseeteenbesreeteereens 93.5)
Foreign currency transaction l0SSES, NMET...........ccuerierierierierieiesiesieeteeteeeesteeseesseeseessesssesseessesseensesseessensenns (13.1)
Realized and unrealized gains on derivative inStruments, NEt...........c.ccveeveeerievieereereeireeeeeeeee e ereeeeeveeeeens 332
OUNET INCOIMIE, TIEE c.veeveeieee ettt ettt e e e et eeeeeeeeaaeeeeesesaaeeeesasaaseeesesaaasaeeeesassaseeesssssasseessssasseeesesan 3.6
Net financial and Other EXPENSE.......c.ccviiiiiiieiieiicieee ettt ettt ettt eb et b e te v e eteebeereeseereesaeennas (515.0)
L0SS DETOTE INCOIME TAXES ...eiiuviiviieerieitieeieeetee et eeteecteeeteeereeeteeeaeeteeeveeeteesaseeeseeeaseensseeaseenseessseenseeans (302.8)
INCOME TAX DEMETIL ... eouieeieiieiieei ettt ettt ettt ettt te st e s et e se s e s enseneaneesteseeseeseeseenesaeas 57.8
N LOSS .ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et eete e e tbeebeeeabe e taeeaseeteeeaseebeeeabeebeeetbeebeeetbeebeeenbeenteeeabeeraenarean € (245.0)
AdJUSted EBITDA.......ooueiiiitie ettt ettt et e b e bt bbb bt e et et ea b e bt e bt ebeebesbenben € 832.7
Impairment, restructuring and other Operating ItemMS............cceevveereeiierieiiieeeeie ettt ere e (36.3)
Related-party fees and allOCAtIONS .........cccecuieieriiiieriicierie ettt st saesseesseesaesreessesseensansnens (23.8)
|22 1 D N TS ST TR € 772.6
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